http://www.oblible.com This document constitutes a base prospectus (the "Base Prospectus") in respect of non-equity securities within the meaning of Article 22 No. 6(4) of the Commission Regulation (EC) No. 809/2004 of April 29, 2004 (the "Prospectus Regulation").

> Base Prospectus December 2, 2009

COMMERZBANK AKTIENGESELLSCHAFT

Frankfurt am Main, Federal Republic of Germany

Notes/Certificates Programme

This Base Prospectus containing the Commerzbank Aktiengesellschaft Notes/Certificates Programme (the "Programme") was prepared in accordance with §6 of the German Securities Prospectus Act (Wertpapierprospektgesetz), such Act implementing Directive 2003/71/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council of November 4, 2003. The specific issue of notes (the "Notes") and certificates (the "Certificates") (both also the "Securities") issued on the basis of the Base Prospectus can be defined only in connection with the final terms of this Base Prospectus (the "Final Terms"). For each issue of Securities on the basis of the Base Prospectus, the Final Terms will be published in a separate document. The complete information on a specific issue will always result from the Base Prospectus (including any supplements thereto) in combination with the relevant Final Terms.



TABLE OF CONTENTS

SUMMARY	4
SUMMARY REGARDING THE SECURITIES	4
SUMMARY OF RISK FACTORS	5
SUMMARY REGARDING COMMERZBANK AKTIENGESELLSCHAFT	12
RISK FACTORS	13
RISK FACTORS RELATING TO THE SECURITIES	13
RISK FACTORS RELATING TO COMMERZBANK AKTIENGESELLSCHAFT	25
GENERAL INFORMATION	36
RESPONSIBILITY	36
IMPORTANT NOTICE ABOUT THIS BASE PROSPECTUS	36
AVAILABILITY OF DOCUMENTS	37
INFORMATION RELATING TO THE SECURITIES	37
POST-ISSUANCE INFORMATION	37
US INFORMATION	37
NOTICE TO NEW HAMPSHIRE RESIDENTS	38
NO OFFER	38
AVAILABLE INFORMATION	38
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS	38
ENFORCEMENT OF LIABILITIES BY INVESTORS IN THE UNITED STATES	39
U.S. TAXATION	39
TERMS AND CONDITIONS SET 1 (FIXED RATE NOTES)	40
TERMS AND CONDITIONS SET 2 (CERTIFICATES WITH FIXED REDEMPTION DATE)	74
TERMS AND CONDITIONS SET 3 (UNLIMITED CERTIFICATES WITHOUT FIXED REDEMPTION DATE)	98
FORM OF FINAL TERMS (NOTES)	124
FORM OF FINAL TERMS (CERTIFICATES WITH FIXED REDEMPTION DATE)	129

FORM OF FINAL TERMS (UNLIMITED CERTIFICATES WITHOUT FIXED REDEMPTION DATE)	134
TAXATION	139
OFFERING AND SELLING RESTRICTIONS	140
SELLING RESTRICTIONS WITHIN THE EUROPEAN ECONOMIC AREA	140
SELLING RESTRICTIONS OUTSIDE OF THE EUROPEAN ECONOMIC AREA	140
U.S. TRANSFER AND SELLING RESTRICTIONS	141
DESCRIPTION OF THE ISSUER	144
DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE	151

SUMMARY

This summary provides an overview of what are, in the opinion of the Issuer, the main characteristics and risks associated with the Issuer and the Notes and Certificates (together the "**Securities**") that can be issued under the Base Prospectus. It is, however, not exhaustive. The summary should be read as an introduction to the Base Prospectus. Any decision to invest in the Securities should be based on consideration of the Base Prospectus as a whole (including any supplements thereto) and the relevant Final Terms by the investor.

Commerzbank Aktiengesellschaft (the "Issuer", the "Bank" or "Commerzbank", together with its consolidated subsidiaries "Commerzbank Group" or the "Group") may have civil liability in respect of this summary including any translation thereof only if it is misleading, inaccurate or inconsistent when read together with the other parts of the Base Prospectus and the relevant Final Terms.

Where a claim relating to information contained in the Base Prospectus and the relevant Final Terms is brought before a court in a member state of the European Economic Area, the plaintiff investor may, under the national legislation of such state where the claim is brought, be required to bear the costs of translating the Base Prospectus (including any supplements thereto) and the relevant Final Terms before the legal proceedings are initiated.

SUMMARY REGARDING THE SECURITIES

The possible types of Securities which may be issued under the Base Prospectus (and as specified in the relevant Final Terms) are:

- 1. Notes with a principal amount
 - (a) which bear:
 - (i) interest at a fixed rate for one or several interest periods or for the entire term of the Notes ("**Fixed Rate Notes**"), or
 - (ii) interest that is increased ("**Step-Up Notes**") or decreased ("**Step-Down Notes**") from one interest period to another, or
 - (iii) interest at a floating rate ("Floating Rate Notes"), or
 - (iv) interest whereby the interest rate or interest amount is to be determined by reference to an exchange rate, an index, a bond, a share, any other security, a future, a fund, a straddle, a commodity, swap rate(s), interest rate(s), any other underlying, a basket or index consisting of any of the before-mentioned and/or formula(e) for some or all interest periods, provided that interest periods for which the interest rate or interest amount is not determined in such a way may be or may have a floating or fixed rate ("Interest Structured Notes"), or
 - (v) no interest ("Zero Coupon Notes" or other Notes not bearing interest), and
 - (b) where the redemption amount may either:
 - (i) be at par, or
 - (ii) be at a specified rate above or below par, or
 - be determined by reference to an exchange rate, an index, a bond, a share, any other security, a future, a fund, a straddle, a commodity, swap rate(s), interest rate(s), any other underlying, a basket or index consisting of any of the before-mentioned and/or formula(e) ("Redemption Structured Notes"), or

- (iv) consist partially or in whole of securities (including, without limitation, of a company other than the Issuer) instead of a cash payment ("Reverse Convertible Notes" or other Notes with delivery obligations),
- 2. Certificates with fixed redemption date or unlimited certificates without fixed redemption date ("**Unlimited Certificates**") where the redemption amount or additional payments or deliveries are to be determined by reference to an exchange rate, an index, a bond, a share, any other security, a future, a fund, a straddle, a commodity, swap rate(s), interest rate(s), any other underlying, a basket or index consisting of any of the before-mentioned and/or formula(e).

The relevant Final Terms will indicate either that the Securities cannot be redeemed prior to their stated maturity (except for events specified in the Terms and Conditions) or that the Securities will be redeemable at the option of the Issuer and/or the holders of the Securities upon giving notice within the notice period (if any), as the case may be, or that the Securities will be redeemed by way of automatic early redemption (dependent on the occurrence of a specified event). Unlimited Certificates do not have a fixed redemption date and will be redeemable at the option of the Issuer and the Certificateholders upon giving notice within the notice period (if any).

All relevant information relating to a particular issue of Securities such as type and conditions of the Security, issue price, issue date, redemption or interest or other payment calculations or specifications, underlying(s) (if any), market disruption, settlement disruption, adjustments, agents, taxation, specific risk factors, offering, clearing system, ISIN or other national security code(s), listing, form of securities and any further information are set forth in the relevant Final Terms.

SUMMARY OF RISK FACTORS

The purchase of Securities issued under the Programme is associated with certain risks. In respect of Securities which require in view of their specific structure a special description of risk factors, risk factors in addition to those set forth below will be described in the Final Terms relating to such Securities.

No person should purchase the Securities unless that person understands the mechanics of the Securities and the extent of that person's exposure to potential loss. Each prospective purchaser of Securities should consider carefully whether the Securities are suitable for it in the light of such purchaser's circumstances and financial position. In this context, investors should take into consideration the risks of an investment in the Securities (risks relating to the Issuer as well as risks relating to the type of the Securities and/or the underlying(s), if any) as well as the other information contained in this Base Prospectus, any supplements and in the relevant Final Terms.

The occurrence of one or more of the risks disclosed in the Base Prospectus, any supplement and/or the relevant Final Terms or any additional risks may lead to a material and sustained loss and, depending on the structure of the Security, even result in the **total loss** of the capital invested by the investor.

These risk warnings do not substitute advice by the investor's bank or by the investor's legal, business or tax advisers, which should in any event be obtained by the investor in order to be able to assess the consequences of an investment in the Securities. Investment decisions should not be made solely on the basis of the risk warnings set out in this Base Prospectus, any supplement or the relevant Final Terms since such information cannot serve as a substitute for individual advice and information which is tailored to the requirements, objectives, experience, knowledge and circumstances of the investor concerned.

A. RISK FACTORS RELATING TO THE SECURITIES

The Securities can be volatile instruments and involve the **risk of a complete or partial loss of the invested capital (including any incidental costs)**. The Securities may not be a suitable investment for all investors. Each potential investor in the Securities must determine the suitability of that investment in light of its own circumstances. In particular, each potential investor should:

- (a) have sufficient knowledge and experience to make a meaningful evaluation of the Securities, the merits and risks of investing in the Securities and the information contained or incorporated by reference in this Base Prospectus or any applicable supplement and all the information contained in the relevant Final Terms;
- (b) have access to, and knowledge of, appropriate analytical tools to evaluate, in the context of its particular financial situation, an investment in the Securities and the impact the Securities will have on its overall investment portfolio;
- (c) have sufficient financial resources and liquidity to bear all of the risks of an investment in the Securities;
- (d) understand thoroughly the terms of the Securities and be familiar with the behaviour of any relevant underlying and the financial markets; and
- (e) be able to evaluate (either alone or with the help of a financial adviser) possible scenarios for economic, interest rate and other factors that may affect the value of its investment and be able to bear the associated risks.

1. General Risks

The issue price of the Securities is based on internal pricing models of the Issuer and may be higher than their market value due to commissions and/or other fees relating to the issue and sale of the Securities (including a margin paid to distributors or third parties or retained by the Issuer) as well as amounts relating to the hedging of the Issuer's obligations under such Securities, and the price, if any, at which a person is willing to purchase such Securities in secondary market transactions may be lower than the issue price of such Securities. In addition, pricing models of relevant market participants may differ or produce a different result.

Where the Issuer or a subsidiary or affiliate of the Issuer acts as index sponsor or as Calculation Agent, potential conflicts of interest may exist between the Calculation Agent and holders of the Securities or the index sponsor and the holders of the Securities. In addition, business transactions entered into by the Issuer or any of its subsidiaries and affiliates may lead to conflicts of interest which may affect the value of the Securities.

Hedging activities or other operations entered into by the Issuer or any of its subsidiaries and affiliates may have a materially adverse effect on the value of the Securities.

Investors may not be able to enter into transactions which exclude or limit their risks under the Securities.

The market for the Securities is influenced by the economic and market conditions, interest rates, exchange rates and inflation rates in Europe and other industrialised countries and there can be no assurance that events in Europe or elsewhere will not cause market volatility or that such volatility will not adversely affect the value of Securities or that economic and market conditions will not have any other adverse effect on the value of the Securities.

The price of the Securities as quoted by a market maker, if any, is not determined by the principle of supply and demand and does not necessarily correspond to the theoretical value of the Securities.

There can be no assurance that a market making for the Securities will exist. Even if a market maker regularly quoted buying and selling prices for the Securities of any issue, the Issuer assumes no legal obligation regarding the level or quotation of such prices. Accordingly, investors should not rely on being able sell the Securities during their term at a certain point in time or price.

The offer volume specified in the relevant Final Terms is no indication of which volume of Securities will be actually issued and investors should not draw any conclusions as to the liquidity of the Securities in the secondary market from the offer volume.

If the purchase of Securities is financed through loans and there is a failure in payments of the Issuer regarding the Securities or the price decreases considerably, the investor does not only have to accept the loss incurred but also has to pay interest on and redeem the loan. Investors should never assume that they will be able to repay the loan including interest out of the payments on the Securities or – in case of a sale of the Securities before maturity – out of the proceeds from such sale.

The obligations under the Securities constitute direct, unconditional and unsecured obligations of the Issuer and rank at least *pari passu* with all other unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of the Issuer (save for such exceptions as may exist from time to time under applicable law).

In case of insolvency of Commerzbank as the Issuer, the holders of the Securities may lose part or all of their claims to repayment of their invested capital. The Securities are neither secured by the Deposit Protection Fund of the Association of German Banks (*Einlagensicherungsfonds des Bundesverbandes deutscher Banken e.V.*) nor be the German Deposit Guarantee and Investor Compensation Act (*Einlagensicherungsfonds- und Anlegerentschädigungsgesetz*).

A downgrading of the Issuer's credit rating may reduce the value of the Securities.

After an early redemption of the Securities the investor may only be able to reinvest the redemption proceeds at significant adverse conditions.

The investment activities of certain investors are subject to legal investment laws and regulation, or review or regulation by certain authorities.

If provided for in the applicable Final Terms all taxes or other duties payable at the level of the Issuer or the holders of the Securities on payments made in relation to the Securities are to be borne by the holders of the Securities. The Issuer will not pay any additional amounts to the holders of the Securities on account of any such taxes or duties.

2. Risks relating to special types of Securities

The factors which are material for the purpose of assessing the risks associated with an investment in Securities issued under this Base Prospectus will vary depending on the type of Securities issued, e.g. whether it is a Note or a Certificate and what kind of Note or Certificate it is.

A key difference between Floating Rate Notes, Interest Structured Notes and Fixed Rate Notes is that interest income on Floating Rate Notes and Interest Structured Notes cannot be anticipated. Due to varying income, investors are not able to determine a definite yield of Floating Rate Notes and Interest Structured Notes at the time of purchase, so that their return on investment cannot be compared with that of investments having fixed interest rates.

Unlike the price of ordinary Floating Rate Notes, the price of Reverse Floating Rate Notes is highly dependent on the yield of Fixed Rate Notes having the same maturity. Price fluctuations of Reverse Floating Rate Notes are parallel to but substantially stronger than those of Fixed Rate Notes having a similar maturity.

Changes in market interest rates have a substantially stronger impact on the prices of Zero Coupon Notes than on the prices of ordinary Notes because the discounted issue prices are substantially below par and these Notes do not pay any periodic interest during their term. Due to their leverage effect, Zero Coupon Notes are a type of investment associated with a particularly high price risk.

The yield of Securities with a capped variable rate may be considerably lower than that of similar Securities without a cap.

The market values of Securities issued at a substantial discount or premium tend to fluctuate more in relation to general changes in interest rates than do prices for conventional interest-bearing Securities.

The potential early redemption of Securities may lead to negative deviations from the expected yield and the redemption amount may be lower than the purchase price paid by the holder of such Security or zero and thus the invested capital may be partially or completely lost. According to the terms and conditions of the Securities as set forth in the Final Terms the Issuer may be entitled to make adjustments to the terms and conditions of the Securities or to early terminate the Securities if certain circumstances occur. Any such adjustment may have a negative effect on the value of the Securities and the redemption amount. The amount at which the Securities are redeemed in the event of an early termination may be lower than the amount the holders of the Securities would have received without such early termination. The redemption amount paid in the case of an early termination may include a deduction in respect of early redemption unwind costs.

The potential early redemption of Securities may lead to negative deviations from the expected yield and the redemption amount may be lower than the purchase price paid by the holder of such Security or zero and thus the invested capital may be partially or completely lost.

The Issuer may have the right to determine market disruptions or other events which may lead to a postponement of a calculation and/or of any payments or deliveries and which may affect the value of the Securities.

If Certificates do not have a determined maturity but are open-ended, their term depends on an optional redemption elected by the holder of Securities or the Issuer, as the case may be, if provided for.

A holder of Securities denominated or with an underlying denominated in a foreign currency or where the pay-out occurs in a foreign currency and a holder of Dual Currency Notes is exposed to the risk of changes in currency exchange rates which may adversely affect the yield of such Securities.

Where the amount of interest payable and/or amounts payable and/or assets deliverable on redemption of Securities may be determined by reference to a participation rate or leverage factor, prospective investors should note that the effect of changes in the price or level of the underlying(s) payable will be magnified.

An investment in the Securities entails additional significant risks that are not associated with similar investments in a conventional fixed or floating rate debt security.

If the Final Terms for a particular issue of Securities provide that payments and/or deliveries depend on an underlying, the relevant underlying and thus the payment and/or delivery obligations of the Issuer under the Securities may be subject to significant changes, whether due to fluctuations in value of underlying or, in the event of a basket or index, the composition of the index or basket.

If the Final Terms for a particular issue of Securities provide that the interest rate or other periodical payments are linked to one or more underlying(s) it may result in an interest rate or other periodical payment that is less than that payable on a conventional fixed rate debt security issued at the same time, including the possibility that no interest will be paid or that no periodical payment will be made and if the principal amount is linked to such underlying(s), the principal amount payable may be less than the original purchase price of such Security including the possibility of no repayment at all.

The holder of a Security can lose all or a substantial portion of the principal amount of such Security (whether payable at maturity or upon early redemption), and, if the principal amount is lost, interest may cease to be payable on the Security.

The risks of investing in the Securities encompass both risks relating to the underlying(s) and risks that are unique to the Securities as such.

The underlying to which the Securities are linked may cease to exist or may be substituted by another underlying.

Furthermore, the value of the Securities on the secondary market is subject to greater levels of risk than is the value of other securities as it is dependent on one or several underlyings. The performance of any underlying is subject to a series of factors, including economic, financial and political events beyond the control of the Issuer. The secondary market, if any, for the Securities will be affected by a number of factors, irrespective of the creditworthiness of the Issuer and the value of the respective underlying(s), including, without limitation, the volatility of the respective underlying(s), the

time remaining to the maturity of such Securities, the amount outstanding of such Securities and market interest rates.

The Final Terms may provide that, depending on the performance of the underlying(s) or another condition, the Securities may be redeemed, in lieu of a cash payment, by the delivery of the underlying, any of the underlyings or other securities (the "Object of Physical Settlement"). Accordingly, the investor will upon redemption of the Securities by physical settlement receive no amount of money (or cash settlement only in part) but the Object of Physical Settlement.

The value of the Object of Physical Settlement may be substantially lower at the time of delivery of the Object of Physical Settlement than at the time of purchase of the Securities (or the amount paid for the purchase of the Securities), or than at the time at which it is decided whether physical or cash settlement shall occur, or than at the valuation date, if any.

Investors have no claim against the issuer of an underlying in respect of obligations of the Issuer under the Securities.

The value of respective underlying(s) depends on a number of interrelated factors, including economic, financial and political events beyond the Issuer's control. Additionally, if the formula(e) used to determine the amount of principal, premium and/or interest payable or the delivery obligations with respect to the Securities, as the case may be, contains a participation rate or leverage factor, the effect of any change in the respective underlying(s) will be increased. The historical experience of the respective underlying(s) should not be taken as an indication of future performance of such underlying(s) during the term of any Security. Additionally, there may be regulatory and other ramifications associated with the ownership by certain investors of certain Securities.

Securities linked to an index or a basket of indices

Securities linked to an index or a basket of indices may involve one or more of the following index specific risks:

- the value of an index is calculated on the basis of the value of its components. Changes in the composition of an index may therefore adversely affect the value of the Securities and the amounts payable under the Securities;
- if the components of an index reflect the performance of assets of some countries or some industries only, investors are exposed to a concentration risk. In case of an unfavourable development in the relevant country or industry, the index may be affected disproportionately by this adverse development;
- investors should note that the selection of an index is not based on the expectations or estimates
 of the Issuer or the Calculation Agent in respect of the future performance of the selected index.
 Investors should thus make their own estimates in respect of the future performance of the
 components of an index and the index itself on the basis of their own knowledge and sources of
 information;
- if the Securities are linked to a price index, dividends paid out do (contrary to performance indices) not cause an increase in the level of a price index. Investors do thus not participate in any dividends or other distributions on the shares contained in the price index;
- the Issuer may not have any influence over the composition of the index by the index sponsor;
- the index sponsor assumes no liability vis-à-vis the holders of the Securities;
- the underlying index may not be a recognised financial index, but an index created for the issue of the relevant Security. The index sponsor of such indices might not be independent from the Issuer and may thus favour the interests of the Issuer over the interests of the holder of the Securities;

- the index may have an exposure to one or more currencies different from the currency in which the Securities are denominated;
- fees may be included in the calculation of the index level which may reduce the index level to the detriment of the investors; and
- the index level may not be updated continuously.

Securities linked to shares or a basket of shares

Securities linked to shares or a basket of shares are associated with particular risks, such as the risk that the respective company will be rendered insolvent, the risk that the share price will fluctuate or risks relating to dividends, over which the Issuer has no control. The performance of the shares depends to a very significant extent on developments on the capital markets, which in turn depend on the general global economic situation and more specific economic and political conditions. Shares in companies with low to medium market capitalisation may be subject to even higher risks (e.g. relating to their volatility or insolvency) than is the case for shares in larger companies. Moreover, shares in companies with low capitalisation may be extremely illiquid as a result of low trading volumes.

Shares of companies with its statutory seat or with significant business operations in countries with limited certainty of law are subject to additional risks such as, for instance, government interventions or nationalisation which may lead to a total or partial loss of the invested capital or of access to the capital invested in such country. The realisation of such risks may also lead to a total or partial loss of the invested capital for holders of the Securities linked to such shares.

Holders of Securities that are linked to share prices do, contrary to investors which directly invest in the shares, not receive dividends or other distributions payable to the holders of the underlying shares.

Securities linked to a bond or bonds

Investors in Securities linked to a bond or to various bonds are, in addition to the credit risk of Commerzbank AG as Issuer of the Securities, exposed to the credit risk of the issuers of such underlying bond(s). In the event that an issuer of an underlying bond does not punctually perform its obligations under the bonds or if such an issuer becomes insolvent this may lead to a total loss of the invested capital in the Securities linked to such bond. In addition, investors should be aware that a deterioration in the creditworthiness of the issuer of an underlying bond during the term of the Securities may lead to significant price losses in the secondary market for the Securities.

Securities linked to commodities

Investors in Securities linked to commodities are exposed to significant price risks as prices of commodities are subject to great fluctuations. The prices of commodities are influenced by a number of factors, including, inter alia, the following factors:

- A number of producers or producing countries of commodities have formed organizations or cartels to regulate supply and therefore influence prices. Trading in commodities is subject to regulations imposed by supervisory authorities or markets which may also influence the price development;
- The cyclical supply and demand patterns of commodities may lead to strong price fluctuations.
- Direct investments in commodities are associated with costs for storage, insurance and taxes. In addition, no interest or dividends are paid on commodities;
- An inflationary or deflationary development of prices may have a strong effect on the price development of commodities;
- Commodities markets may be very illiquid and may therefore not be able to react rapidly and sufficiently to changes in supply and demand. In case of low liquidity, speculative investments by individual market participants may lead to price distortions;

- Commodities are frequently produced in emerging markets and subject to demand from industrialized nations. This supply demand pattern holds political risks which may have a significant impact on prices of commodities; and
- Unfavourable weather conditions and natural disasters may have a negative effect on the supply
 of specific commodities for an entire year. A crisis of supply of this sort may lead to strong and
 incalculable price fluctuations.

Securities linked to a fund or a basket of funds

Particular risks of Securities that relate to one or several funds or a basket of funds as underlying(s) involve the risks that:

- the performance of a fund is generally reduced by fees at the level of the fund(s) as well as at the level of the investments made by the fund(s). Such fees may adversely affect the value of the Securities as well as the amounts payable under the Securities;
- underlyings of Securities may also be funds investing to a significant extent in illiquid assets. This
 can lead to difficulties in calculating the net asset value and to a substantial delay in the
 repayment of the Securities, as well as to a reduction in the value of the investment and even to a
 sale thereof;
- an underlying fund may publish the net asset value with a delay. This may result in a
 postponement of the payouts under the Securities and may have adverse effects on the value of
 the Securities;
- an underlying fund may redeem no or only a limited quantity of units on the scheduled times that are relevant for the calculation of the payouts under the Securities. This can result in a postponement of the payouts under the Securities and may negatively affect the value of the Securities;
- the Securities may relate to funds which invest only or mainly in a certain country, a certain industry or a certain asset class. In case of an unfavourable development of the relevant asset type or in the relevant country or industry, the value of the fund may be affected disproportionately by this adverse development;
- the Securities may be linked to funds which are denominated in another currency than the currency in which the Securities are denominated or to funds which invest in assets that are denominated in another currency. Investors may therefore be subject to significant currency risks;
- funds that invest in markets with limited certainty of law are subject to certain risks such as, for
 instance, government interventions which lead to a total or partial loss of the invested capital or of
 access to the capital invested there. These markets may not be regulated as reliably as others.

Securities linked to a hedge fund

Securities which are linked to units in funds that apply alternative investment strategies with special risks (hedge funds) (or, likewise, an index which represents a hedge fund) are exposed to high risks. Such risks depend on the strategy and underlying investments of the relevant hedge fund and include, *inter alia*, insufficient transparency, lack of investment restrictions, concentration of risks, leverage, use of derivatives, short selling and trading with illiquid instruments.

Further risks relating to the underlying and/or the type of the Securities may be described in the relevant Final Terms.

B. RISK FACTORS RELATING TO COMMERZBANK AKTIENGESELLSCHAFT

The Issuer is subject to various market- and sector-specific as well as company-specific risks, which – if they materialised – could have a considerable impact on the Issuer's net assets, financial position and earnings performance, and consequently on the Issuer's ability to meet its commitments arising from the Securities. Such risks include:

- Strategic Risks
- Risks arising from the Integration of the Former Dresdner Bank
- Credit Risks
- Risks arising from Structured Credit Products
- Market Risks
- Risks from Equity Investment Stakes
- Risks arising from Pension Obligations
- Operationa Risks
- IT Risks
- Personnel Risks
- Regulatory, Legal and Reputational Risks

For more information on each of these risks see "Risk Factors relating to Commerzbank Aktiengesellschaft" on page 25 et seq.

SUMMARY REGARDING COMMERZBANK AKTIENGESELLSCHAFT

Commerzbank Aktiengesellschaft is a stock corporation under German law. The Bank's registered office is located in Frankfurt am Main and its head office is at Kaiserplatz, 60261 Frankfurt am Main, Federal Republic of Germany (telephone: +49 (0)69 136-20). The Bank is registered in the commercial register of the lower regional court (*Amtsgericht*) of Frankfurt am Main under the number HRB 32 000.

Commerzbank is a universal bank. Its products and services for retail and corporate customers extend to all aspects of banking. The Bank is also active in specialised fields – partly covered by its subsidiaries – such as mortgage banking and real-estate business, leasing and asset management. Its services are concentrated on managing customers' accounts and handling payments transactions, loan, savings and investments plans, and also on securities transactions. Additional financial services are offered within the framework of the Bank's bancassurance strategy of cooperating with leading companies in finance-related sectors, including home loan savings schemes and insurance products.

The Commerzbank Group is divided into three areas: customer bank, asset based finance and the run-off portfolio (Portfolio Restructuring Unit (PRU)). The customer bank comprises the customeroriented core business activities of Commerzbank. Specifically, this includes the four segments Private Customers, *Mittelstandsbank*, Corporates & Markets as well as Central & Eastern Europe. The asset based finance area essentially includes Commercial Real Estate, Public Finance and ship financing. The run-off contains all the portfolios that the Bank no longer wants and has transferred to a single separate unit.

Commerzbank's business activities are mainly concentrated on the German market. In Wealth Mangement, considered core markets are furthermore Austria, Luxembourg, Singapore and Switzerland and in corporate business, Europe, USA and Asia. Additional information regarding the Issuer is available in the section "Description of the Issuer" on page 144 et seq.

RISK FACTORS

The purchase of Notes and Certificates (together the "**Securities**") issued under the Programme is associated with certain risks. In respect of Securities which require in view of their specific structure a special description of risk factors, risk factors in addition to those set forth below will be described in the Final Terms relating to such Securities. The information set forth hereinafter and in the Final Terms merely contains the major risks connected with an investment in the Securities.

No person should purchase the Securities unless that person understands the mechanics of the Securities and the extent of that person's exposure to potential loss. Each prospective purchaser of Securities should consider carefully whether the Securities are suitable for it in the light of such purchaser's circumstances and financial position. In this context, investors should take into consideration the risks of an investment in the Securities (risks relating to the Issuer as well as risks relating to the type of the Securities and/or the underlying(s), if any) as well as the other information contained in this Base Prospectus, any supplements and in the relevant Final Terms.

The order of the risk factors described herein does not imply any statement about the likelihood of occurrence of each risk factor or the influence of such risk factor on the value of the Securities.

Moreover, additional risks that are not known at the date of preparation of the Base Prospectus and the relevant Final Terms or currently believed to be immaterial could likewise have an adverse effect on the value of the Securities.

It is possible that the performance of the Securities is affected by several risk factors at the same time, but the Issuer is unable to make any binding predictions on such combined effects.

The occurrence of one or more of the risks disclosed in the Base Prospectus, any supplement and/or the relevant Final Terms or any additional risks may lead to a material and sustained loss and, depending on the structure of the Security, even result in the total loss of the capital invested by the investor.

INVESTORS ARE ADVISED TO PURCHASE THE SECURITIES ONLY IF THEY CAN BEAR THE RISK OF A TOTAL LOSS OF THE CAPITAL INVESTED INCLUDING ANY FEES OR COSTS PAYABLE IN CONNECTION WITH THE PURCHASE OF THE SECURITIES.

These risk warnings do not substitute advice by the investor's bank or by the investor's legal, business or tax advisers, which should in any event be obtained by the investor in order to be able to assess the consequences of an investment in the Securities. Investment decisions should not be made solely on the basis of the risk warnings set out in this Base Prospectus, any supplement or the relevant Final Terms since such information cannot serve as a substitute for individual advice and information which is tailored to the requirements, objectives, experience, knowledge and circumstances of the investor concerned.

RISK FACTORS RELATING TO THE SECURITIES

The Securities can be volatile instruments and involve the **risk of a complete or partial loss of the invested capital (including any incidental costs)**. The Securities may not be a suitable investment for all investors. Each potential investor in the Securities must determine the suitability of that investment in light of its own circumstances. In particular, each potential investor should:

- have sufficient knowledge and experience to make a meaningful evaluation of the Securities, the merits and risks of investing in the Securities and the information contained or incorporated by reference in this Base Prospectus or any applicable supplement and all the information contained in the relevant Final Terms;
- (b) have access to, and knowledge of, appropriate analytical tools to evaluate, in the context of its particular financial situation, an investment in the Securities and the impact the Securities will have on its overall investment portfolio;

- (c) have sufficient financial resources and liquidity to bear all of the risks of an investment in the Securities;
- (d) understand thoroughly the terms of the Securities and be familiar with the behaviour of any relevant underlying and the financial markets; and
- (e) be able to evaluate (either alone or with the help of a financial adviser) possible scenarios for economic, interest rate and other factors that may affect the value of its investment and be able to bear the associated risks.

GENERAL RISKS

Market value and impact of incidental costs

The issue price in respect of any Securities is based on internal pricing models of the Issuer and may be higher than the market value of such Securities, and the price, if any, at which any person is willing to purchase such Securities in secondary market transactions may be lower than the issue price in respect of such Securities. In particular, the issue price may include (irrespective of any agio which may be payable) commissions and/or other fees relating to the issue and sale of the Securities (including a margin paid to distributors or third parties or retained by the Issuer) as well as amounts relating to the hedging of the Issuer's obligations under such Securities, and secondary market prices are to some degree likely to exclude such amounts. In addition, pricing models of relevant market participants may differ or produce a different result.

Conflicts of interest

Where the Issuer or an subsidiary or affiliate of the Issuer acts as index sponsor or as Calculation Agent, potential conflicts of interest may exist between the Calculation Agent and holders of the Securities or the index sponsor and the holders of the Securities, including with respect to certain determinations and judgements that the Calculation Agent or the index sponsor, respectively, may make with respect to the Securities that may influence the amount payable or specified assets deliverable under the terms of the Securities.

The Issuer and/or any of its affiliates or subsidiaries may have existing or future business relationships with an underlying or which relate to one or several underlyings (including, but not limited to, issuing other securities linked to the relevant underlying(s), lending, depositary, risk management, advisory services and trading activities). Such business activities may be carried out as service for customers or on an own account basis. The Issuer and/or any of its affiliates or subsidiaries will pursue actions and take steps that it or they deem necessary or appropriate to protect its and/or their interests arising therefrom without regard to any negative consequences this may have for a holder of the Securities. Such actions and conflicts may include, without limitation, the exercise of voting rights, the purchase and sale of securities, financial advisory relationships and exercise of creditor rights. The Issuer and any of its subsidiaries and affiliates and their officers and directors may engage in any such activities without regard to the potential adverse effect that such activities may directly or indirectly have on any Securities.

The Issuer and any of its subsidiaries and affiliates, in connection with their other business activities, may possess or acquire material information about the underlying(s). The Issuer and any of its subsidiaries and affiliates have no obligation to disclose such information about the underlying(s).

Hedging risks

The Issuer and any of its subsidiaries and affiliates may hedge themselves against the financial risks which are linked with the Securities by undertaking hedging activities in the relevant underlying. Such activities, especially the hedging activities relating to the Securities, may influence the market price of the underlying(s) to which the Securities relate, in particular at the time when the Securities expire. It cannot be excluded that entering into and releasing such hedging positions may have a negative influence on the value of the Securities or payments to which the holder of the Securities is entitled.

In addition, investors may not be able to enter into transactions which exclude or limit their risks under the Securities; the possibility to enter into such hedge transactions depends on market conditions and the respective underlying terms and conditions.

Interest rate, exchange rate and inflation rate risks

The market for the Securities is influenced by the economic and market conditions, interest rates, exchange rates and inflation rates in Europe and other industrialised countries and areas. There can be no assurance that events in Europe or elsewhere will not cause market volatility or that such volatility will not adversely affect the value of Securities or that economic and market conditions will not have any other adverse effect.

Determination of the Securities Price

The price of the Securities as quoted by a market maker, if any, is not determined by the principle of supply and demand and does not necessarily correspond to the theoretical value of the Securities. The level of such deviation of the buying and selling prices quoted by a market maker from the theoretical value of the Securities will fluctuate during the term of the Securities. In particular at the beginning of the term of the Securities, such deviation may result in that the Securities acquired at the issue price may, under the assumption that the usual price-influencing factors remain constant, only be resold at a significantly lower price. In addition, such deviation from the theoretical value of the Securities may result in a significant (upside or downside) deviation of the buying and selling prices, if any, quoted by other securities for the Securities from the buying and selling prices quoted by the market maker.

Trading in the Securities

There can be no assurance that there will be a market on which investors can sell their Securities during the term of the Securities. If a market does develop, it may not be very liquid. Illiquidity may have a severely adverse effect on the market value of Securities. Even if there is a market maker who regularly quotes buying and selling prices for the Securities, there is no assurance that such market maker continues to quote prices, in particular in the event of highly volatile markets. There can also be no assurance that the level of the quoted prices is acceptable to investors. In particular, the Issuer assumes no legal obligation regarding the level or quotation of such prices. Accordingly, investors should not rely on being able sell the Securities during their term at a certain point in time or price.

Investors should neither rely on being able sell the Securities during their term at prices that will provide them with a yield comparable to similar investments that have a developed secondary market. This is particularly the case for Securities that are especially sensitive to interest rate, currency or stock market, commodity market or other market risks, are designed for specific investment objectives or strategies or have been structured to meet the investment requirements of limited categories of investors. These types of Securities generally would have a more limited secondary market and more price volatility than conventional debt securities.

Offer volume

The offer volume specified in the relevant Final Terms corresponds to the maximum total amount of Securities offered but is no indication of which volume of Securities will be actually issued. The actual volume depends on the market conditions and may change during the term of the Securities. Therefore, investors should note that the specified offer volume does not allow to draw any conclusions as to the liquidity of the Securities in the secondary market.

Use of loans

If investors finance the purchase of the Securities through a loan, they will be subject – in the event that they lose some or all of the invested capital – not only to the loss incurred but will also have to pay the interest and repay the principal on the loan. In such case the exposure to loss increases considerably. Investors should never assume that they will be able to repay the loan including interest out of the payments on the Securities or – in case of a sale of the Securities before maturity – out of the proceeds from such sale. Purchasers of Securities rather have to consider in advance on the

basis of their financial situation whether they will still be able to pay the interest or repay the principal on the loan at short notice if the expected profits turn into losses.

Securities are unsecured obligations

The obligations under the Securities constitute direct, unconditional and unsecured obligations of the Issuer and rank at least *pari passu* with all other unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of the Issuer (save for such exceptions as may exist from time to time under applicable law).

Issuer's solvency

The holders of the Securities assume the credit risk of Commerzbank Aktiengesellschaft as Issuer of the Securities. In case of insolvency of the Issuer, the holders of the Securities may lose part or all of their invested capital if the insolvency estate of the Issuer does not suffice to satisfy all unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of the Issuer.

The Securities are neither secured by the Deposit Protection Fund of the Association of German Banks (*Einlagensicherungsfonds des Bundesverbands deutscher Banken e.V.*) nor by the German Deposit Guarantee and Investor Compensation Act (*Einlagensicherungs- und Anlegerentschädigungs- gesetz*).

Impact of a downgrading of the credit rating

The value of the Securities is expected to be affected, in part, by investors' general appraisal of the Issuer's creditworthiness. Such perceptions are generally influenced by the ratings given to the Issuer's outstanding securities by standard statistical rating agencies, such as Moody's Investors Services Inc., Fitch Ratings Ltd, a subsidiary of Fimalac, S.A., and Standard & Poor's Ratings Services, a division of The McGraw Hill Companies, Inc. Any downgrading of the Issuer's rating (if any) by even one of these rating agencies could result in a reduction in the value of the Securities.

Reinvestment risk

After an early redemption of the Securities the investor may only be able to reinvest the redemption proceeds at significant adverse conditions.

Legal investment restrictions may restrict investments by certain investors

The investment activities of certain investors are subject to legal investment laws and regulation, or review or regulation by certain authorities. Each potential investor should consult its legal advisers to determine whether and to what extent (a) Securities are legal investments for it, (b) Securities can be used as collateral for various types of borrowing and (c) other restrictions apply to its purchase or pledge of any Securities. Financial institutions should consult their legal advisers or the appropriate regulators to determine the appropriate treatment of Securities under any applicable risk-based capital or similar rules.

Taxes and other duties

If provided for in the applicable Final Terms all taxes or other duties payable at the level of the Issuer or the holders of the Securities on payments made in relation to the Securities are to be borne by the holders of the Securities. The Issuer will not pay any additional amounts to the holders of the Securities on account of any such taxes or duties.

Change of law

The terms and conditions of the Securities are based on relevant laws in effect as at the date of this Base Prospectus. No assurance can be given as to the impact of any possible judicial decision or change to such laws or administrative practices after the date of this Base Prospectus.

RISKS RELATING TO SPECIAL TYPES OF SECURITIES

There are certain factors which are material for the purpose of assessing the risks associated with an investment in Securities issued under this Base Prospectus. Such factors will vary depending on the type of Securities issued, e.g. whether it is a Note or a Certificate, and what kind of Note or Certificate it is, e.g. a Fixed Rate Note, a Step-Up or a Step-Down Note, a Reverse Convertible Note, a Floating Rate Note, a Certificate with fixed redemption date or an Unlimited Certificate without fixed redemption date, a Security with a redemption amount at a specified rate, a Security where the interest and/or redemption amount or other payments are linked to the value of an exchange rate, an index, a bond, a share, any other security, a future, a fund, a straddle, a commodity, swap rate(s), interest rate(s), or any other underlying, a basket or an index consisting of any of the before-mentioned and/or a formula(e).

Floating Rate Notes

A key difference between Floating Rate Notes, Interest Structured Notes on one hand and Fixed Rate Notes on the other is that interest income on Floating Rate Notes and Interest Structured Notes cannot be anticipated. Due to varying interest income, investors are not able to determine a definite yield of Floating Rate Notes and Interest Structured Notes at the time of purchase, so that their return on investment cannot be compared with that of investments having fixed interest rates.

Reverse Floating Rate Notes

The interest income of Reverse Floating Rate Notes is calculated in reverse proportion to the reference rate: if the reference rate increases, interest income decreases whereas it increases if the reference rate decreases.

Unlike the price of ordinary Floating Rate Notes, the price of Reverse Floating Rate Notes is highly dependent on the yield of Fixed Rate Notes having the same maturity. Price fluctuations of Reverse Floating Rate Notes are parallel to but substantially stronger than those of Fixed Rate Notes having a similar maturity.

The value of Reverse Floating Rate notes especially may decrease if short and long term market interest rates both increase. The same effect applies to a certain extent if long-term market interest rates increase and short-term market interest rates decrease.

Capped Floating Rate Notes

The maximum amount of interest payable in respect of Securities that bear or pay interest with a capped variable rate will equal the sum of the reference rate and any specified margin subject to a specified maximum rate. Consequently investors in these Securities will not benefit from any increase in the relevant reference rate if, when added to the specified margin, such resulting rate is equal to or greater than the maximum specified rate.

The market value of Capped Floating Rate Notes would typically decrease if market interest rates increase, especially the closer the sum of the relevant reference rate and any margin is to the maximum specified rate or if such sum exceeds the maximum specified rate. The yield of Securities with a capped variable rate may be considerably lower than a yield of similar Securities without a cap.

Zero Coupon Notes

Changes in market interest rates have a substantially stronger impact on the prices of Zero Coupon Notes than on the prices of ordinary Notes because the discounted issue prices are substantially below par and these Notes do not pay any periodic interest during their term. If market interest rates increase, Zero Coupon Notes can suffer higher price losses than other Notes having the same maturity and a comparable credit rating. Due to their leverage effect, Zero Coupon Notes are a type of investment associated with a particularly high price risk.

Notes issued at a substantial discount or premium

The market values of Notes issued at a substantial discount or premium from their principal amount tend to fluctuate more in relation to general changes in interest rates than do prices for conventional interest-bearing securities. Generally, the longer the remaining term of the Notes, the greater the price volatility as compared to conventional interest-bearing Notes with comparable maturities.

Extraordinary early termination and adjustment rights

According to the terms and conditions of the Securities as set forth in the Final Terms the Issuer may be entitled to make adjustments to the terms and conditions of the Securities or to early terminate the Securities if certain circumstances occur. Such circumstances are described in the terms and conditions and may include, without limitation, the cancellation of or changes made to an index in the case of index-linked Securities or events that have a significant impact on the underlying shares in the case of equity-linked Securities. Any adjustment of the terms and conditions may have a negative effect on the value of the Securities and the redemption amount. Also, the amount at which the Securities are redeemed in the event of an early termination may be lower than the amount the holders of the Securities would have received without such early termination. If so specified in the applicable Final Terms, the redemption amount paid in the case of an early termination will include a deduction in respect of early redemption unwind costs. Such early redemption unwind costs may comprise all costs, expenses (including loss of funding), tax and duties incurred by the Issuer in connection with the early redemption of the Securities and the related termination, settlement or reestablishment of any hedge or related trading position. Investors bear furthermore the risk that they may invest the amounts received upon early redemption only at a rate of return which is lower than that of the Securities redeemed.

Early redemption at the option of the Issuer; Automatic early redemption

The Final Terms for a particular issue of Securities may provide for an early termination right at the option of the Issuer an automatic early redemption provision. Such early redemption provisions are likely to limit the market value of the Securities. During any period when the Issuer may elect to redeem Securities or when the automatic early redemption is likely to be triggered, the market value of those Securities generally will not rise substantially above the price at which they may be redeemed. This also may be true prior to any redemption period. The potential early redemption of Securities may lead to negative deviations from the expected yield and the redemption amount may be lower than the purchase price paid by the holder of such Security or zero and thus the invested capital may be partially or completely lost.

Moreover, regarding Securities with fixed interest, the risk that the Issuer will exercise its right of early redemption for the holders of Securities increases if the market interest rates decrease. As a consequence, the yields received upon redemption may be lower than expected, and the early redemption amount of the Securities may be lower than the purchase price for the Securities paid by the holders of Securities. As a consequence, part of the capital invested by the holders of Securities may be lost, so that the holders of Securities in such case would not receive the total amount of the capital invested. Furthermore, there is the possibility that holders of Securities may invest the amounts received upon early redemption only at a rate of return which is lower than that of the Securities redeemed.

Market Disruption and postponement of payments

The Issuer may be entitled to determine market disruptions or other events which may lead to a postponement of a calculation and/or of any payments or deliveries and which may affect the value of the Securities.

Unlimited Certificates

Unlimited Certificates do not have a determined maturity. Therefore, the term of the Certificates depends on an optional redemption elected by the holder of Certificates or the Issuer, as the case may be, if provided for in the applicable Final Terms. Since unlimited Certificates do not have a pre-

determined redemption date the Certificateholders must actively terminate the Certificates in order to cause a redemption of the Certificates.

Foreign Currency Securities and Dual Currency Notes

A holder of Securities denominated or with an underlying denominated in a foreign currency or where the pay-out occurs in a foreign currency and a holder of Dual Currency Notes is exposed to the risk of changes in exchange rates which may affect the yield of such Securities. Changes in exchange rates result from various factors such as macro-economic factors, speculative transactions and interventions by central banks and governments.

A change in the value of any currency other than Euro against the Euro, for example, will result in a corresponding change in the Euro value of Securities denominated in a currency other than Euro and a corresponding change in the Euro value of payments made in a currency other than in Euro in accordance with the terms and conditions of such Security. If the underlying exchange rate falls and the value of the Euro correspondingly rises, the price of the Securities and the value of payments made thereunder expressed in Euro falls.

Leverage

Where the amount of interest payable and/or amounts payable and/or assets deliverable on redemption of Securities may be determined by reference to a participation rate or leverage factor, prospective investors should note that the effect of changes in the price or level of the Underlying(s) will be magnified.

Structured Notes and Certificates

Investments in Structured Notes and Certificates entail additional significant risks

An investment in Structured Notes or in Certificates entails significant additional risks that are not associated with similar investments in a conventional fixed or floating rate debt security. These risks include, among other things, the possibility that:

- if the Final Terms for a particular issue of Securities provide that payments and/or deliveries depend on an underlying, the relevant underlying and thus the payment and/or delivery obligations may be subject to significant changes, whether due to fluctuations in value of underlying or, in the event of a basket or index, the composition of the index or basket;
- if the Final Terms for a particular issue of Notes provide that the interest rate is linked to one
 or more underlying(s) it may result in an interest rate that is less than that payable on a
 conventional fixed rate debt security issued at the same time, including the possibility that no
 interest will be paid and if the principal amount is linked to such underlying(s), the principal
 amount payable may be less than the original purchase price of such Note including the
 possibility of no repayment at all;
- if provided in the Final Terms for a particular issue of Securities the repayment of the Security can occur at times other than that expected by the investor;
- the holder of a Structured Note or of a Certificate can lose all or a substantial portion of the principal amount of such Note/Certificate (whether payable at maturity or upon early redemption), and, if the principal amount is lost, interest may cease to be payable on the structured Note/Certificate;
- the risks of investing in Structured Notes and Certificates encompass both risks relating to the underlying(s) and risks that are unique to the Notes/Certificates as such;
- it may not be possible for investors to hedge their exposure to the various risks relating to Structured Notes or Certificates;

- the underlying to which the Structured Notes/Certificates are linked may cease to exist or may be substituted by another underlying; and
- the value of Structured Notes or Certificates on the secondary market is subject to greater fluctuations and thus greater levels of risk than is the value of other securities as it is dependent on one or several underlyings. The performance of any underlying is subject to a series of factors, including economic, financial and political events beyond the control of the Issuer. The secondary market, if any, for Structured Notes or Certificates will be affected by a number of factors, irrespective of the creditworthiness of the Issuer and the value of the respective underlying(s), including, without limitation, the volatility of the respective underlying(s), the time remaining to the maturity of such Notes/Certificates, the amount outstanding of such Notes/Certificates and market interest rates.

Risk relating to physical settlement

The Final Terms may provide that, depending on the performance of the underlying(s) or another condition, the Securities may be redeemed, in lieu of a cash payment, by the delivery of the underlying, any of the underlyings or other securities (the "Object of Physical Settlement"). The quantity of the units to be delivered will be determined in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Securities. Accordingly, the investor will upon redemption of the Securities by physical settlement receive no amount of money (or cash settlement only in part) but the Object of Physical Settlement.

Therefore, investors should inform themselves before the purchase of the Securities on the Objects of Physical Settlement, if any, and not expect to be able to sell the Objects of Physical Settlement at a certain price. The value of the Object of Physical Settlement may be substantially lower at the time of delivery of the Object of Physical Settlement than at the time of purchase of the Securities (or the amount paid for the purchase of the Securities), or than at the time at which it is decided whether physical or cash settlement shall occur, or than at the valuation date, if any. In the case of physical Settlement, Under certain circumstances, the delivered Objects of Physical Settlement may even be worthless. Also in the case of physical settlement, the investor is subject to the risks associated with such Object of Physical Settlement which may involve a risk of loss and the investor may therefore even suffer a total loss.

Dependence of payments on the performance of the underlying(s)

The Final Terms for a particular issue of Securities may provide that the obligations of the Issuer under the Securities and thus the value of the Securities depend on the performance of the underlying(s). As a general rule, i.e. without taking into account the specific characteristics of the Securities, the influence of foreign exchange rates, if any, or other factors which may be relevant for the formation of the price of the Securities, the Securities will decrease in value when the price of the underlying(s) moves in an adverse direction for the investor. Except in case of Securities with a reverse structure, an adverse performance of one or more underlying(s) may cause an investor which has purchased a Security at the initial sales price and holds such Security continuously until redemption by the Issuer, to be in the same economic position (disregarding the agio, if any, and any transaction expenses) as if this investor had made a direct investment in the relevant underlying(s) (without taking into account dividend payments or other benefits arising from the holding of the relevant underlying(s), if any). Conversely, in case of Securities with a reverse structure, an increase in the price of one or more underlying(s) may result in a decrease in value of the Securities. This may result in losses, including a total loss of the invested capital (including any transaction expenses).

No claim against the issuer of an underlying

A Security will not represent a claim against the issuer of any underlying on which the redemption amount and/or interest payable or amount of assets deliverable in respect of the Securities is dependent. In the event that the payments and/or deliveries upon redemption of the Securities by the Issuer are less than the issue price of the Securities, a holder of the Securities will not have recourse to the issuer of the underlying.

No interest payments or dividends

A particular issue of Securities may not provide for periodic interest payments or other distributions during the term of the Securities. Potential investors should be aware that these Securities will not generate a current income. Possible losses in the value of the Securities can therefore not be compensated by any other income from the Securities.

Additional risks concerning the type of the Securities may be set forth in the relevant Final Terms, if appropriate.

RISK FACTORS RELATING TO THE UNDERLYING(S)

The value of respective underlying(s) depends on a number of interrelated factors, including economic, financial and political events beyond the Issuer's control. Additionally, if the formula(e) used to determine the amount of principal, premium and/or interest payable or the delivery obligations with respect to Structured Notes or Certificates, as the case may be, contains a participation rate or leverage factor, the effect of any change in the respective underlying(s) will be increased. The historical development of the respective underlying(s) should not be taken as an indication of future performance of such underlying(s) during the term of any Structured Note or Certificate. Additionally, there may be regulatory and other ramifications associated with the ownership by certain investors of certain Structured Notes or Certificates.

Particular risks of Securities with indices or baskets of indices as underlying

Securities that are linked to one or several indices or a basket of indices involve, in particular, the following risks:

Dependency on the value of the index components

The respective value of an index is calculated on the basis of the value of its components. Changes in the composition of an index as well as factors that (may) influence the value of the components also influence the value of the relevant index and can thus influence the yield from an investment in the Securities. Fluctuations in the value of one component of an index may be compensated or aggravated by fluctuations in the value of another component. Historical performance of the components does not represent any guarantee of future performance. An index used as an underlying may not, in certain circumstances, be maintained for the entire term of the Securities.

An index may reflect the performance of assets of some countries or some industries only. Therefore, the value of the relevant index depends on the development of the index components of individual countries or industries. Even if more than just a few countries or industries are represented, it is still possible that the industries contained in the relevant index are weighted unevenly. This means that in case of an unfavourable development in one industry contained in the relevant index, the index may be affected disproportionately by this adverse development.

Investors should note that the selection of an index is not based on the expectations or estimates of the Issuer or the Calculation Agent in respect of the future performance of the selected index. Investors should thus make their own estimates in respect of the future performance of the components of an index and the index itself on the basis of their own knowledge and sources of information.

Price index – dividends are not taken into account

The Final Terms may provide that payments under the Securities are dependent on the performance of an index which is a price index. Contrary to performance indices - dividends paid out do not cause an increase in the level of a price index. Investors thus do not participate in any dividends or other distributions on the shares contained in the price index.

No influence of the Issuer

As a general rule, the Issuer has no influence on the composition and performance of an underlying index or the performance of its components. A change in composition may have an adverse effect on the value of the Securities.

No liability of the index sponsor

Where the Issuer is not the index sponsor of the relevant index, Securities based on an index as underlying are generally not sponsored or otherwise supported by any index sponsor, and the relevant index is composed and calculated by the respective index sponsor without any account being taken of the Issuer's or the interests of the holder's of the Securities. In such case, the index sponsors does not assume any obligation or liability in respect of the issue, sale or trading of the Securities.

No recognised financial indices, no independent third party

The Securities may be linked to one or more indices which are not recognised financial indexes but indices that have been created for the issuance of the relevant Security. The index sponsor of such indices might not be independent from the Issuer and may thus favour the interests of the Issuer over the interests of the holder of the Securities.

Currency risks

The index components may be denominated or listed in a different currency or be exposed to significant influences from another currency than the currency in which the Securities are denominated. The redemption amount and the value of the Securities during their term may therefore depend on one or more other currencies.

Composition fees

Certain fees, costs, commissions or other charges for composition and calculation may be deducted when calculating the value of an index on the basis of the value of its individual components. As a result, the performance of the individual index components is not acknowledged in full when calculating the performance of the respective index, but is reduced by the amount of such fees, costs, commissions and other charges, and these may to some extent erode any positive performance displayed by the individual components. It should also be noted that such costs may well also be incurred if the index returns negative performance.

Publication of the index composition

Even if the composition of the relevant indices is to be published on a website or in other media specified in the Final Terms, the composition shown might not always be the current composition of the respective relevant index because the posting of the updated composition of the respective index on the website might be delayed considerably, sometimes even by several months.

Particular risks of Securities with shares or baskets of shares as underlying

Shares are associated with particular risks, such as the risk that the respective company will be rendered insolvent, the risk that the share price will fluctuate or risks relating to dividends, over which the Issuer has no control. The performance of the shares depends to a very significant extent on developments on the capital markets, which in turn depend on the general global economic situation and more specific economic and political conditions. Shares in companies with low to medium market capitalisation may be subject to even higher risks (e.g. relating to their volatility or insolvency) than is the case for shares in larger companies. Moreover, shares in companies with low capitalisation may be extremely illiquid as a result of low trading volumes.

Shares of companies with its statutory seat or with significant business operations in countries with limited certainty of law are subject to additional risks such as, for instance, government interventions or nationalisation which may lead to a total or partial loss of the invested capital or of access to the

capital invested in such country. The realisation of such risks may also lead to a total or partial loss of the invested capital for holders of Securities linked to such shares.

Holders of Securities that are linked to share prices do, contrary to investors which directly invest in the shares, not receive dividends or other distributions payable to the holders of the underlying shares.

Particular risks of Securities with bonds as underlying

Investors in Securities linked to a bond or to various bonds are, in addition to the credit risk of Commerzbank AG as Issuer of the Securities, exposed to the credit risk of the issuers of such underlying bond(s). In the event that an issuer of an underlying bond does not punctually perform its obligations under the bonds or if such an issuer becomes insolvent this may lead to a total loss of the invested capital in the Securities linked to such bond. In addition, investors should be aware that a deterioration in the creditworthiness of the issuer of an underlying bond during the term of the Securities may lead to significant price losses in the secondary market for the Securities.

Particular risks of Securities with commodities as underlying

Investors in Securities linked to commodities are exposed to significant price risks as prices of commodities are subject to great fluctuations. The prices of commodities are influences by a number of factors, including, inter alia, the following factors:

Cartels and regulatory changes

A number of producers or producing countries of commodities have formed organizations or cartels to regulate supply and therefore influence prices.

Trading in commodities is also subject to certain regulations imposed by supervisory authorities or markets. Changes to these regulations may affect the price development.

Cyclical supply and demand behaviour

Agricultural commodities are produced at a particular time of the year but are in demand throughout the year. In contrast energy is produced without interruption, even through it is mainly required during cold or very hot times of the year. This cyclical supply and demand pattern may lead to strong price fluctuations.

Direct investment costs

Direct investments in commodities are associated with costs for storage, insurance and taxes. In addition, no interest or dividends are paid on commodities. The overall yield on commodities is influenced by these factors. *Inflation and deflation*

The general development of prices may have a strong effect on the price development of commodities.

Liquidity

Many markets of commodities are not very liquid and may therefore not be able to react rapidly and sufficiently to changes in supply and demand. In case of low liquidity, speculative investments by individual market participants may lead to price distortions.

Political risks

Commodities are frequently produced in emerging markets and subject to demand from industrialized nations. This supply demand pattern holds political risks which may have a significant impact on prices of commodities.

Weather and natural disasters

Unfavourable weather conditions may have a negative effect on the supply of specific commodities for an entire year. A crisis of supply of this sort may lead to strong and incalculable price fluctuations.

Particular risks of Securities with funds or baskets of funds as underlying

Securities linked to one or more funds or a basket of funds involve, in particular, the following risks:

Fees

The performance of the Securities may be affected by fees which can arise at various levels. At the level of the fund itself, fees arise on a regular basis, for instance in the form of administration fees. Additional fees and expenses may arise and be charged due to the contracting of third parties for services in connection with the management of the fund.

At the level of the investments made by the fund, fees can arise, for instance when an investment is made in other funds or other investment vehicles, which adversely affect the performance of such investments, and thus also the value of the fund assets.

In case of diversified investments, performance-based fees may arise with regard to individual investments, even though a loss may have been incurred when looking at all investments together.

Illiquid investments

Underlying funds may invest in assets which are illiquid or subject to a minimum holding period. As a result, it may be difficult for the fund to sell such assets at all or at a reasonable price when it is required to sell them to generate liquidity, in particular in the case that investors want to redeem their units in the relevant fund. The fund may suffer substantial losses when it cannot sell illiquid assets or if it can only sell the assets below a reasonable price. This may negatively affect the value of the Securities.

Investments in illiquid assets may also lead to difficulties in calculating the net asset value of the fund which may result in postponements of payouts under the Securities.

Delayed NAV publication

A fund to which the Securities may be linked to may publish the net asset value with a delay. This may result in a postponement of the payouts under the Securities and may have adverse effects on the value of the Securities.

Dissolution of a fund

It cannot be excluded that during the term of the Securities an underlying fund may be dissolved. In the event of a dissolution of a fund the Issuer or the Calculation Agent may be entitled to make adjustments to the Securities in accordance with the terms and conditions which may include an early redemption of the Securities or a substitution of the underlying fund.

Postponement or suspension of redemptions

An underlying fund may redeem no or only a limited quantity of units on the scheduled times that are relevant for the calculation of the payouts under the Securities. This can result in a postponement of the payouts under the Securities and may negatively affect the value of the Securities.

Concentration on certain countries, industries or investment classes

An underlying fund may concentrate its investments on assets relating to certain countries, industries or asset classes. This may lead to fluctuations in value that are higher and occur within a shorter period of time than it would be if the risks were more diversified between industries, regions and countries.

Currency risks

The Securities may be linked to funds which are denominated in another currency than the currency in which the Securities are denominated or to funds which invest in assets that are denominated in another currency. Investors may therefore be subject to a significant currency risk.

Markets with limited certainty of law

Funds that invest in markets with limited certainty of law are subject to certain risks such as, for instance, government interventions which lead to a total or partial loss of the invested capital or of access to the capital invested there. These markets may not be regulated as reliably as others.

Effects of regulatory framework conditions

Funds might not be subject to any regulation or may invest in investment vehicles which are not subject to any regulation. Conversely, the introduction of regulation of a previously unregulated fund may create significant disadvantages for such funds.

Securities with hedge funds as underlying

Securities which are linked to units in funds that apply alternative investment strategies with special risks (hedge funds) (or, likewise an index which represents a hedge fund) are exposed to high risks. Such risks depend on the strategy and underlying investments of the relevant hedge fund and include, inter alia, insufficient transparency, lack of investment restrictions, concentration of risks, leverage, use of derivatives, short selling and trading with illiquid instruments.

Additional risks concerning the underlying(s) may be set forth in the relevant Final Terms, if appropriate.

RISK FACTORS RELATING TO COMMERZBANK AKTIENGESELLSCHAFT

Strategic Risks

In acquiring Dresdner Bank and merging it with and into Commerzbank, the Bank has set itself the objective of establishing the Group for the long term as one of the leading German banks and creating a platform to unlock further growth potential, especially in Germany. In particular, the Bank aims to make the Group one of the leading main banks for private and corporate customers in Germany. However, the ongoing deterioration in economic conditions in the Group's core markets, i.e., particularly in Germany and Central and Eastern Europe, and worsening capital market conditions may prevent this goal from being achieved and the new strategic orientation from being implemented. Should the Group fail to implement the strategic plans it has announced, or fail to do so in full, or if the costs associated with the implementation of these plans were to exceed the Bank's expectations, the Group's business, results of operations and financial condition could be materially adversely affected.

The German banking sector is fiercely competitive. It is frequently waged via prices and conditions, resulting in margins that are commercially unattractive or inappropriate to the level of risk. In retail banking there exists a to some extent extensive competition. This may intensify in the future as many competitors are increasing their focus on retail banking at the expense of their core business on the back of the financial market crisis. In addition, the banks seek to reduce their dependency on the interbank market by increasing the share of their funding obtained from retail deposits. This development may also lead to even more intense competition.

In the corporate client business, and also in the area of investment banking, German banks are competing with a range of foreign providers that have considerably expanded their footprint on the German market in the past few years, even though there has recently been talk of foreign banks adopting a more defensive business policy. On account of this intense competition, it is not possible to generate commercially attractive margins in some segments or subsegments of the market. In response to this situation, some competitors in the corporate client business do not always take

sufficient account of the default risk that lending entails (risk-adjusted pricing). As a result, there is a risk at present that competition in the sector will continue to intensify.

Should the Group fail to offer its products and services on competitive terms while continuing to generate margins that at least compensate for the costs and risks associated with its business activities, its business, results of operations and financial condition could be materially adversely affected.

The Group is exposed to liquidity risk, i.e., the risk of being unable to meet its current and future payment obligations or of being unable to fulfill such obligations on time. Liquidity risk can take various forms. For example, the Group may be unable to meet its payment obligations on a particular day and may have to obtain liquidity from the market at short notice and on expensive terms or may even fail to obtain liquidity. There is also a risk that deposits are withdrawn prematurely or that lending commitments are unexpectedly taken up. Difficulties of this nature may be triggered by circumstances that are unrelated to the Group's business and are outside of its control (for example, by negative developments in the financial markets in relation to the Group's competitors). Moreover, larger-scale losses, rating changes, a general decline in business activity in the financial sector, regulatory measures, serious misconduct by employees, unlawful actions and a wide range of other reasons may have an adverse impact on the Group's business performance and its future prospects and therefore entail material adverse implications for the Group's business, results of operations and financial condition.

The financial market crisis has resulted in downside pressure on banks' share prices and creditworthiness, in many cases irrespective of their financial strength, and has had a similar effect on other capital markets participants. If the current market dislocation continued or became worse, this could restrict the Group's access to the capital markets and limit its ability to obtain funding on acceptable terms and meet the capital requirements prescribed under supervisory provisions. Although the Financial Market Stabilization Fund (Sonderfonds Finanzmarktstabilisierung, the "SoFFin") provided the Bank with two silent participations of $\in 8.2$ billion each and received a stake of 25.0% plus one share in the Bank from the capital increase against cash contributions approved by resolution of the Annual General Meeting held on May 16, 2009, the possibility that additional stabilization measures will be required in future cannot be ruled out. Should this prove to be the case, the Group might be forced to dispose of assets held by it for less than their book value and to rein in its business activities. Measures of this nature could have a material adverse impact on the Group's business, results of operations and financial condition.

The rating agencies Standard & Poor's, Moody's and Fitch Ratings perform creditworthiness assessments to decide whether a potential borrower will in future be in a position to meet its contractually agreed credit obligations. A key element of the rating awarded is the rating agency's assessment of the borrower's business, results of operations and financial condition. Commerzbank's rating is an important comparative element in competition with other banks. In particular, it has a major influence on the ratings of its main subsidiaries. A downgrade or even the possibility of a downgrade in Commerzbank's rating or that of one of its subsidiaries could also have a detrimental impact on the bank's relationship with its customers and on sales of products and services by the company in question. A rating downgrade would therefore have negative implications for the Group's costs with regard to procuring equity and debt capital and could result in new liabilities arising or existing liabilities being accelerated for repayment if such liabilities depended on a certain rating being maintained. Furthermore, it is possible that following a rating downgrade the Group might be required to furnish additional collateral in connection with rating-dependent collateral agreements for derivative transactions. If the rating of Commerzbank or one of its subsidiaries were downgraded to below the four highest rating levels, the Bank's operations or those of the subsidiary concerned and, concomitantly, the funding costs of all Group companies could be materially adversely affected. This, in turn, could materially adversely impact the Group's business, results of operations and financial condition.

On the basis of the statutes of the Deposit Protection Fund of the Association of German Banks (*Einlagensicherungsfonds des Bundesverbands deutscher Banken e.V.*) (the "Deposit Protection Fund"), Commerzbank has furnished a declaration of indemnification to the Deposit Protection Fund for a number of its associates that are members of the Deposit Protection Fund (comdirect bank Aktiengesellschaft ("comdirect bank"), Eurohypo, the European Bank for Fund Services ("ebase"),

Deutsche Schiffsbank AG ("Deutsche Schiffsbank") and Reuschel & Co. KG ("Reuschel")). According to this declaration, the Bank has undertaken to indemnify the fund against any losses it incurs in providing assistance to one of the aforementioned companies. Any intervention by the Deposit Protection Fund to support a subsidiary of Commerzbank could therefore have a material adverse effect on the Group's business, results of operations and financial condition. Moreover, any rescue measures taken by the Deposit Protection Fund could result in sustained reputational damage to the Group.

Risks arising from the Integration of the Former Dresdner Bank

The Bank expects the integration of the former Dresdner Bank into the Group to unlock substantial synergetic effects (such as an improvement in the Group's risk position through diversification or income and cost synergies). However, these effects may be smaller or be realized at a later date than expected. Moreover, the integration project is a complex and time-consuming enterprise which will tie up senior resources at the Group for a long period. This may result in other areas not being managed to the extent required, which could mean that ongoing business activities suffer. Preparing and implementing the integration project entails a large number of decision-making processes, which can cause unease among staff. The integration of Dresdner Bank into the Group also involves significant costs and investment (especially in connection with standardizing IT systems, realizing planned headcount reductions and implementing a new, uniform corporate image). These costs and investments could erode the Group's operating profits and its return on equity. Furthermore, unexpected risks and problems may arise that the Board of Managing Directors cannot currently foresee or evaluate. If these risks or problems were to arise, they could make the integration of Dresdner Bank into the Group more difficult and, in particular, result in an unplanned increase in the cost of the integration process. Each of these factors could have material adverse implications for the Group's business, results of operations and financial condition.

The Group's strategy envisages an adjustment of the size of the investment banking business (based, e.g., on risk-weighted assets) in line with the Group's revised business model. The aim is to establish a risk-averse investment banking business with an enhanced cost/income ratio. However, implementing this strategy could take longer than scheduled and entail higher costs than expected. Specific difficulties may arise from the riskier portfolios such as those containing credit derivatives and equity derivatives. In addition, it cannot be ruled out that, even if the strategy is implemented successfully, the aim of sustained, stable profitability will not be achieved.

In connection with the Transaction a goodwill of €0.8 billion was accounted. In the 2009 fiscal year and in subsequent years, these assets will be tested with respect to their future economic benefits based on the underlying cash-generating units no less frequently than at each balance sheet date. In this process, the carrying amount of the cash-generating units (including the attributed goodwill) will be compared with the recoverable amount. If there are objective indications that the economic benefits originally identified can no longer be realized, an impairment charge must be taken. If an impairment review on a future balance sheet date results in a significant impairment of the goodwill or trademark rights recognized on the balance sheet, the Group's business, results of operations and financial condition could be materially adversely affected.

As part of the acquisition of Dresdner Bank by Allianz and the disposal of the cominvest group to Allianz Global Investors Kapitalanlagegesellschaft mbH ("AGI"), a long-term sales partnership was agreed between the Group and Allianz in respect of the sale and distribution of asset management and insurance products. However, as a result of the financial market crisis, there may be structural changes in customers' demand behavior. In addition, changes in the regulatory and tax framework may affect the relative appeal of investment and retirement products and have implications for their sales. In the event that these changes occur, adverse effects on the sale of asset management and insurance products cannot be ruled out. As a consequence, actual business performance could lag behind plans. This, in turn, would result in a reduction in the Group's commission income and could have a material adverse impact on its business, results of operations and financial condition.

There is a risk that the customers of what the former Dresdner Bank may not remain customers of the Group in the long term. It cannot be ruled out that the customer base transferred to the Group by the former Dresdner Bank in connection with the Transaction will not generate the income expected by the Group over the long term. In particular, following the integration of the former Dresdner Bank into the

Group, there is a risk that the customer base will shrink due to customer defections. This could have a material adverse effect on the Group's business, results of operations and financial condition.

Credit Risks

The Group is subject to credit risks, especially creditworthiness and counterparty risks, arising from the credit business with customers and banks, the credit substitution business (i.e., transactions involving structured credit products), financial instruments in the investment portfolio (such as bonds issued by industrials, banks, insurance companies and governments), other financial instruments and derivative transactions. The Group defines credit risks as risks from possible losses in value that may be caused by changes in a business partner's creditworthiness or default on the part of a business partner (e.g., due to insolvency). In addition to risks relating to creditworthiness and default, subcategories of credit risks include settlement risks, counterparty risks and country risks. A deterioration in borrowers' economic situation, defaults and impairments on collateral provided may necessitate increased risk provisions to cover acute and latent credit default risks and/or heightened capital adequacy requirements for the Group due to higher risk-weighted assets.

Furthermore, the Group may be exposed to additional provisioning charges, especially in respect of financing leveraged buyout ("LBO")¹ transactions, the shipping portfolio, the Central and Eastern Europe segment or other parts of the portfolio. Specifically, the global recession is expected to necessitate an increase in risk provisions for loans to small and medium-sized enterprises.

If any or all of the risks described above arose, this could have material adverse implications for the Group's business, results of operations and financial condition.

A substantial portion of the Group's assets and liabilities comprises financial instruments that have to be recognized at fair value in the Bank's consolidated balance sheet. This also applies to the Group's holdings that are not part of the portfolio of instruments with subprime exposure and other structured financial instruments. For specific risks relating to these portfolios please see "Risks arising from Structured Credit Products".

For many financial instruments there are no objective market prices. In these cases, the fair value is calculated on the basis of the valuation methods appropriate to the instrument in question. The application of valuation methods to determine the fair value necessitates assumptions and estimates which depend on, among other factors, the characteristics of the respective instrument and the complexity and liquidity of the underlying market. Examples of necessary decisions relate to the selection of modeling procedures and model parameters. If individual assumptions or estimates change owing to negative market trends or other reasons, revaluations of the instrument in question may result in significant adjustments to the fair value, which could entail considerable losses.

Furthermore, it should be noted that any loss in connection with adjustments to the fair value of an asset or liability are netted against any profits from related risk-hedging transactions. However, such profits are latent until the transaction is completed, and losses may be incurred in future periods, due for example to a deterioration in the contracting partner's creditworthiness. Such losses would offset the gains reported in full or in part. Even though these losses do not necessarily result from changes in the fair value of the underlying asset, they could have material adverse implications for the Group's business, results of operations and financial condition.

To a large degree, the commercial success of the real estate finance operations of Eurohypo Aktiengesellschaft ("Eurohypo") depends on trends in the property markets, which recently have shown a high degree of uncertainty. In the real estate finance business, the risk of counterparty default not only includes credit risk, but also collateral risk, which primarily comprises the possibility of a decrease in the value of the collateral provided. As a consequence of the financial market crisis and the economic slump, the market values of many properties have been subject to considerable fluctuations for some time now and have fallen sharply in some cases, which has had a correspondingly negative impact on Eurohypo's business activities. Factors that can have a sustained

¹ Leveraged buyout means the takeover of a company financed with a (sometimes) high level of debt and only a small amount of equity. Principal and interest are paid from the cash flow of the target company or the proceeds of the sale on exit.

influence on the real estate market include the relationship between the supply of commercial properties and the demand for them, construction delays and defects, legacy issues and ground contamination, the availability of tenants, investment behavior and general cyclical fluctuations on the property market. The Bank has concluded a control and profit transfer agreement with Eurohypo in which it has undertaken, among other commitments, to offset any losses incurred by Eurohypo. The risk of volatile real estate prices could therefore have a material adverse effect on the Group's business, results of operations and financial condition.

Risks arising from Structured Credit Products

Since the second half of 2007, the international financial markets have been suffering from the major impact of the subprime crisis, which originated in the U.S. market for subprime mortgage loans (i.e., generally variable-rate mortgages issued to borrowers with inadequate credit histories), and the after-effects of this crisis. The originating banks regularly used what were in some cases complex financial instruments (structured credit products) to transfer, either directly or using special investment vehicles ("SIVs"), the risks arising from these loans to the international capital markets. For some time, the financial instruments were considered by investors to be attractive capital investments, not least because of the good ratings they were awarded by the ratings agencies.

After the financial market crisis had initially spread to a number of banks that specialized in credit products with subprime exposure, and investment banks, hedge funds and also bond and credit insurers (especially monoline insurers) found themselves in difficulty or even became insolvent in some instances, the crisis took a major turn for the worse in autumn 2008 and led to among other things significant restructuring especially of U.S. banks, often in conjunction with governmental supportive measures. Like the U.S. banks also European banks were highly affected by the intensified impacts of the financial crisis and fell into financial and in some cases existential distress which they could often only overcome with governmental stabilizing measures.

Refinancing of banks still (also in the interbank market) suffers because of a lack of confidence not least due to the complexity of a lot of structured financial products with and without subprime exposure to which there is insufficient transparency as to the dimension of risks. Even government bonds and bonds from top-rated issuers occasionally reacted with changes in market value, significant in some cases.

The crisis on the financial markets also led to a considerable increase in the volatility of financial instruments' market values. This had an impact on trading profits and net investment income, which were hit hard by valuation losses in the Group's ABS² portfolio. Heightened volatility also makes risk management more difficult, as it makes the results of the model calculations and stress tests used for this purpose less reliable. In addition, greater volatility makes it more expensive to hedge risks.

The financial market crisis has therefore weighed heavily on the Group's business, results of operations and financial condition, and it should be assumed that the crisis will continue to give rise to material adverse consequences for the Group in future.

To a large extent, demand for the Group's products and services depends on general economic trends. In the Private Customers segment, declining corporate valuations prompt customers to switch to lower-risk investment options, which generally only generate relatively low sales commissions. In the *Mittelstandsbank*, Central and Eastern Europe and Corporates & Markets segments, the economic downswing is having a direct impact on the demand for credit from companies. Because a weak economic environment also makes corporate insolvencies and therefore credit defaults more likely, higher provisions for possible loan losses are required. In addition, because of lower company valuations, the deteriorating outlook for corporate earnings results in less interest in mergers and acquisitions and capital market transactions such as initial public offerings, capital increases or takeovers, and the proceeds from advisory and placement business decline accordingly. Should the

² ABS or Asset-backed securities are securities or certificates of indebtedness representing claims against a special purpose vehicle set up solely for the purpose of an ABS transaction. The claims are backed by a portfolio of claims, which are transferred to the special purpose vehicle and are for the benefit of the holders of the asset-backed securities as collateral for the liabilities.

financial market crisis continue, there could be more insolvencies at banks, insurance companies or other corporations, prompting further deterioration in the overall economic environment. This could exacerbate the risks described. Thus, the economic downturn has had a material adverse effect on the Group's business, results of operations and financial condition, and additional pressure is expected.

Because the markets for securities related to U.S. residential mortgages have been increasingly illiquid since July 2007, certain categories of securities held by the Group, including securities that were awarded very good ratings by the rating agencies, have lost a large part of their value over this period.

The Group is subject to the risk of impairments and losses in respect of both financial instruments with subprime exposure and other structured financial instruments, and this risk will remain until market sentiment and the liquidity of these products experience a material and sustained improvement. The Group's holdings of structured financial instruments with and without subprime exposure, in particular structured credit products as well as conduits³, which primarily comprise liquidity facilities/backup lines in favor of the conduits administered by the Group. Most of the securitized asset portfolios underlying the conduits stem from customers, with a smaller portion from the securitization of the Bank's own loan receivables within the scope of active credit risk management. These asset portfolios are highly diversified and do not include any of the subprime RMBS⁴ instruments affected by the crisis.

The Group continues to hold substantial positions in financial instruments with subprime exposure as well as other structured instruments. In the Group's opinion, the markets for these securities will be subject to liquidity bottlenecks for the foreseeable future. At present, it is not possible to forecast how long these bottlenecks will persist and whether they might even become more severe. It is, therefore, certainly possible that the Group will incur further significant charges upon the disposal of financial instruments with subprime exposure and other structured instruments, or in the event of defaults on these instruments, liquidity bottlenecks in the relevant markets or other developments relevant from a valuation perspective.

Should the Group no longer be in a position to use valuation models to calculate the fair value of financial instruments with subprime exposure and other structured instruments, future write-downs and/or losses could prove to be even greater than in the past. A decline in the fair value of an asset or an increase in the fair value of a liability gives rise to a corresponding charge in the income statement. Depending on the extent of the change in value, the level of this charge could be significant and entail a substantial loss. Calculating the fair value of financial instruments with subprime exposure or other structured instruments on the basis of actual market or indicative prices could result in far lower fair values in future if market prices reach substantially lower levels than those of model prices. Prices could reach a very low level if portfolios of structured products were sold at a very large discount to market values. If amendments were made to – or if there were changes in the interpretation of – the relevant accounting standards, the regulatory framework or the rating agencies' criteria, such changes could compel the Group to alter its existing valuation models in respect of structured financial instruments with and without subprime exposure, which would result in concomitant changes to the respective fair values.

The Portfolio Restructuring Unit (PRU) is tasked with the active and transparent management and reduction of the portfolios and structured bonds within the segment that have been earmarked for downsizing. However, in light of the high volatility on the markets, there is a risk of further material impairments and also of losses from disposals.

If any of the risks described above arose, the Group's business, results of operations and financial condition could be materially adversely affected.

In large parts of its business, the Group is exposed to market liquidity risks. Liquidity is scarce on a number of markets. In the current economic environment, this is especially true of those markets

³ Conduits are special-purpose vehicles whose only corporate purpose is to issue securities to purchase receivables as part of an asset securitization.

⁴ RMBS or residential mortgage-backed securities are asset-backed securities where the receivables securitized are real estate loans secured by mortgages on residential property.

which are directly or indirectly related to the US residential mortgage market. Furthermore, in the event of a long-term downturn normally liquid markets will also see a considerable decline in liquidity. However, the same risk can also arise in other markets. In illiquid markets, it is possible that the Group will find it difficult to dispose of assets at short notice without a discount or to engage in corresponding hedging transactions. This could have a material adverse impact on the Group's business, results of operations and financial condition.

In connection with OTC derivatives in particular (including credit default swaps ("CDS")) the Group is subject to default risks vis-à-vis bond and credit insurers, including monoline insurance companies and credit derivative product companies ("CDPCs"). CDS are recognized at fair value in the balance sheet. The position of the monoline insurers and CDPCs is still considered to be critical on account of rating downgrades, the need to raise fresh capital on the market and possible legal and regulatory changes. Should the financial position of the bond and credit insurers in general and the monoline insurers and CDPCs in particular continue to deteriorate, the Group could be forced to make additional value adjustments to the CDS concluded with these companies and its receivables from similar transactions, which could have a material adverse effect on its business, results of operations and financial condition.

Market Risks

Since July 2007, the price of shares and fund units has been falling due to, among other factors, negative sentiment on the financial markets. Should this trend continue, this could result in further devaluation of the shares and fund units held in the Group's financial investment and trading portfolio. If this valuation risk were to materialize, it could have a material adverse effect on the Group's business, results of operations and financial condition.

The Group is subject to interest rate risk to the extent that asset-side and liability-side positions in the various maturity ranges do not match the amount or the interest rate, which gives rise to open assetside and liability-side interest rate positions. For open liability-side fixed interest positions, falling market interest rates result in a decline in the market value of the liability-side positions and may entail a decrease in the interest margin. For open asset-side fixed interest positions, rising market interest rates result in a decline in the market values of the asset-side positions and may entail a decrease in the interest margin. In the case of variable-rate products, interest rate changes do not entail any market value risk; however, changes to market interest rates lead to a change in interest expense or income. If the Group is not successful in managing its open interest positions efficiently in line with market trends and the predetermined limits, this could have material adverse implications for the Group's profitability, its risk-bearing capacity and its core capital and total capital ratios. If one or more of the aforementioned risks were to materialize, this could have a material adverse effect on the Group's business, results of operations and financial condition.

The uncertainty on the financial markets triggered by the subprime crisis and the scarcity of liquidity have caused spreads, the yield differentials versus risk-free investments, to widen sharply. There has been a decline, significant in some cases, in the market values of German government bonds due to temporary upheaval in the yield curve, and in other government and top-rated corporate bonds owing to widening spreads. If widening of the spreads continued or even accelerated, this would lead to a further decline in market values and therefore a loss in the net present value of outstanding bonds and corresponding additional pressure on the revaluation reserve. Additional net present value losses in the financial investment portfolio could have a material adverse impact on the Group's business, results of operations and financial condition.

The Group's subsidiaries resident outside of the eurozone prepare their individual financial statements in foreign currency. Currency fluctuations between the euro and the respective local currencies can mean that during conversion of positions in the non-consolidated financial statements that are not denominated in euro for inclusion in the consolidated financial statements, different exchange rates are applied from those used in previous reporting periods and that these conversion differences weigh on the Group's equity capital. In addition, the Bank and other Group companies resident in the eurozone engage in transactions that are not denominated in euros. The relative appreciation or depreciation of the respective foreign currency versus the euro can lead to correspondingly higher costs or lower income from these foreign currency transactions. To the extent this risk is not hedged, the Group's business, results of operations and financial condition could be materially adversely affected.

In its operating business, the Group is exposed to market price risks arising from trading in commodity-related derivatives, certificates and spot transactions. The underlying commodities are principally precious metals, industrial metals, energy, agricultural products and live cattle. The prices of these financial instruments can rise or fall due to a wide range of factors, including general economic conditions, market trends, exchange rate movements and changes in the legal and political framework. If positions are not fully hedged against these risks, losses may arise which could have a material adverse impact on the Group's business, results of operations and financial condition.

The Group is engaged in the structuring and trading of financial derivatives. Derivatives are subject to price fluctuations due to volatility changes (i.e., changes in the fluctuation range) of the instruments underlying the prices (such as shares, currencies, interest rates and commodities). To the extent derivatives are linked to two underlying instruments or to a portfolio of underlying instruments (e.g., two currencies or a portfolio of shares), the prices of these derivatives are also subject to what are known as correlation fluctuations. Correlation is a statistical measure of the linear interaction between two underlying instruments will move in step. For example, correlation generally increases in sharply rising or falling stock markets. If derivative positions are not hedged against volatility changes or correlation fluctuations, losses may arise which could have a material adverse impact on the Group's business, results of operations and financial condition.

The Group makes use of a range of instruments and strategies to hedge against market risks. If these instruments and strategies prove ineffective or only partially effective, the Group may suffer losses. Many of the risk-hedging strategies that the Group deploys are based on historical data. For example, if the Group holds a particular asset, a possible strategy for hedging the risks arising from this asset is to short-sell another asset, which, on the basis of historical observations, is likely to exhibit a trend inversely correlated with that of the asset being hedged. However, it is possible that this and other risk-hedging strategies are only partially successful or are not effective in every conceivable market environment or in respect of every conceivable risk. Unforeseen market developments such as the dramatic deterioration in the U.S. residential mortgage market that occurred in July 2007 may significantly reduce the effectiveness of the measures taken by the Group to hedge risks. Gains and losses from ineffective risk-hedging measures may heighten the volatility of the financial results achieved by the Group and could therefore have a material adverse effect on the Group's business, results of operations and financial condition.

Risks from Equity Investment Stakes

The Group holds various equity investments in listed and unlisted companies. The efficient management of a portfolio of listed and unlisted companies entails high funding costs, which may not be (fully) offset by the dividends obtainable from these associates. Many of the equity investments that the Group holds in large listed companies in Germany and abroad are minority holdings. As a practical matter, this investment structure may make it more difficult for the Group to promptly obtain information required to timely counteract possible undesirable developments. Furthermore, it cannot be ruled out that in future the Group will have to make valuation allowances with respect to its portfolio of equity investments or that the Group will not be successful in disposing of its equity investments via the stock market or in off-exchange transactions at appropriate prices. Any of these risks could have a material adverse effect on the Group's business, results of operations and financial condition.

Risks arising from Pension Obligations

Commerzbank and its subsidiaries have various direct and indirect pension obligations towards their current and former staff. These obligations constitute contingent liabilities for accounting purposes, as the precise timing and duration of payout is not confirmed. These obligations therefore entail various risks. In making a commitment to grant direct pension benefits, the Group assumes similar risks as a life insurance company (e.g., fluctuation risk, the risk of sudden changes to the balance sheet, longevity risk, administrative risks, inflation risk, etc.). The assets reserved in the business or in segregated pension funds to meet subsequent pension payments are subject to the risks typically associated with a capital investment. The volume of existing pension obligations may increase on account of judicial rulings and legislation (for example with reference to factors such as equality of treatment, adjustment, non-forfeitability and retirement age). Risks, however, may also arise due to

changes in tax legislation and/or in judicial rulings. Obligations similar to pensions (such as obligations in respect of early retirement, part-time work arrangements for older employees and anniversaries) also carry similar risks. Any of these risks could have a material adverse effect on the Group's business, results of operations and financial condition.

Operational Risks

As part of its normal business activities, the Group conducts a large number of complex transactions in a wide range of jurisdictions and in this connection is exposed to a variety of operational risks. These risks concern, in particular, the possibility of inadequate or erroneous internal and external work processes and systems, regulatory problems, human errors and deliberate legal violations such as fraud. Moreover, it is possible that external events such as natural disasters, terrorist attacks or other exceptional situations could have a highly negative impact on the environment in which the Group operates and thus, indirectly, on the Group's internal processes. Such events may cause the Group to suffer substantial losses and reputational harm. Furthermore, the Group may be forced to make staff redundant, which might have a detrimental impact on the Group's business. The Group endeavors to hedge operational risks by implementing appropriate control processes tailored to its business and the market and regulatory environment in which it operates. Nevertheless, it is possible that these measures prove to be ineffective in relation to particular or all operational risks to which the Group is exposed. Even though the Group endeavors to insure itself against the most significant operational risks, it is not possible to obtain insurance cover for all the operational risks on commercially acceptable terms on the market. Should one, some or all of the risks described in this paragraph arise, the Group's business, results of operations and financial condition could be materially adversely affected.

IT Risks

The type of comprehensive institutional banking carried out by the Group is highly dependent on complex IT systems. IT systems are prone to a range of problems such as computer viruses, damage, other external threats, operational errors and software or hardware errors. The harmonization of the wide variety of IT systems used in the Group to create a standardized IT architecture presents a particular challenge. Furthermore, regular upgrades are required for all IT systems to meet the demands imposed by constant changes in business and supervisory requirements. In particular, compliance with the Basel II requirements has placed major demands on the functionality of the Group's IT systems and will continue to do so in the future. In addition, it is possible that upgrades will not function in the manner required. If these risks were to materialize, the Group's business, results of operations and financial condition could be materially adversely affected.

The use of modern technologies is highly significant to the banking sector and the Group's business. Continuous growth in electronic trading and the introduction of related technologies are changing the manner in which banking business is conducted and are creating new challenges. Securities, forward and option transactions are increasingly being processed electronically. Some of the electronic trading platforms via which these transactions are processed are in competition with the systems currently used by the Group, and it is foreseeable that the expected further penetration of electronic trading platforms will further intensify this competition in future. In addition, because the Group's customers are increasingly using low-cost electronic trading platforms that offer them direct access to the trading markets, this trend could lead to a reduction in the brokerage commissions and margins generated by the Group, which could have material adverse implications for the Group's business, results of operations and financial condition.

Personnel Risks

Across all its business areas, the Group is dependent on its ability to hire highly qualified employees and to retain them for the long term. The Group endeavors to counteract the risk of losing expertise as a result of key employees leaving the Group by taking various actions such as talent, management and career development measures. Despite these measures, it cannot be ruled out that the Group will not succeed in continuing to hire and retain highly qualified employees in future. Should the Group's efforts to hire and retain such staff fail, its business, results of operations and financial condition could be materially adversely affected.

Regulatory, Legal and Reputational Risks

The Group's business activities are regulated and supervised by the central banks and supervisory authorities in the countries in which it operates. In each of these countries, a banking license or at least notification of the national supervisory authorities is required for Commerzbank, its subsidiaries and, from time to time, also its branches and in some cases for the Group in its entirety. The bank regulatory regime in the various countries may change at any time. In the event of changes to the regulatory provisions in one or more countries, additional requirements may be imposed on the regulated entities that limit their ability to operate in certain business areas or even rule out such activities completely. In addition, compliance with changed regulatory requirements may lead to a material increase in the Group's business, results of operations and financial condition.

Given the nature of its business, Commerzbank and its subsidiaries are regularly parties to a variety of judicial, arbitration and regulatory proceedings in Germany and a number of other jurisdictions. Such proceedings are characterized by a large number of uncertainties, and definitive predictions as to their outcome are not possible. Although the Company is not currently aware of any government interventions or investigations, court cases or arbitration proceedings that have been ongoing or completed in the last 12 months (including proceedings which to the Company's knowledge are still pending or could be commenced) and which have, recently have had or in future could have a material impact on the Group's financial situation or profitability, some of the risks associated with such proceedings are difficult to quantify or may not be quantified at all. As a result, it is possible that the losses resulting from pending or potentially imminent proceedings will exceed the provisions made for them, which could have a material adverse effect on the Group's business, results of operations and financial condition.

The data collected by the Group in connection with its business activities are strictly confidential and subject to data protection. The Group has taken a number of measures to protect the data processed and administered in the course of its business activities against misuse. However, it cannot be ruled out that these measures will prove to be inadequate and that the confidentiality of customer data will be breached by employees of the Group or third parties who circumvent the Group's security systems and obtain unauthorized access to these data. This may trigger obligations on the part of the Group to pay damages, which could result in a material deterioration in the Group's business, results of operations and financial condition. In addition, there may be negative implications for the Group's reputation.

The Group is subject to risks in respect of tax audits of previous and future assessment periods and other procedures; changes to tax legislation or judicial rulings on tax matters could have a detrimental impact on the Group's business activities, its business, results of operations and financial condition.

On May 7, 2009, the European Commission declared that the stabilization measures taken up by the Group are, in principle, compatible with the state aid provisions set out in the EU Treaty. However, for competitive reasons, a series of conditions were imposed on the Group. It cannot be ruled out that the Group will be unable to adequately and timely satisfy the conditions imposed by the European Commission. In the event of a breach of the conditions imposed by the European Commission, the Group could be required to repay, at least in part, the government funds received by it. Any of these risks could have a material adverse effect on the Group's business, results of operations and financial condition.

Under U.S. law, the silent participations granted to the Company by the SoFFin and the SoFFin's purchase of a stake in the Company's share capital of 25.0% plus one share could constitute a change of control and result in restrictions on the amount of tax loss carryforwards that may be used each year by the branch in the United States. In this case, the Group's tax burden for each period in which a taxable profit is realize would not be reduced or would only be reduced in part, which could have material adverse implications for the Group's business, results of operations and financial condition. The legal relationships between the Group and its clients are based on standardized contracts and forms prepard for a multitude of business transactions. Individual application problems or errors in such documentation therefore may affect a large number of customer relationships. In light of the ongoing changes in the overall business framework due to new laws and judicial rulings and the

increasing influence of European legislation on national law, it is conceivable that not all the general terms and conditions of business, standard contracts and forms used by the Group comply with the applicable legal requirements at all times and down to the last detail. If application problems or errors arise or if individual contractual provisions or entire contracts are ineffective, this could affect a large number of customer relationships and result in substantial claims for damages or other legal consequences which would be negative for the Group, and could therefore have a material adverse effect on the Group's business, results of operations and financial condition.

The Group is subject to various reputational risks. Reputational risks exist with respect to all business transactions that lower confidence in the Group on the part of the public, customers, business partners, investors or rating agencies. In general, each of the risks described above entails reputational risks. Because of this, as with other non-quantifiable risks, the Group has defined processes and responsibilities that make it possible to identify reputational risks at an early stage and to deliver a response. However, these procedures may prove to be ineffective. If this means that the risks materialize, the Group's business, results of operations and financial condition could be materially adversely affected.

GENERAL INFORMATION

RESPONSIBILITY

Commerzbank Aktiengesellschaft (the "**Issuer**", the "**Bank**" or "**Commerzbank**", together with its consolidated subsidiaries "**Commerzbank Group**" or the "**Group**") with its registered office at Kasierstraße 16 (Kaiserplatz), 60311 Frankfurt am Main, Federal Republic of Germany, accepts responsibility for the information contained in this Base Prospectus. The Issuer hereby declares, that having taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case, the information contained in this Base Prospectus is, to the best of its knowledge, in accordance with the facts and contains no omission likely to affect its import.

IMPORTANT NOTICE ABOUT THIS BASE PROSPECTUS

The Base Prospectus should be read and construed with any supplement thereto and with any other documents incorporated by reference and, in relation to any Series (as defined in the relevant Final Terms) of Notes or Certificates, as the case may be, should be read and construed together with the relevant Final Terms (as defined herein).

No person is or has been authorised by the Issuer to give any information or to make any representation not contained in or not consistent with this Base Prospectus or any other information supplied in connection with the Programme or the Securities and, if given or made, such information or representation must not be relied upon as having been authorised by the Issuer.

Neither this Base Prospectus nor any other information supplied in connection with the Programme or the Securities is intended to provide the basis of any credit or other evaluation and should not be considered as a recommendation by the Issuer that any recipient of this Base Prospectus or any other information supplied in connection with the Programme or the Securities should purchase any of the Securities. Each investor contemplating purchasing Securities should make its own independent investigation of the financial conditions and affairs, and its own appraisal of the creditworthiness of the Issuer and of the Securities. None of this Base Prospectus, any other information supplied in connection with the Programme or the Securities an offer or invitation by or on behalf of the Issuer to any person to subscribe for or to purchase any of the Securities.

The delivery of this Base Prospectus does not at any time imply that the information contained herein concerning the Issuer is correct at any time subsequent to the date hereof or that any other information supplied in connection with the Programme or the Securities is correct as of any time subsequent to the date indicated in the document containing the same.

The distribution of this Base Prospectus and the offer or sale of the Securities may be restricted by law in certain jurisdictions. Persons into whose possession this Base Prospectus or any Securities come must inform themselves about, and observe, any such restrictions. In particular, there are restrictions on the distribution of this Base Prospectus and the offer or sale of the Securities in the European Economic Area and in the United States (see "Offering and Selling Restrictions" on page 140).

The Issuer does not represent that this document may be lawfully distributed, or that the Securities may be lawfully offered, in compliance with any applicable registration or other requirements in any jurisdiction, or pursuant to an exemption available thereunder, or assume any responsibility for facilitating such distribution or offering. In particular, no action has been taken by the Issuer which would permit a public offering of the Securities or distribution of this document in any jurisdiction where action for that purpose is required. Accordingly, the Securities may not be offered or sold, directly or indirectly, and neither this Base Prospectus nor any advertisement or other offering material may be distributed or published in any jurisdiction, except under circumstances which are in compliance with any applicable laws and regulations.

AVAILABILITY OF DOCUMENTS

The Base Prospectus and any supplements thereto will be available for viewing in electronic form at the following website of Commerzbank Aktiengesellschaft (www.commerzbank.com) and copies thereof may be obtained free of charge at the head office of the Issuer, Kaiserstraße 16 (Kaiserplatz), 60311 Frankfurt am Main, Federal Republic of Germany.

Furthermore, for the period of twelve months following the date of this Base Prospectus copies of the Articles of Association and the financial statements and management report of the Issuer for the financial years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007, the Annual Reports of the Commerzbank Group for the financial years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007 as well as the Interim Report of the Commerzbank Group as of 30 September 2009 are available for inspection at the head office of the Issuer, Kaiserstraße 16 (Kaiserplatz), 60311 Frankfurt am Main, Federal Republic of Germany.

INFORMATION RELATING TO THE SECURITIES

Further information relating to a particular issue of Securities such as type and conditions of the Security, issue price, issue date, redemption or interest or other payment calculations or specifications, underlying(s) (if any), market disruption, settlement disruption, adjustments, agents, taxation, specific risk factors, offering, clearing system, ISIN or other national security code(s), listing and any further information are set forth in the relevant Final Terms.

In the case of an increase of Notes and/or Certificates having been offered or listed for the first time on the basis of the base prospectus dated November 17, 2006, the base prospectus dated November 29, 2007 or the base prospectus dated December 10, 2008 (each a "Former Base Prospectus") the terms and conditions and the form of final terms set forth in this Base Prospectus will be replaced by the respective terms and conditions set forth in the respective Former Base Prospectus. To this purpose the Terms and Conditions and the Form of Final Terms from the Former Base Prospectuses are incorporated by reference into, and form part of this, Base Prospectus.

The issue price of the Securities is based on internal pricing models of the Issuer and may be higher than their market value due to commissions and/or other fees relating to the issue and sale of the Securities (including a margin paid to distributors or third parties or retained by the Issuer) as well as amounts relating to the hedging of the Issuer's obligations under such Securities. Any distributor of the Securities receiving any commission or fee or non-monetary benefit may be obligated under applicable law to disclose the existence, nature and amount of such commission, fee or benefit to the investor. Investors should ensure that they have received such information prior to purchasing the Securities from such distributor.

POST-ISSUANCE INFORMATION

In the case of Securities where payments are linked to an underlying or several underlyings, the Issuer will not provide any post-issuance information regarding such underlying.

US INFORMATION

This Base Prospectus is being provided on a confidential basis in the United States to a limited number of "qualified institutional buyers" ("**QIBs**") within the meaning of Rule 144A under the U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "**Securities Act**") in connection with their consideration of the purchase of the Securities being offered hereby. Its use for any other purpose in the United States is not authorised. It may not be copied or reproduced in whole or in part nor may it be distributed or any of its contents disclosed to anyone other than the prospective investors to whom it is originally submitted.

The Securities may be offered or sold within the United States only to QIBs in transactions exempt from registration under the Securities Act. Each U.S. purchaser of the Securities is hereby notified that the offer and sale of any Securities to it is being made in reliance upon the exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities Act provided by one or more of Rule 144A under the Securities Act ("**Rule 144A**"), Regulation D under the Securities Act ("**Regulation D**") and/or Section 4(2) of the Securities Act ("**Section 4(2)**").

Each purchaser or holder of the Securities will be deemed, by its acceptance or purchase of any such Securities, to have made certain representations and agreements intended to restrict the resale or other transfer of such Securities as set out in "Selling Restrictions outside of the European Economic Area" in this Base Prospectus.

NOTICE TO NEW HAMPSHIRE RESIDENTS

NEITHER THE FACT THAT A REGISTRATION STATEMENT OR AN APPLICATION FOR A LICENSE HAS BEEN FILED UNDER CHAPTER 421-B OF THE NEW HAMPSHIRE REVISED STATUTES WITH THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE NOR THE FACT THAT A SECURITY IS EFFECTIVELY REGISTERED OR A PERSON IS LICENSED IN THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE CONSTITUTES A FINDING BY THE SECRETARY OF STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE THAT ANY DOCUMENT FILED UNDER CHAPTER 421-B IS TRUE, COMPLETE AND NOT MISLEADING. NEITHER ANY SUCH FACT NOR THE FACT THAT AN EXEMPTION OR EXCEPTION IS AVAILABLE FOR A SECURITY OR A TRANSACTION MEANS THAT THE SECRETARY OF STATE HAS PASSED IN ANY WAY UPON THE MERITS OR QUALIFICATIONS OF, OR RECOMMENDED OR GIVEN APPROVAL TO, ANY PERSON, SECURITY OR TRANSACTION. IT IS UNLAWFUL TO MAKE, OR CAUSE TO BE MADE, TO ANY PROSPECTIVE PURCHASER, CUSTOMER OR CLIENT ANY REPRESENTATION INCONSISTENT WITH THE PROVISIONS OF THIS PARAGRAPH.

NO OFFER

This Base Prospectus does not, and is not intended to, constitute an offer or invitation by or on behalf of Commerzbank or any agent to any person to subscribe for, purchase or otherwise deal in any Securities nor is it intended to be used for the purpose of or in connection with offers or invitations to subscribe for, purchase or otherwise deal in any Securities.

AVAILABLE INFORMATION

To permit compliance with Rule 144A in connection with any resales or other transfers of Securities that are "restricted securities" as defined in Rule 144(a)(3) of the Securities Act, Commerzbank has undertaken in the terms of the Securities, to furnish, upon the request of a holder of such Securities or any beneficial interest in Securities, to such holder or to a prospective purchaser designated by such holder or beneficial owner, the information required to be delivered under Rule 144A(d)(4) under the Securities Act if, at the time of the request, the Issuer is neither a reporting company under Section 13 or 15(d) of the U.S. Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended ("**U.S. Exchange Act**"), nor exempt from reporting pursuant to Rule 12g3-2(b) under the U.S. Exchange Act. Written requests for such documents should be directed to Commerzbank at its office set out at the end of this Base Prospectus under the heading "Description of the Issuer".

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Base Prospectus (including information incorporated herein by reference) includes "forwardlooking statements" within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act and Section 21E of the U.S. Exchange Act. All statements other than statements of historical facts included in this Base Prospectus, including, without limitation, those regarding Commerzbank's financial position, business strategy, plans and objectives of management for future operations, are forward-looking statements. Such forward looking statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors which may cause the actual results, performance or achievements of Commerzbank, or industry results, to be materially different from any future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. Such forward-looking statements are based on numerous assumptions regarding the present and future business strategies of Commerzbank and the environment in which it will operate in the future. These forward-looking statements speak only as of the date on which they have been made. Commerzbank expressly disclaims any obligation or undertaking to release publicly any updates or revisions to any forward-looking statement contained in this Base Prospectus, or incorporated herein by reference, to reflect any change in the expectations of Commerzbank with regard to such forward-looking statements or any change in events, conditions or circumstances on which any such forward-looking statement is based.

ENFORCEMENT OF LIABILITIES BY INVESTORS IN THE UNITED STATES

As set out in more detail in "Description of the Issuer" in this Base Prospectus, Commerzbank is a stock corporation under German law. All of Commerzbank's directors and executive officers and certain other parties in connection with the transaction may reside outside the United States. All, or a substantial portion, of Commerzbank's assets and the assets of those directors and executive officers may be located outside the United States. As a result, it may be difficult for an investor in the United States to effect service of process within the United States upon Commerzbank or such other parties or to enforce against Commerzbank or such other parties in foreign courts judgments obtained in U.S. courts predicated upon, among other things, the civil liability provisions of the federal securities laws of the United States. There is doubt as to the enforceability in Germany in original actions, or in actions for enforcement of judgments of United States courts, of civil liabilities predicated solely upon federal or state securities laws of the United States.

U.S. TAXATION

The U.S. Federal income tax consequences of certain investments is uncertain as there is no legal authority as to their proper characterization for U.S. Federal income tax purposes. Prospective investors should therefore consult their tax advisors as to Federal, state, local and other tax consequences to the purchase, ownership and disposition of investment products.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS SET 1 (FIXED RATE NOTES)

PROGRAMME TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF NOTES

(1) WHICH BEAR:

- (i) INTEREST AT A FIXED RATE FOR ONE OR SEVERAL INTEREST PERIODS OR FOR THE ENTIRE TERM OF THE NOTES ("**FIXED RATE NOTES**"), OR
- (ii) INTEREST THAT IS INCREASED ("<u>STEP-UP NOTES</u>") OR DECREASED ("<u>STEP-DOWN</u> <u>NOTES</u>") FROM ONE INTEREST PERIOD TO ANOTHER, OR
- (iii) INTEREST AT A FLOATING RATE ("FLOATING RATE NOTES"), OR
- (iv) INTEREST WHEREBY THE INTEREST RATE OR INTEREST AMOUNT IS TO BE DETERMINED BY REFERENCE TO AN EXCHANGE RATE, AN INDEX, A BOND, A SHARE, ANY OTHER SECURITY, A FUTURES CONTRACT, A FUND, A STRADDLE, A COMMODITY, SWAP RATE(S), INTEREST RATE(S), ANY OTHER UNDERLYING, A BASKET OR INDEX CONSISTING OF ANY OF THE BEFORE-MENTIONED AND/OR FORMULA(E) FOR SOME OR ALL INTEREST PERIODS, PROVIDED THAT INTEREST PERIODS FOR WHICH THE INTEREST RATE OR INTEREST AMOUNT IS NOT DETERMINED IN SUCH A WAY MAY BE OR MAY HAVE A FLOATING OR FIXED RATE ("INTEREST STRUCTURED NOTES"), OR
- (v) NO INTEREST ("<u>ZERO COUPON NOTES</u>" OR OTHER NOTES NOT BEARING INTEREST)

AND WHERE

- (2) THE REDEMPTION AMOUNT MAY EITHER:
 - (i) BE AT PAR, OR
 - (ii) BE AT A SPECIFIED RATE ABOVE OR BELOW PAR, OR
 - (iii) BE DETERMINED BY REFERENCE TO AN EXCHANGE RATE, AN INDEX, A BOND, A SHARE, ANY OTHER SECURITY, A FUTURE, A FUND, A STRADDLE, A COMMODITY, SWAP RATE(S), INTEREST RATE(S), ANY OTHER UNDERLYING, A BASKET OR INDEX CONSISTING OF ANY OF THE BEFORE-MENTIONED AND/OR FORMULA(E) ("<u>REDEMPTION STRUCTURED NOTES</u>"), OR
 - (iv) CONSIST PARTIALLY OR IN WHOLE OF SECURITIES (INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION, OF A COMPANY OTHER THAN THE ISSUER) INSTEAD OF A CASH PAYMENT ("REVERSE CONVERTIBLE NOTES" OR OTHER NOTES WITH DELIVERY OBLIGATIONS), OR
 - (v) BE IN A CURRENCY OTHER THAN THE ISSUE CURRENCY ("**DUAL CURRENCY NOTES**"):

The following terms and conditions apply to the Notes issued as Series No. [number] and Tranche No. [number] of that Series under the Notes/Certificates Programme of Commerzbank Aktiengesellschaft (the "**Programme**").

§ 1
(FORM, TRANSFERABILITY)

Alternative:	Notes in bearer form		
	1.	This issue of Notes (the " Notes ") of Commerzbank Aktiengesellschaft, Frankfurt am Main, Federal Republic of Germany (the " Issuer ") is issued in [<i>currency</i>] (the " Issue Currency ") in the aggregate principal amount of [<i>amount</i>] (in words: ([<i>currency</i> , <i>amount</i>]) (the "Aggregate Principal Amount") in the denomination of [<i>currency</i>] [<i>denomination</i>] (the " Denomination ") each. The Notes will rank pari passu among themselves.	
These paragraphs 2 and 3 shall apply to all Notes in bearer form (unless in USD with a life of more than 1 year and in USD with a life of more than 1 year and a first payment or delivery after 40 days following issue date)	2. 3.	The Notes will be represented by a permanent global bearer note (the "Global Note") without interest coupons. No definitive Notes will be issued and the right of delivery of definitive Notes is excluded. The Global Note shall be deposited with [Clearstream Banking AG, Neue Börsenstr. 1, 60487 Frankfurt am Main,] [[Deutsche Bank AG, Große Gallusstraße 10 - 14, 60272 Frankfurt am Main,] [<i>other depositary, including address</i>] [as common depositary for]] [[Clearstream Banking, société anonyme, Luxembourg and Euroclear Bank S.A./N.V. as operator of the Euroclear System] [other international clearing system]] ([together] the "Clearing System").	
		of two authorised officers of the Issuer.	
These paragraphs 2 and 3 shall apply to Notes in bearer form in USD with a life of more than 1 year and in USD with a life of more than 1 year and a first payment or delivery after 40 days following issue date	2.	The Notes will initially be represented by a temporary global bearer note (the "Temporary Global Note") without interest coupons, which will be exchanged not earlier than 40 days and not later than 180 days after their issue date against a permanent global bearer note (the "Permanent Global Note"; the Temporary Global Note and the Permanent Global Note hereinafter together the "Global Note") without interest coupons. The Temporary Global Note and the Permanent Global Note shall be deposited with [Clearstream Banking AG, Neue Börsenstr. 1, 60487 Frankfurt am Main,] [[Deutsche Bank AG, Große Gallusstraße 10 - 14, 60272 Frankfurt am Main,] [other depositary, including address] [as common depositary for]] [[Clearstream Banking, société anonyme, Luxembourg and Euroclear Bank S.A./N.V. as operator of the Euroclear System] [other international clearing system]] ([together] the "Clearing System"). The exchange shall only be made upon certification to the effect that, subject to certain exceptions, the beneficial owner or owners of the Notes represented by the Temporary Global Note are not U.S. persons. No definitive Notes will be issued and the right of delivery of definitive Notes is excluded.	
	3.	The Temporary Global Note and the Permanent Global Note shall only be valid if they bear the hand-written signatures of two authorised officers of the Issuer.	
	4.	The Noteholders shall receive co-ownership participations in or rights with respect to the Global Note which are transferable in accordance with applicable law and the rules and regulations of the Clearing System.	

5. The term "**Noteholder**" in these Terms and Conditions refers to the holder

of a co-ownership participation in or right with respect to the Global Note.

- 6. The Notes can be transferred via the Clearing System [individually/only in lots of •/other].
- 7. The Issuer reserves the right to issue from time to time without the consent of the Noteholders another tranche of Notes with substantially identical terms, so that the same shall be consolidated to form a single Series and increase the aggregate principal amount of the Notes. The term "Notes" shall, in the event of such consolidation, also comprise such additionally issued notes.

Alternative:	Notes issued pursuant to Rule 144A, Regulation D or Section 4(2) under the
	Securities Act in registered form

- This issue of Notes (the "Notes") of Commerzbank Aktiengesellschaft, Frankfurt am Main, Federal Republic of Germany (the "Issuer") is issued in [currency] (the "Issue Currency") in the aggregate principal amount of [amount] (in words: ([currency, amount]) in the denomination of [currency] [denomination] (the "Denomination") each. The Notes will rank pari passu among themselves.
- 2. The Notes will be represented by a permanent global note in registered form (the "Global Note") without interest coupons. No definitive Notes will be issued and the right of delivery of definitive Notes is excluded. The Global Note shall be deposited with [Clearstream Banking AG, Neue Börsenstr. 1, 60487 Frankfurt am Main,] [[Deutsche Bank AG, Große Gallusstraße 10 14, 60272 Frankfurt am Main,] [other depositary, including address]] [as common depositary for] [[Clearstream Banking, société anonyme, Luxembourg and Euroclear Bank S.A./N.V. as operator of the Euroclear System] [other international clearing system]] ([together] the "Clearing System"). The Global Note will be subject to certain restrictions on transfers and will bear a legend regarding such restrictions. The Issuer shall maintain a register for the Notes at [registrar] (the "Registrar").
- 3. The Global Note shall only be valid if it bears the hand-written signatures of two authorised officers of the Issuer.
- 4. The Noteholders shall receive co-ownership participations in or rights with respect to the Global Note which are transferable in accordance with applicable law and the rules and regulations of the Clearing System.
- 5. The term "**Noteholder**" in these Terms and Conditions refers to the holder of a co-ownership participation in or right with respect to the Global Note.
- 6. The Notes can be transferred via the Clearing System [individually/only in lots of •/other].
- 7. The Issuer reserves the right to issue from time to time without the consent of the Noteholders another tranche of Notes with substantially identical terms, so that the same shall be consolidated to form a single Series and increase the aggregate principal amount of the Notes. The term "Notes" shall, in the event of such consolidation, also comprise such additionally issued notes.

§ 2 (INTEREST)

Alternative:	Notes not bearing interest
	The Notes shall not bear any interest.
Alternative:	Notes with Fixed Interest and Step-up and Step-Down Notes
This paragraph 1 shall apply to Fixed Rate Notes	 The Notes bear interest at a rate of [interest rate] as from [Interest Commencement Date] (the "Interest Commencement Date") (inclusive). Interest is payable [annually / semi-annually / quarterly / other] in arrear on [Interest Payment Date(s)] [of each year] [ending on [last Interest Payment Date]] ([the / each an] "Interest Payment Date"). [The first interest payment shall be due on [first Interest Payment Date].]
This paragraph 1 shall apply to Step- up and Step-down Notes	 The Notes bear interest at a rate of [interest rate] as from [Interest Commencement Date] (the "Interest Commencement Date") (inclusive) until [date] (exlusive) [insert apllicable provisions]. Interest is payable [annually / semi-annually / quarterly / other] in arrear on [Interest Payment Date(s)] [of each year] [ending on [last Interest Payment Date]] ([the / each an] "Interest Payment Date"). [The first interest payment shall be due on [first Interest Payment Date].]
	2. The Notes will cease to bear interest at the end of the day preceding the date on which they become due for redemption, even if payment is made later than on the due date determined by the calendar in accordance with § 5 paragraph 3.
	3. Should the Issuer for any reason whatsoever fail to provide to the Principal Paying Agent, when due, the necessary funds for the redemption of the Notes, then interest on the outstanding principal amount of such Notes will continue to accrue until the payment of such principal has been effected, however not beyond the fourteenth day after the date on which the necessary funds have been provided to the Principal Paying Agent and notice thereof has been given by publication in accordance with § 13.
This paragraph 4 shall apply if "Actual/Actual" is the agreed Day Count Fraction	4. The calculation of interest shall be effected on the basis of the actual number of days elapsed divided by 365 or (if a 29 February falls within the relevant interest determination period) divided by 366.
This paragraph 4 shall apply if "Actual/Actual (ISDA)" is the agreed Day Count Fraction	4. The calculation of interest shall be effected on the basis of the actual number of days elapsed divided by 365 (or, if any portion of that interest determination period falls in a leap year, the sum of (A) the actual number of days in that portion of the interest determination period falling in a leap year divided by 366 and (B) the actual number of days in that portion of the interest determination period falling in a non-leap year divided by 365).
This paragraph 4 shall apply if "Actual/Actual (ICMA)" is the agreed Day Count Fraction	4. The calculation of interest shall be effected on the basis of the actual number of days (actual/actual according to ICMA Rule 251.
This paragraph 4 shall apply if "Actual/360" is the agreed Day Count	4. The calculation of interest shall be effected on the basis of a 360 day year and on the basis of the actual number of days elapsed.

Fraction

This paragraph 4 4. The calculation of interest shall be effected on the basis of a 365 day year shall apply if and on the basis of the actual number of days elapsed. "Actual/365 (Fixed)" is the agreed Day Count Fraction This paragraph 4 4. The calculation of interest shall be effected on the basis of a 360 day year shall apply if consisting of 12 months of 30 days each and, in the case of an "30/360" or incomplete month, on the basis of the actual number of days elapsed. If "360/360" or "Bond the last day of the calculation period is the 31st day of a month but the Basis" is the agreed Day Count Fraction first day of the calculation period is a day other than the 30th or the 31st day of a month, the month that includes that last day shall not be considered to be shortened to a 30-day month. If the last day of the calculation period is the last day of the month of February, the month of February shall not be considered to be lengthened to a 30-day month. This paragraph 4 4. The calculation of interest shall be effected on the basis of a 360 day year shall apply if consisting of 12 months of 30 days each and, in the case of an "30E/360" or incomplete month, on the basis of the actual number of days elapsed "Eurobond Basis" is without regard to the date of the first day or last day of the calculation the agreed Day Count Fraction period.

Alternative: Flo

Floating Rate Notes

1. The Notes bear interest at a rate of the Reference Interest Rate determined in accordance with paragraph 4 [plus / minus] [margin] as from [Interest Commencement Date] (inclusive) (the "Interest Commencement Date") up to the first Interest Payment Date (exclusive) and thereafter as from any Interest Payment Date (inclusive) up to the next following Interest Payment Date (exclusive) (each such period being an "Interest Period"). Interest is payable in arrear for each Interest Period on the relevant Interest Payment Date. Subject to the following paragraph and to paragraph 2, "Interest Payment Date" means [Interest Payment Dates].

If any such Interest Payment Date is not a Payment Business Day (§ 5 paragraph 3), then such Interest Payment Date shall be postponed to the next day that is a Payment Business Day unless it would thereby fall into the next calendar month, in which event (i) interest shall be payable on the immediately preceding Payment Business Day and (ii) on each subsequent Interest Payment Date interest shall be payable on the last Payment Business Day of the month in which such Interest Payment Date would have fallen had it not been subject to adjustment.

If any such Interest Payment Date is not a Payment Business Day (§ 5 paragraph 3), then such Interest Payment Date shall be postponed to the next day that is a Payment Business Day.

If any such Interest Payment Date is not a Payment Business Day (§ 5 paragraph 3), then such Interest Payment Date shall be postponed to the next day that is a Payment Business Day unless it would thereby fall into the next calendar month, in which event the Interest Payment Date shall be the immediately preceding Payment Business Day. Regarding the last Interest Payment Date § 5 paragraph 3 shall apply mutatis mutandis..

This paragraph shall be added to paragraph 1 if the Floating Rate Business Day Convention applies

This paragraph shall be added to paragraph 1 if the Following Business Day Convention applies

This paragraph shall be added to paragraph 1 if the Modified Following Business Day Convention applies This paragraph shall be added to paragraph 1 if the Preceding Business Day Convention applies If any such Interest Payment Date is not a Payment Business Day (§ 5 paragraph 3), then such Interest Payment Date shall be the immediately preceding Payment Business Day.

- 2. The Notes will cease to bear interest at the end of the day preceding the date on which they become due for redemption, even if payment is made later than on the due date determined by the calendar in accordance with § 5 paragraph 3.
- 3. Should the Issuer for any reason whatsoever fail to provide to the Principal Paying Agent, when due, the necessary funds for the redemption of the Notes, then interest on the outstanding principal amount of such Notes will continue to accrue until the payment of such principal has been effected, however not beyond the fourteenth day after the date on which the necessary funds have been provided to the Principal Paying Agent and notice thereof has been given by publication in accordance with § 13.
- 4. The interest rate in respect of the Notes for each Interest Period shall be expressed as a rate per annum. This rate is equal to the Reference Interest Rate determined in accordance with paragraph 5 [plus / minus] [margin], and shall be determined for each Interest Period [two / other] [on the first / other] Business Day[s] [prior to the commencemen / other] of each Interest Period (the "Interest Determination Date") by the Calculation Agent. A "Business Day" in the meaning of this § 2 paragraph 4 shall be any day [(other than a Saturday or Sunday) on which commercial banks are open for business in [Frankfurt am Main / London / other] [and] [on which the Trans-European Automated Real-Time Gross settlement Express Transfer system which utilises a single shared platform (TARGET2) [and the Clearing Sytem] settle[s] payments] [in the Issue Currency].
- 4. The interest rate in respect of the Notes for each Interest Period shall be expressed as a rate per annum. This rate is equal to [interest rate] less the Reference Interest Rate determined in accordance with paragraph 5 [plus / minus] [margin], and shall be determined for each Interest Period [two / other] [on the first / other] Business Day[s] [prior to the commencemen / other] of each Interest Period (the "Interest Determination Date") by the Calculation Agent. A "Business Day" in the meaning of this § 2 paragraph 4 shall be any day [(other than a Saturday or Sunday) on which commercial banks are open for business in [Frankfurt am Main / London / other] [and] [on which the Trans-European Automated Real-Time Gross settlement Express Transfer system which utilises a single shared platform (TARGET2) [and the Clearing Sytem] settle[s] payments] [in the Issue Currency].
 - 5. [Number]-months [EURIBOR/LIBOR] (the "Reference Interest Rate") is the interest rate expressed as a rate per annum published on screen page [relevant screen page] (or any successor page of the afore-mentioned agency or a screen page of another agency) (the "Screen Page") on the Interest Determination Date at or about [11.00 a.m. / other] ([Brussels / London / other] time) for deposits in the Issue Currency for the relevant Interest Period. If the Calculation Agent cannot determine the Reference Interest Rate as aforementioned because the Screen Page is not published, or if the Calculation Agent cannot make such determination for any other reason, then the Reference Interest Rate for the respective Interest Period shall be the arithmetic mean [(rounded, if necessary, to the nearest [one thousandth / one hundred thousandth / other of a percentage point,] [0.0005 / 0.000005 / other being rounded

This paragraph 4 shall apply to all Floating Rate Notes (except for Reverse Floaters)

This paragraph 4 shall apply to Reverse Floaters upwards)] determined by the Calculation Agent of the interest rates which [five reference banks / other] selected by the Calculation Agent in conjunction with the Issuer (the "**Reference Banks**"), quote to prime banks on the relevant Interest Determination Date for deposits in the Issue Currency for such Interest Period. Should two or more of the Reference Banks provide the relevant quotation, the arithmetic mean shall be calculated as described above on the basis of the quotations supplied. If less than two Reference Banks provide a quotation, then the Reference Interest Rate for the respective Interest Period shall be determined by the Calculation Agent in its reasonable discretion.

- 6. The Calculation Agent shall notify the Issuer, the Paying Agents, the Clearing System and, if so required by its rules, the exchange on which the Notes are listed, without undue delay, but in no event later than the first day of the relevant Interest Period, of the interest rate determined with respect to the relevant Interest Period, the amount payable in respect of each Note as well as the respective Interest Payment Date. The Principal Paying Agent shall without delay publish the interest rate, the interest amount payable in respect of each Note and the Interest Payment Date in accordance with § 13 hereof. In the event of an extension or a shortening of the Interest Period, the amount of interest payable and the Interest Payment Date may be subsequently amended, or appropriate alternative arrangements may be made by way of adjustment by the Calculation Agent of which adjustment the Issuer, the Paying Agents, the Clearing System and, if so required by its rules, the exchange on which the Notes are listed shall be notified with undue delay.
- 7. In the event that the interest rate determined with respect to an Interest Period pursuant to this § 2 is less than [*minimum interest rate*], the interest rate for such Interest Period shall be [*minimum interest rate*].
 - 7. In the event that the interest rate determined with respect to an Interest Period pursuant to this § 2 is less than [maximum interest rate], the interest rate for such Interest Period shall be [maximum interest rate].
 - [7/8]. The calculation of interest shall be effected on the basis of the actual number of days elapsed divided by 365 or (if a 29 February falls within the relevant interest determination period) divided by 366.
 - [7/8]. The calculation of interest shall be effected on the basis of the actual number of days elapsed divided by 365 (or, if any portion of that interest determination period falls in a leap year, the sum of (A) the actual number of days in that portion of the interest determination period falling in a leap year divided by 366 and (B) the actual number of days in that portion of the interest determination period falling in a non-leap year divided by 365).
 - [7/8]. The calculation of interest shall be effected on the basis of the actual number of days (actual/actual according to ICMA Rule 251.
 - [7/8]. The calculation of interest shall be effected on the basis of a 360 day year and on the basis of the actual number of days elapsed.

This paragraph shall apply only to Notes having a minimum interest rate

This paragraph shall apply only to Notes having a maximum interest rate

This paragraph shall apply if "Actual/Actual" is the agreed Day Count Fraction

This paragraph shall apply if "Actual/Actual (ISDA)" is the agreed Day Count Fraction

This paragraph [7 / 8] shall apply if "Actual/Actual (ICMA)" is the agreed Day Count Fraction

This paragraph [7 / 8] shall apply if "Actual/360" is the agreed Day Count Fraction This paragraph [7 / 8] shall apply if "Actual/365 (Fixed)" is the agreed Day Count Fraction

This paragraph [7 / 8] shall apply if "30/360" or "360/360" or "Bond Basis" is the agreed Day Count Fraction

This paragraph [7 / 8] shall apply if "30E/360" or "Eurobond Basis" is the agreed Day Count Fraction

- [7/8]. The calculation of interest shall be effected on the basis of a 365 day year and on the basis of the actual number of days elapsed.
- [7/8]. The calculation of interest shall be effected on the basis of a 360 day year consisting of 12 months of 30 days each and, in the case of an incomplete month, on the basis of the actual number of days elapsed. If the last day of the calculation period is the 31st day of a month but the first day of the calculation period is a day other than the 30th or the 31st day of a month, the month that includes that last day shall not be considered to be shortened to a 30-day month. If the last day of the calculation period is the last day of the month of February shall not be considered to be lengthened to a 30-day month.
- [7/8]. The calculation of interest shall be effected on the basis of a 360 day year consisting of 12 months of 30 days each and, in the case of an incomplete month, on the basis of the actual number of days elapsed without regard to the date of the first day or last day of the calculation period.

Alternative: Interest Structured Notes

[1.] The Notes bear interest pursuant to the following provisions:

[insert applicable provisions]

[2./other] The Calculation Agent shall notify the Issuer, the Paying Agents [,] [and] the Clearing System [and, if so required by its rules, the exchange on which the Notes are listed,] without delay of the interest rate determined with respect to the relevant Interest Period, the amount payable in respect of each Note as well as the respective Interest Payment Date. [The Principal Paying Agent shall without delay publish the interest rate, the interest amount payable in respect of each Note and the Interest Payment Date in accordance with § 13 hereof.]

§ 3 (REDEMPTION)

Alternative:	Notes where the Redemption is at par

The Notes will be redeemed at par (the "Final Redemption Amount") on *[Redemption Date]* (the "Redemption Date"). [The Redemption Date may be postponed in accordance with § 5 paragraph [•].]

Alternative: Redemption Structured Notes

1. The Notes will be redeemed on [*Redemption Date*] (the "**Redemption Date**") [at an amount in the Issue Currency (the "**Final Redemption Amount**") determined in accordance with paragraph 2] [*insert applicable provisions*].

[The Redemption Date may be postponed in accordance with § 5 paragraph [•].]

2. [Subject to the provisions of §7 paragraph [•] in the case of an adjustment, the] [The] Final Redemption Amount shall be [*insert applicable* provisions, including but not limited to an amount and/or formula(e) and/or additional definitions and/or provisions regarding market disruption, settlement disruption, and/or other aspects, if appropriate].

These paragraphs shall apply to all Notes with delivery obligations

- [[3.] All expenses of transfer of [*object of physical delivery*] on delivery (such as any stamp duty or exchange tax or any other tax, duty or charge) shall be borne by the Noteholder.
- [4.] The Noteholder will neither be entitled to any payment claim nor to any interest claim or other compensation if delivery is postponed from the stated due date in accordance with § 5 paragraph [4].
- [•.] [alternatively: insert applicable provisions including kind of underlying, delivery details and delivery amount regarding underlying which may be delivered and/or other aspects, if applicable].]

Alternative:	Reverse Convertible Notes	
	1.	Subject to § 3 paragraph 2 below, the Notes will be redeemed at par (the " Final Redemption Amount ") on <i>[Redemption Date]</i> (the " Redemption Date "). [The Redemption Date may be postponed in accordance with § 5
		paragraph [•].]
This paragraph shall apply only to Reverse Convertible Notes with continuous observ- ation of the Underlying	2.	If (i) on the Valuation Date the Reference Price A of the Underlying is less than [[• % of the] the Initial Price] [•] and if (ii) during the Monitoring Period the Reference Price B of the Underlying has at least once been equal to or below [[• % of the] the Initial Price] [•] , then each Note shall, in lieu of a redemption at par, be redeemed by the delivery of the Delivery Amount.
		Fractions of the Underlying will not be delivered. The Issuer will pay, in lieu of a fraction of the Underlying, to the Noteholders an amount in the Issue Currency per Note (the " Fractional Settlement Amount ") which will be calculated [by multiplying the fraction of the Underlying with the Reference Price A of the Underlying on the Valuation Date] [•]. The Noteholders shall not be entitled to a delivery of the Underlying in lieu of several aggregated Fraction Settlement Amounts.
	3.	For the purposes of these Terms and Conditions, the following definitions shall apply (subject to an adjustment in accordance with § 7):
		"Delivery Amount" means an amount of [number of Shares] Shares].
		"Company" means [<i>company</i>].
		"Exchange" means [exchange].
		"Exchange Business Day " means any Scheduled Trading Day on which the Exchange and the Related Exchange are open for trading during their respective regular trading sessions, notwithstanding the Exchange or Related Exchange closing prior to its Scheduled Closing Time. Any trading or trading activities after or before the regular trading sessions on the Exchange or the Related Exchaneg will not be taken into account.
		["Initial Price"] ["•"] means [currency, amount/other].
		"Monitoring Period" means the period from [date] to [date].

"Reference Price A" means the [closing price] [•] of the Underlying [as determined and published by the Exchange].

"**Reference Price B**" means the [intra-day level] [•] of the Underlying as determined and published by the Exchange [(including the closing price)].

"Related Exchange" means the options and futures exchange with the highest trading volume of option and futures contracts relating to the Shares of the Company. If option and futures contracts on the Shares are not traded on any exchange, the Related Exchange shall be the options and futures exchange with the highest amount of option and futures contracts relating to shares of companies having their residence in the country in which the Company has its residence. If there is no options and futures exchange in the country in which the Company has its residence on which option and futures contracts on shares are traded, the Issuer will determine the Related Exchange in its own reasonable discretion and give notification of this in accordance with § 13.

"**Scheduled Trading Day**" means a day on which the Exchange and the Related Exchange are scheduled to be open for trading for their regular trading sessions.

"Scheduled Closing Time" means, in respect of an Exchange or Related Exchange and a Scheduled Trading Day, the scheduled weekday closing time of such Exchange or Related Exchange on such Scheduled Trading Day, without regard to after hours or any other trading outside of the regular trading session hours.

"Share" or "Underlying" means [•].

"Valuation Date" means [*date*], subject to postponement in accordance with § 7 paragraph 5.

[insert any other applicable definition]

If on the Valuation Date the Reference Price of the Underlying is less than
 [[•% of the] the Initial Price] [•]], then each Note shall, in lieu of a
 redemption at par, be redeemed by the delivery of the Delivery Amount.

Fractions of the Underlying will not be delivered. The Issuer will pay, in lieu of a fraction of the Underlying, to the Noteholders an amount in the Issue Currency per Note (the "Fractional Settlement Amount") which will be calculated [by multiplying the fraction of the Underlying with the Reference Price of the Underlying on the Valuation Date] [•]. The Noteholders shall not be entitled to a delivery of the Underlying in lieu of several aggregated Fraction Settlement Amounts.

3. For the purposes of these Terms and Conditions, the following definitions shall apply (subject to an adjustment in accordance with § 7):

"Delivery Amount" means an amount of [number of Shares] Shares.

"Company" means [company].

"Exchange" means [exchange].

"Exchange Business Day" means any Scheduled Trading Day on which the Exchange and the Related Exchange are open for trading during their respective regular trading sessions, notwithstanding the Exchange or Related Exchange closing prior to its Scheduled Closing Time. Any

These paragraphs shall apply only to Reverse Convertible Notes without continuous observation of the Underlying trading or trading activities after or before the regular trading sessions on the Exchange or the Related Exchaneg will not be taken into account.

["Initial Price"] ["•"] means [currency, amount/other].

"**Reference Price**" means the [closing price] [•] of the Underlying [as determined and published by the Exchange].

"Related Exchange" means the options and futures exchange with the highest trading volume of option and futures contracts relating to the Shares of the Company. If option and futures contracts on the Shares are not traded on any exchange, the Related Exchange shall be the options and futures exchange with the highest amount of option and futures contracts relating to shares of companies having their residence in the country in which the Company has its residence. If there is no options and futures exchange in the country in which the Company has its residence on which option and futures contracts on shares are traded, the Issuer will determine the Related Exchange in its own reasonable discretion and give notification of this in accordance with § 13..

"**Scheduled Trading Day**" means a day on which the Exchange and the Related Exchange are scheduled to be open for trading for their regular trading sessions.

"Scheduled Closing Time" means, in respect of an Exchange or Related Exchange and a Scheduled Trading Day, the scheduled weekday closing time of such Exchange or Related Exchange on such Scheduled Trading Day, without regard to after hours or any other trading outside of the regular trading session hours.

"Share" or "Underlying" means [•].

"Valuation Date" means [*date*], subject to postponement in accordance with § 7 paragraph 5.

[insert any other applicable definition]

These paragraphs

Reverse Convertible

shall apply to all

Notes

- 4. All expenses of transfer of [*object of physical delivery*] on delivery (such as any stamp duty or exchange tax or any other tax, duty or charge) shall be borne by the Noteholder.
- 5. The Noteholder will neither be entitled to any payment claim nor to any interest claim or other compensation if delivery is postponed from the stated due date in accordance with § 5 paragraph [3].

Alternative:	Notes for which gross-up tax clause of § 6 applies		
This paragraph shall apply to all Notes where the Issuer	1. Except as provided in [§ 7 paragraph [1/3] and] § 6, the Issuer shall not be entitled to redeem the Notes prior to the Redemption Date.		
does not have a Call Option			
This paragraph shall apply to all Notes where the Issuer has a Call Option	1. The Issuer shall, in addition to the right to redeem the Notes prior to the Redemption Date in accordance with [§ 7 paragraph [1/3] and] § 6, have the right upon not less than [<i>number</i>] days' prior notice to be given by publication in accordance with § 13, to redeem prior to the Redemption		

§ 4 (EARLY REDEMPTION, REPURCHASE OF NOTES) Date all, but not less than all, of the outstanding Notes in accordance with the following provisions: [insert applicable provisions]

This paragraph shall apply to all Notes where the Noteholders do not have a Put Option

This paragraph shall apply to all Notes where the Noteholders have a Put Option

This paragraph shall apply to all Notes where the Early Redemption Amount is par plus accrued interest

This paragraph shall apply to all Zero Coupon Notes

This paragraph shall apply to all Notes which provide for an early redemption above or below par and which do not contain an early redemption right with reference to an underlying pursuant to § 7

This paragraph shall apply to all Notes which provide for an early redemption above or below par and which contain an early redemption right with reference to an underlying pursuant to § 7 2. Except as provided in § 11, the Noteholders shall not be entitled to call for a redemption of the Notes prior to the Redemption Date.

 Each Noteholder shall, in addition to the right to call for redemption in accordance with § 11, be entitled upon not less than [number] days' prior written notice to the Principal Paying Agent, to call his Notes for early redemption in accordance with the following provisions: [insert applicable provisions]

 If the Notes are called for redemption due to an event having occurred as described in § 6 paragraph 3 or in § 11, as the case may be, they shall be redeemed at par plus accrued interest (the "Early Redemption Amount").

3. If the Notes are called for redemption due to an event having occurred as described in § 6 paragraph 3 or in § 11, as the case may be, they shall be redeemed at the "Early Redemption Amount" which shall be determined [as the sum of (i) [•]% (the "Issue Price") and (ii) the product of the Issue Price and [•]% (the "Amortisation Yield") (compounded annually) applied to the period from (and including) [applicable date] to (but excluding) the Repayment Date (as defined below) (the "Accrual Period")] [•].

The calculation of the Early Redemption Amount shall be effected on the basis of the actual number of days in the Accrual Period [divided by 365 (or, if any portion of the Accrual Period falls in a leap year, the sum of (A) the actual number of days in that portion of the Accrual Period falling in a leap year divided by 366 and (B) the actual number of days in that portion of the Accrual Period falling in a non-leap year divided by 365)] [•].

The Repayment Date within the meaning of this § 4 paragraph 3 shall be the earlier of the day with respect to which the Notes are called for early redemption or (as the case may be) the day on which early payment is effected.

3. If the Notes are called for redemption due to an event having occurred as described in § 6 paragraph 3 or in § 11, as the case may be, they shall be redeemed at the "Early Redemption Amount" which shall be determined as follows: [insert applicable provisions]

3. If the Notes are called for redemption due to the occurrence of an Extraordinary Event in accordance with § 7 paragraph [1/3] or an event having occurred as described in § 6 paragraph 3 or in § 11, as the case may be, they shall be redeemed at the early redemption amount (the "Early Redemption Amount") which shall be calculated by the Issuer [in its reasonable discretion (§ 315 of the German Civil Code) as the fair value of the Notes at the date as determined by the Issuer in the notification of the termination] [insert other applicable provision]. The rights arising from the Notes will terminate upon the payment of the Early

		Redemption Amount.
This paragraph shall apply to all Notes with Automatic Early Redemption	[4].	Notwithstanding any other rights to redeem the Notes prior to the Redemption Date in accordance with these Terms and Conditions, the Notes shall be terminated automatically and redeemed on the Automatic Early Redemption Date at the Automatic Early Redemption Amount. [Insert applicable provisions, including but not limited to early termination trigger event(s), definitions of Automatic Early Redemption Date(s) and Automatic Early Redemption Amount(s) and/or other amount(s) and/or formula(e) and/or additional definitions and/or provisions regarding market disruption, settlement disruption, adjustment clauses and/or other
		aspects, if appropriate]
This paragraph shall apply to all Notes	[5] .	The Issuer may at any time purchase Notes in the market or otherwise. Notes repurchased by or on behalf of the Issuer may be held by the Issuer, re-issued, resold or surrendered to the Principal Paying Agent (§ 10) for cancellation.
Alternative:	Notes	s for which gross-up tax clause of § 6 does not apply
This paragraph shall apply to all Notes where the Issuer	1.	[Except as provided in § 7 paragraph [1/3], the] [The] Issuer shall not be entitled to redeem the Notes prior to the Redemption Date.
does not have a Call Option		
This paragraph shall apply to all Notes where the Issuer has a Call Option	1.	The Issuer shall [, in addition to the right to redeem the Notes prior to the Redemption Date in accordance with § 7 paragraph [1/3],] have the right upon not less than [<i>number</i>] days' prior notice to be given by publication in accordance with § 13, to redeem prior to the Redemption Date all, but not less than all, of the outstanding Notes in accordance with the following provisions: [<i>insert applicable provisions</i>]
This paragraph shall apply to all Notes	2.	Except as provided in § 11, the Noteholders shall not be entitled to call for a redemption of the Notes prior to the Redemption Date.
where the Note- holders do not have a Put Option		
This paragraph shall apply to all Notes where the Note- holders have a Put Option	2.	Each Noteholder shall, in addition to the right to call for redemption in accordance with § 11, be entitled upon not less than [number] days' prior written notice to the Principal Paying Agent, to call his Notes for early redemption in accordance with the following provisions: [<i>insert applicable provisions</i>]
This paragraph shall apply to all Notes where the Early Redemption Amount is par plus accrued interest	3.	If the Notes are called for redemption due to [the occurrence of an Extraordinary Event in accordance with § 7 paragraph [1/3] or] an event having occurred as described in § 11 [, as the case may be,] they shall be redeemed at par plus accrued interest (the "Early Redemption Amount").
This paragraph shall apply to all Zero Coupon Notes	3.	If the Notes are called for redemption due to an event having occurred as described in § 11 they shall be redeemed at the "Early Redemption Amount" which shall be determined [as the sum of (i) [•]% (the "Issue Price") and (ii) the product of the Issue Price and [•]% (the "Amortisation Yield") (compounded annually) applied to the period from (and including) [applicable date] to (but excluding) the Repayment Date (as defined below) (the "Accrual Period")] [•].

The calculation of the Early Redemption Amount shall be effected on the

basis of the actual number of days in the Accrual Period [divided by 365 (or, if any portion of the Accrual Period falls in a leap year, the sum of (A) the actual number of days in that portion of the Accrual Period falling in a leap year divided by 366 and (B) the actual number of days in that portion of the Accrual Period falling in a non-leap year divided by 365)] [•].

The Repayment Date within the meaning of this § 4 paragraph 3 shall be the earlier of the day with respect to which the Notes are called for early redemption or (as the case may be) the day on which early payment is effected.

- If the Notes are called for redemption due to an event having occurred as described in § 11 they shall be redeemed at the "Early Redemption Amount" which shall be determined as follows: [insert applicable provisions]
- 3. If the Notes are called for redemption due to the occurrence of an Extraordinary Event in accordance with § 7 paragraph [1/3] or an event having occurred as described in § 11, as the case may be, they shall be redeemed at the early redemption amount amount (the "Early Redemption Amount") which shall be calculated by the Issuer [in its reasonable discretion (§ 315 of the German Civil Code) as the fair value of the Notes at the date as determined by the Issuer. Such date and the Early Redemption Amount shall be notified in accordance with § 13] [*insert other applicable provision*]. The rights arising from the Notes will terminate upon the payment of the Early Redemption Amount.

[4]. Notwithstanding any other rights to redeem the Notes prior to the Redemption Date in accordance with these Terms and Conditions, the Notes shall be terminated automatically and redeemed on the Automatic Early Redemption Date at the Automatic Early Redemption Amount.

[Insert applicable provisions, including but not limited to early termination trigger event(s), definitions of Automatic Early Redemption Date(s) and Automatic Early Redemption Amount(s) and/or other amount(s) and/or formula(e) and/or additional definitions and/or provisions regarding market disruption, settlement disruption, adjustment clauses and/or other aspects, if appropriate]

This paragraph shall apply to all Notes
 [5]. The Issuer may at any time purchase Notes in the market or otherwise. Notes repurchased by or on behalf of the Issuer may be held by the Issuer, re-issued, resold or surrendered to the Principal Paying Agent (§ 10) for cancellation.

Alternative:	Notes without delivery obligations
This paragraph shall apply to all Notes (except for dual currency Notes)	1. The Issuer irrevocably undertakes to pay, as and when due, all amounts payable pursuant to these Terms and Conditions in the Issue Currency.
This paragraph shall apply only to dual	1. The Issuer irrevocably undertakes to pay, as and when due, all amounts payable pursuant to these Terms and Conditions in accordance with the

§ 5 (PAYMENTS [, DELIVERY OF [•] [THE UNDERLYING])

This paragraph shall apply to all Notes which provide for an early redemption above or below par and which do not contain an early redemption right with reference to an underlying pursuant to § 7

This paragraph shall apply to all Notes which provide for an early redemption above or below par and which contain an early redemption right with reference to an underlying pursuant to § 7

This paragraph shall apply to all Notes with Automatic Early Redemption

Page 53

currency Notes

The following paragraph shall be added to paragraph 1 in case of Notes in USD with a life of more than 1 year and a first payment or delivery after 40 days following issue date

wing paralall be added raph 1 in Payments on Notes represented by a Temporary Global Note shall only be effected upon due certification in accordance with § 1 paragraph 2.

2. Payments of all amounts payable pursuant to the Terms and Conditions will be made against presentation, and in the case of the last payment, against surrender of the Global Note to the Principal Paying Agent for transfer to the Clearing System or pursuant to the Clearing System's instruction for credit to the relevant accountholders of the Clearing System. Payment to the Clearing System or pursuant to the Clearing System's instruction shall release the Issuer from its payment obligations under the Notes in the amount of such payment.

following provisions: [insert applicable provisions].

3. If any payment of principal [or interest] is to be effected on a day other than a Payment Business Day, payment shall be effected on the next following Payment Business Day. In this case, the relevant Noteholder shall neither be entitled to any payment claim nor to any interest claim or other compensation with respect to such delay.

"Payment Business Day" means a day [on which the Trans-European Automated Real-Time Gross settlement Express Transfer system which utilises a single shared platform (TARGET2) is open / (other than a Saturday or Sunday) on which commercial banks and foreign exchange markets in [city]] and the Clearing System settle payments in [the Issue Currency] [•].

- 4. Any reference in these Terms and Conditions to principal in respect of the Notes shall include:
 - (a) any Additional Amounts which may be payable with respect to principal pursuant to § 6; [and]
 - (b) [*insert Bonus Payments or other payments* and] the Final Redemption Amount of the Notes at the Redemption Date; and
 - (c) the Early Redemption Amount [and the Automatic Early Redemption Amount] in the case of early redemption of the Notes pursuant to [§ 4,] § 6 paragraph 3 [, § 7 paragraph [1/3]] and § 11.
- All payments are subject in all cases to any applicable fiscal or other laws, regulations and directives, but without prejudice to the provisions of § 6. No commission or expense shall be charged to the Noteholders in respect of such payments.
- 4. Any reference in these Terms and Conditions to principal in respect of the Notes shall include:
 - (a) [*insert Bonus Payments or other payments* and] the Final Redemption Amount of the Notes at the Redemption Date; and
 - (b) the Early Redemption Amount [and the Automatic Early Redemption Amount] in the case of early redemption of the Notes pursuant to [§ 4] [,] [§ 7 paragraph [1/3]] [and] § 11.
- 5. All payments are subject in all cases to any applicable fiscal or other laws, regulations and directives.

These paragraphs shall apply if the gross-up tax clause of § 6 is selected

These paragraphs shall apply if the gross-up tax clause of § 6 is not selected 6. The Issuer may deposit with the Amtsgericht, Frankfurt am Main, [interest or] principal not claimed by Noteholders within 12 months after its respective due date, even though the respective Noteholders may not be in default of acceptance. If and to the extent that the deposit is made under waiver of the right of withdrawal, the respective claims of the respective Noteholders against the Issuer shall cease.

Alternative:	Note	s with delivery obligations
	1.	The Issuer irrevocably undertakes to pay in the Issue Currency, as and when due, all amounts payable and/or to deliver, as and when due, [the Delivery Amount] [•] pursuant to these Terms and Conditions.
The following para- graph shall be added to paragraph 1 in case of Notes in		Payments and deliveries on Notes represented by a Temporary Global Note shall only be effected upon due certification in accordance with § 1 paragraph 2.
USD with a life of more than 1 year and a first payment or delivery after 40 days following issue date		
	2.	Payments of all amounts payable and delivery of [the Delivery Amount] [•] pursuant to the Terms and Conditions will be made against presentation, and in the case of the last payment or delivery, against surrender of the Global Note to the Principal Paying Agent for transfer to the Clearing System or pursuant to the Clearing System's instruction for credit to the relevant accountholders of the Clearing System. Any payment or delivery to the Clearing System or pursuant to the Clearing System si instruction shall release the Issuer from its payment or delivery, respectively.
	3.	If any payment of principal [or interest] is to be effected on a day other than a Payment Business Day, payment shall be effected on the next following Payment Business Day. In this case, the relevant Noteholder shall neither be entitled to any payment claim nor to any interest claim or other compensation with respect to such delay.
		" Payment Business Day " means a day [on which the Trans-European Automated Real-Time Gross settlement Express Transfer system which utilises a single shared platform (TARGET2) is open / (other than a Saturday or Sunday) on which commercial banks and foreign exchange markets in [city]] and the Clearing System settle payments in [the Issue Currency] [•].
These paragraphs shall apply if the gross-up tax clause of § 6 is selected	4.	 Any reference in these Terms and Conditions to principal in respect of the Notes shall include: (a) any Additional Amounts which may be payable with respect to principal pursuant to § 6; [and] (b) [<i>insert Bonus Payments or other payments</i> and] the Final Redemption Amount of the Notes at the Redemption Date; and (c) the Early Redemption Amount [and the Automatic Early Redemption Amount] in the case of early redemption of the Notes pursuant to [§ 4,] § 6 paragraph 3 [, § 7 paragraph [1/3]] and § 11.
	5.	All payments are subject in all cases to any applicable fiscal or other laws, regulations and directives, but without prejudice to the provisions of § 6. No commission or expense shall be charged to the Noteholders in respect

Page 55

of such payments.

These paragraphs shall apply if the gross-up tax clause of § 6 is not selected

- 4. Any reference in these Terms and Conditions to principal in respect of the Notes shall include:
 - (a) [*insert Bonus Payments or other payments* and] the Final Redemption Amount of the Notes at the Redemption Date; and
 - (b) the Early Redemption Amount [and the Automatic Early Redemption Amount] in the case of early redemption of the Notes pursuant to [§ 4] [,] [§ 7 paragraph [1/3]] [and] § 11.
- 5. All payments are subject in all cases to any applicable fiscal or other laws, regulations and directives.
- 6. The Issuer may deposit with the Amtsgericht, Frankfurt am Main, [interest or] principal and/or any deliveries not claimed by Noteholders within 12 months after its respective due date, even though the respective Noteholders may not be in default of acceptance. If and to the extent that the deposit is made under waiver of the right of withdrawal, the respective claims of the respective Noteholders against the Issuer shall cease.

§6 (TAXES)

Alternative: Notes with respect to which the Noteholder has to pay taxes, fees of other duties (Noteholder tax responsibility clause)

All present and future taxes, fees or other duties in connection with the Notes shall be borne and paid by the Noteholders. The Issuer is entitled to withhold from payments to be made under the Notes any taxes, fees and/or duties payable by the Noteholder in accordance with the previous sentence.

Alternative:	Notes with respect to which the Noteholder does not have to pay taxes, fees or
	other duties under certain circumstances (gross-up tax clause)

- 1. All amounts payable under the Notes will be paid without deduction or withholding for or on account of any present or future taxes, duties or governmental charges whatsoever imposed or levied by or on behalf of the Federal Republic of Germany or any taxing authority therein, unless the Issuer is compelled by a law or other regulation to deduct or withhold such taxes, duties or governmental charges. In that event the Issuer shall pay such additional amounts (the "Additional Amounts") as may be necessary in order that the net amounts, after such deduction or withholding, shall equal the amounts that would have been payable if no such deduction or withholding had been made.
- 2. No Additional Amounts shall be payable pursuant to paragraph 1 with respect to taxes, duties or governmental charges
 - (a) for which a Noteholder is liable because of a connection with the Federal Republic of Germany or another [member state of the European Union] [state that is part of the European Economic Area] other than the mere fact of his being the holder of the Notes;
 - (b) to which the Noteholder would not be subject if he had presented his Notes for payment within 30 days from the due date for payment, or, if the necessary funds were not provided to the Principal Paying Agent or any other Paying Agent appointed pursuant to § 10 when due, within 30 days from the date on which

such funds are provided to the Paying Agents and a notice to that effect has been published in accordance with § 13;

- (c) which would not be payable if the Notes had been kept in safe custody with, and the payments had been collected by, a credit institution;
- (d) which are deducted or withheld by a Paying Agent, if the payment could have been made by another Paying Agent without such deduction or withholding;
- (e) which are deducted or withheld pursuant to (i) any European Union Directive or Regulation concerning the taxation of interest income, or (ii) any international treaty or understanding relating to such taxation and to which the Federal Republic of Germany or another member state of the European Union or the European Union is party, or (iii) any provision of law implementing or complying with, or introduced to conform with, such Directive, regulation, treaty or understanding;
- (f) which are payable by any person acting as custodian bank or collecting agent on behalf of a Noteholder, or otherwise in any manner which does not constitute a deduction or withholding by the Issuer from payments of principal or interest made by it;
- (g) which are deducted or withheld, even if the deduction or withholding has to be made by the Issuer or its representative, pursuant to the Corporate Tax Reform Act 2008 of the Federal Republic of Germany providing for the introduction of a definitive flat tax (*Abgeltungssteuer*) on certain investment income as from 1 January 2009; or
- (h) which are payable by reason of a change in law (or by reason of any application or official interpretation of any law or regulation) that becomes effective more than 30 days after the relevant payment becomes due, or, if this occurs later, is duly provided for and notice thereof is given in accordance with § 13.
- (3) If at any future time as a result of a change of the laws applicable in the Federal Republic of Germany or a change in their official application, the Issuer is required, or at the time of the next succeeding payment due will be required, to pay Additional Amounts as provided in § 6 paragraph 1 the Issuer will be entitled, upon not less than 30 days' and not more than 60 days' notice to be given by publication in accordance with § 13, prior to the Redemption Date to redeem all Notes at the Early Redemption Amount. No redemption pursuant to this § 6 paragraph 3 shall be made more than 30 days prior to the date on which such change of the laws or their official application becomes applicable to the Notes for the first time.

§ 7

([ADJUSTMENTS, MARKET DISRUPTION [, POSTPONEMENT OF VALUATION DATE] [, SETTLEMENT DISRUPTION] [•]]] THIS CLAUSE HAS BEEN INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK])

Alternative: Notes without adjustments

[leave blank]

- 1. If in the opinion of the Calculation Agent (§ 10) an Adjustment Event or an Extraordinary Event (both as defined below) has occurred, the Issuer is entitled, but not obligated, to make adjustments to the Terms and Conditions taking into consideration the provisions set forth hereinafter. If in the opinion of the Calculation Agent an Extraordinary Event has occurred, the Issuer is entitled, but not obligated, to (instead of an adjustment) terminate and redeem all, but not less than all, Notes prematurely at the Early Redemption Amount (§ 4 paragraph 3) by giving notice in accordance with § 13 where an adjustment is not possible or would be unreasonable.
- 2. When making adjustments to the Terms and Conditions, the Issuer shall act in its reasonable discretion (§ 315 of the German Civil Code) and is entitled, but not obligated, to take into consideration the adjustments to options or futures contracts relating to the Underlying made by the Related Exchange or that would have been made by the Related Exchange if such options or futures contracts were traded on the Related Exchange.
- 3. Any of the before-mentioned adjustments may, among others, relate to [*parameters*] and may result in the Underlying being replaced by other securities, a basket of securities and/or cash, and another exchange being determined as the Exchange. However, the Issuer is also entitled to make other adjustments taking into consideration the before-mentioned principles.
- 4. Adjustments take effect as from the date determined by the Issuer,. Adjustments as well as the effective date shall be notified by the Issuer in accordance with § 13.
- 5. If on [the Valuation Date *I insert other valuation time*] the [*price*] of the Underlying is not determined and published by the Exchange, or if on [the Valuation Date / *insert other valuation time*], in the opinion of the Calculation Agent, a Market Disruption Event with respect to the Underlying occurs, then the next following calendar day on which the [*price*] is again determined and published by the Exchange and on which there is no Market Disruption Event with respect to the Underlying will be deemed to be [the Valuation Date / *insert other valuation time*].

If according to the before-mentioned provisions [the Valuation Date / *insert other valuation time*] is postponed until the second Exchange Business Day prior to the Redemption Date and if on such date the [*price*] of the Underlying is still not determined and published by the Exchange or if a Market Disruption Event occurs or is continuing on such date, such date prior to the Redemption Date shall be deemed to be the relevant [the Valuation Date / *insert other valuation time*], and the Calculation Agent will, in its reasonable discretion (§ 315 of the German Civil Code) and in consideration of the prevailing market conditions, estimate the [*price*] of the Underlying on such date which shall be notified by the Issuer in accordance with § 13.

6. For the purposes of this § 7 the following definitions shall apply:

"Adjustment Event" means:

(a) any of the following actions taken by the Company: capital increases through issuance of new shares against capital

These paragraphs shall apply to all Notes without delivery obligations contribution and issuance of subscription rights to the shareholders, capital increases out of the Company's reserves, issuance of securities with option or conversion rights related to the Underlying, distributions of extraordinary dividends, stock splits or any other split, consolidation or alteration of category (as long as this does not constitute a merger);

- (b) a spin-off of a part of the Company in such a way that a new independent entity is formed, or that the spun-off part of the Company is absorbed by another entity;
- (c) the adjustment of options or futures contracts relating to the Underlying on the Related Exchange or the announcement of such adjustment; or
- (d) any other adjustment event being economically comparable to the before-mentioned events with regard to their effects.

"Extraordinary Event" means any of the following events:

- (a) a takeover-bid, i.e. an offer to take over or to swap or any other offer or any other act of an individual person or a legal entity that results in the individual person or legal entity buying, otherwise acquiring or obtaining a right to buy more than 10% of the outstanding shares of the Company as a consequence of a conversion or otherwise, as determined by the Issuer based on notifications to the competent authorities or on other information determined as relevant by the Issuer;
- (b) the termination of trading in, or early settlement of, options or futures contracts relating to the Underlying on the Related Exchange or the announcement of such termination or early settlement;
- (c) the becoming known of the intention of the Company or of the Exchange to terminate the listing of the Underlying on the Exchange or the termination of the listing of the Underlying at the Exchange or the announcement of the Exchange that the listing of the Underlying at the Exchange will terminate immediately or at a later date and that the Underlying will not be admitted, traded or listed at any other comparable exchange, trading system or quotation system immediately following the termination of the listing;
- (d) the Issuer and/or its affiliates (§ 15 of the German Stock Corporation Act) are, even following economically reasonable efforts, not in the position (i) to enter, re-enter, replace, maintain, liquidate, acquire or dispose of any transactions or investments that the Issuer considers necessary to hedge its risks resulting from the assumption and performance of its obligations under the Notes or (ii) to realize, regain or transfer the proceeds resulting from such transactions or investments;
- (e) a procedure is introduced or ongoing pursuant to which all shares or the substantial assets of the Company are or are liable to be nationalized or expropriated or otherwise transferred to public agencies, authorities or organizations;
- (f) the application for insolvency proceedings or for comparable proceedings with regard to the assets of the Company according to

the applicable law of the Company; or

(g) any other event being economically comparable to the beforementioned events with regard to their effects.

"Market Disruption Event" means the occurrence or existence of any suspension of, or limitation imposed on, trading (by reason of movements in price exceeding the limits permitted by the Exchange or otherwise) in (a) the Underlying on the Exchange, or (b) any options contracts or futures contracts relating to the Underlying on the Related Exchange, provided that any such suspension or limitation is material in the reasonable discretion of the Issuer (§ 315 of the German Civil Code) for the evaluation of the Notes and the fulfillment of its obligations under the Notes. The occurrence of a Market Disruption Event shall be published in accordance with § 13.

A limitation regarding the office hours or the number of days of trading will not constitute a Market Disruption Event if it results from an announced change in the regular business hours of the relevant exchange. A limitation on trading imposed during the course of a day by reason of movements in price exceeding permitted limits shall only be deemed to be a Market Disruption Event in the case that such limitation is still prevailing at the time of termination of the trading hours on such date.

6. If the Issuer is required to deliver [the Delivery Amount] [•] and if, in the opinion of the Calculation Agent, a Settlement Disruption Event occurs or is continuing on the Redemption Date, then the delivery of the [Delivery Amount] [•] shall be postponed to the first following Exchange Business Day on which there is no Settlement Disruption Event (the "Postponed Settlement Date"). In no event shall the Postponed Settlement Date be later than the fifth Exchange Business Day following the Redemption Date. If the Settlement Disruption Event is continuing on the fourth Exchange Business Day following the Redemption Date, then (i) the Postponed Settlement Date shall be the fifth Exchange Business Day following the Redemption Date and (ii) the Issuer shall have the right to pay a cash equivalent redemption amount (the "Cash Equivalent **Redemption Amount**"), in lieu of the delivery of the Delivery Amount, to the Noteholder. In the event of a payment of a Cash Equivalent Redemption Amount § 5 paragraph 3 of these Terms and Conditions shall apply mutatis mutandis. The Cash Equivalent Redemption Amount will be determined by the Issuer in its reasonable discretion (§ 315 of the German Civil Code).

> All determinations made by the Issuer and/or the Calculation Agent pursuant to this paragraph shall be notified to the Noteholder in accordance with § 13. The Noteholder will not be entitled to any compensation from the Issuer for any loss suffered as a result of the occurrence of a Settlement Disruption Event and no liability in respect thereof shall attach to the Issuer.

7. For the purposes of this § 7 the following definitions shall apply:

"Adjustment Event" means:

(a) any of the following actions taken by the Company: capital increases through issuance of new shares against capital contribution and issuance of subscription rights to the shareholders, capital increases out of the Company's reserves, issuance of securities with option or conversion rights related to the Underlying, distributions of extraordinary dividends, stock splits or any other

These paragraphs shall apply to all Notes with delivery obligations split, consolidation or alteration of category (as long as this does not constitute a merger);

- (b) a spin-off of a part of the Company in such a way that a new independent entity is formed, or that the spun-off part of the Company is absorbed by another entity;
- (c) the adjustment of options or futures contracts relating to the Underlying on the Related Exchange or the announcement of such adjustment; or
- (d) any other adjustment event being economically comparable to the before-mentioned events with regard to their effects.

"Extraordinary Event" means any of the following events:

- (a) a takeover-bid, i.e. an offer to take over or to swap or any other offer or any other act of an individual person or a legal entity that results in the individual person or legal entity buying, otherwise acquiring or obtaining a right to buy more than 10% of the outstanding shares of the Company as a consequence of a conversion or otherwise, as determined by the Issuer based on notifications to the competent authorities or on other information determined as relevant by the Issuer;
- (b) the termination of trading in, or early settlement of, options or futures contracts relating to the Underlying on the Related Exchange or the announcement of such termination or early settlement;
- (c) the becoming known of the intention of the Company or of the Exchange to terminate the listing of the Underlying on the Exchange or the termination of the listing of the Underlying at the Exchange or the announcement of the Exchange that the listing of the Underlying at the Exchange will terminate immediately or at a later date and that the Underlying will not be admitted, traded or listed at any other comparable exchange, trading system or quotation system immediately following the termination of the listing;
- (d) the Issuer and/or its affiliates (§ 15 of the German Stock Corporation Act) are, even following economically reasonable efforts, not in the position (i) to enter, re-enter, replace, maintain, liquidate, acquire or dispose of any transactions or investments that the Issuer considers necessary to hedge its risks resulting from the assumption and performance of its obligations under the Notes or (ii) to realize, regain or transfer the proceeds resulting from such transactions or investments;
- (e) a procedure is introduced or ongoing pursuant to which all shares or the substantial assets of the Company are or are liable to be nationalized or expropriated or otherwise transferred to public agencies, authorities or organizations;
- (f) the application for insolvency proceedings or for comparable proceedings with regard to the assets of the Company according to the applicable law of the Company; or
- (g) any other event being economically comparable to the beforementioned events with regard to their effects.

"Market Disruption Event" means the occurrence or existence of any suspension of, or limitation imposed on, trading (by reason of movements in price exceeding the limits permitted by the Exchange or otherwise) in (a) the Underlying on the Exchange, or (b) any options contracts or futures contracts relating to the Underlying on the Related Exchange, provided that any such suspension or limitation is material in the reasonable discretion of the Issuer (§ 315 of the German Civil Code) for the evaluation of the Notes and the fulfillment of its obligations under the Notes. The occurrence of a Market Disruption Event shall be published in accordance with § 13.

A limitation regarding the office hours or the number of days of trading will not constitute a Market Disruption Event if it results from an announced change in the regular business hours of the relevant exchange. A limitation on trading imposed during the course of a day by reason of movements in price exceeding permitted limits shall only be deemed to be a Market Disruption Event in the case that such limitation is still prevailing at the time of termination of the trading hours on such date.

"Settlement Disruption Event" means an event, [(a)] which, in the opinion of the Calculation Agent, is beyond the control of the Issuer and as a result of which the Issuer cannot deliver or cannot procure the delivery of [the Delivery Amount] [•] [or, (b) if it is impossible to deliver [the Delivery Amount] [•] to the Noteholders under the applicable rules of the Clearing System irrespective of when such rules have been introduced].

Alternative: Notes with reference to an index consisting of shares

- 1. If the Index is no longer calculated and published by the Index Sponsor but by another person, company or institution acceptable to the Issuer as the new Index Sponsor (the "**Successor Sponsor**"), the redemption of the Notes will be determined on the basis of the Index being calculated and published by the Successor Sponsor and any reference made to the Index Sponsor shall, if the context so admits, then refer to the Successor Sponsor.
- 2. If at any time the Index is cancelled or replaced, the Calculation Agent (§ 10) will determine its reasonable discretion (§ 315 of the German Civil Code) another index on the basis of which the redemption of the Notes will be determined (the "Successor Index"). The respective Successor Index as well as the time of its first application will be notified as soon as possible pursuant to § 13. Any reference made to the Index in these Terms and Conditions shall, if the context so admits, then refer to the Successor Index. All related definitions shall be deemed to be amended accordingly. Furthermore, the Calculation Agent will make all necessary adjustments to the Terms and Conditions of the Notes resulting from a substitution of the Index.
- 3. In the case that the occurrence of an Adjustment Event with respect to a share contained in the Index (the "Index Share") has a material effect on the price of the Index, the Calculation Agent will make adjustments to [*insert parameters*] in its reasonable discretion (§ 315 of the German Civil Code) and give notification pursuant to § 13. Such adjustment shall become effective on the date on which the occurrence of the Adjustment Event with respect to the share contained in the Index has its effect on the price of the Index.

"Adjustment Event" means any of the following events:

- the substitution of the Index by a Successor Index pursuant to paragraph 2;
- (b) any of the following actions taken by the company issuing the Index Shares (the "Index Company"): capital increases through issuance of new shares against capital contribution and issuance of subscription rights to the shareholders, capital increases out of the Index Company's reserves, issuance of securities with option or conversion rights related to the Index Shares, distributions of extraordinary dividends, stock splits or any other split, consolidation or alteration of category (as long as this does not constitute a merger);
- (c) a spin-off of a part of the Index Company in such a way that a new independent entity is formed, or that the spun-off part of the Index Company is absorbed by another entity;
- (d) the adjustment of options or futures contracts relating to the Index Shares on the exchange with the highest trading volume in such option or futures contracts (the "related exchange") or the announcement of such adjustment;
- (e) a takeover-bid, i.e. an offer to take over or to swap or any other offer or any other act of an individual person or a legal entity that results in the individual person or legal entity buying, otherwise acquiring or obtaining a right to buy more than 10% of the outstanding shares of the Index Company as a consequence of a conversion or otherwise, as determined by the Issuer based on notifications to the competent authorities or on other information determined as relevant by the Issuer in its reasonable discretion (§ 315 of the German Civil Code);
- (f) the termination of trading in, or early settlement of, options or futures contracts relating to the Index Shares on the related exchange or relating to the Index itself or the announcement of such termination or early settlement;
- (g) the becoming known of the intention of the Index Company or of the exchange on which the respective Index Shares are traded (provided that the quotations of the prices of the Index Shares on such exchange are taken for the calculation of the Index) (the "exchange") to terminate the listing of the Index Shares on the exchange or the termination of the listing of the Index Shares at the exchange or the announcement of the exchange that the listing of the Index Shares at the exchange will terminate immediately or at a later date and that the Index Shares will not be admitted, traded or listed at any other comparable exchange, trading system or quotation system immediately following the termination of the listing;
- (h) the Issuer and/or its affiliates (§ 15 of the German Stock Corporation Act) are, even following economically reasonable efforts, not in the position (i) to enter, re-enter, replace, maintain, liquidate, acquire or dispose of any transactions or investments that the Issuer considers necessary to hedge its risks resulting from the assumption and performance of its obligations under the Notes or (ii) to realize, regain or transfer the proceeds resulting from such transactions or investments;

- a procedure is introduced or ongoing pursuant to which all shares or the substantial assets of the Index Company are or are liable to be nationalized or expropriated or otherwise transferred to public agencies, authorities or organizations;
- (j) the application for insolvency proceedings or for comparable proceedings with regard to the assets of the Index Company according to the applicable law of the Index Company; or
- (k) any other adjustment event being economically comparable to the before-mentioned events with regard to their effects.
- 4. If in the opinion of the Calculation Agent (i) the determination of a Successor Index in accordance with the above paragraph is not possible or unreasonable for the Issuer or (ii) if the Index Sponsor materially modifies the calculation method of an Index with effect on or before [the Valuation Date / insert other valuation time], or materially modifies the Index in any other way (except for modifications which are contemplated in the calculation method of the Index relating to a change with respect to securities comprising the Index, the market capitalisation or with respect to any other routine measures) (each of such events an "Extraordinary **Event**"), then the Issuer is entitled to (a) continue (itself or through an independent expert determined by the Issuer) the calculation of the Index on the basis of the former concept of the Index and its last determined level or (b) to (instead of a continuation of the calculation of the Index) terminate and redeem all, but not less than all, Notes prematurely at the Early Redemption Amount (§ 4 paragraph 3) by giving notice in accordance with § 13.
- 5. If on [the Valuation Date / insert other valuation time] the [price] of the Index is not determined and published by the Index Sponsor, or if on [the Valuation Date / insert other valuation time], in the opinion of the Calculation Agent, a Market Disruption Event with respect to the Index occurs, then the next following calendar day on which the [price] is again determined and published by the Index Sponsor and on which there is no Market Disruption Event with respect to the Index will be deemed to be the [the Valuation Date / insert other valuation time].

If according to the before-mentioned provisions [the Valuation Date / insert other valuation time] is postponed until the [third] [•] Payment Business Day prior to the Redemption Date and if on such date the [price] of the Index is still not determined and published by the Index Sponsor or if a Market Disruption Event occurs or is continuing on such date, such date prior to the Redemption Date shall be deemed to be the relevant [the Valuation Date / insert other valuation time], and the Calculation Agent will, in its reasonable discretion (§ 315 of the German Civil Code) and in consideration of the prevailing market conditions, estimate the [price] of the Index on such date which shall be notified by the Issuer in accordance with § 13.

"Market Disruption Event" means the occurrence or existence of any suspension of, or limitation imposed on, trading in the Index Shares on the exchange or the suspension of or limitation imposed on trading in options or futures contracts on the Index on the options and futures exchange with the highest trading volume of option and future contracts relating to the Index, provided that any such suspension or limitation is material in the reasonable discretion of the Issuer (§ 315 of the German Civil Code) for the evaluation of the Notes and the fulfillment of its obligations under the Notes. The occurrence of a Market Disruption Event shall be published in accordance with § 13.

A limitation regarding the office hours or the number of days of trading will not constitute a Market Disruption Event if it results from an announced change in the regular business hours of the relevant exchange. A limitation on trading imposed during the course of a day by reason of movements in price exceeding permitted limits shall only be deemed to be a Market Disruption Event in the case that such limitation is still prevailing at the time of termination of the trading hours on such date.

Alternative: Notes with reference to an index consisting of futures contracts

- If the Index is no longer calculated and published by the Index Sponsor but by another person, company or institution acceptable to the Issuer as the new Index Sponsor (the "Successor Sponsor"), the redemption of the Notes will be determined on the basis of the Index being calculated and published by the Successor Sponsor and any reference made to the Index Sponsor shall, if the context so admits, then refer to the Successor Sponsor.
- 2. If at any time the Index is cancelled or replaced, the Calculation Agent (§ 10) will determine its reasonable discretion (§ 315 of the German Civil Code) another index on the basis of which the redemption of the Notes will be determined (the "Successor Index"). The respective Successor Index as well as the time of its first application will be notified as soon as possible pursuant to § 13. Any reference made to the Index in these Terms and Conditions shall, if the context so admits, then refer to the Successor Index. All related definitions shall be deemed to be amended accordingly. Furthermore, the Calculation Agent will make all necessary adjustments to the Terms and Conditions of the Notes resulting from a substitution of the Index.
- If in the opinion of the Calculation Agent (i) the determination of a 3. Successor Index in accordance with the above paragraph is not possible or unreasonable for the Issuer or (ii) if the Index Sponsor materially modifies the calculation method of an Index with effect on or before [the Valuation Date / insert other valuation time], or materially modifies the Index in any other way (except for modifications which are contemplated in the calculation method of the Index relating to a change with respect to securities comprising the Index, the market capitalisation or with respect to any other routine measures) (each of such events an "Extraordinary Event"), then the Issuer is entitled to (a) continue (itself or through an independent expert determined by the Issuer) the calculation of the Index on the basis of the former concept of the Index and its last determined level or (b) to (instead of a continuation of the calculation of the Index) terminate and redeem all, but not less than all, Notes prematurely at the Early Redemption Amount (§ 4 paragraph 3) by giving notice in accordance with § 13.
- 4. If on [the Valuation Date / insert other valuation time] the [price] of the Index is not determined and published by the Index Sponsor, or if on [the Valuation Date / insert other valuation time], in the opinion of the Calculation Agent, a Market Disruption Event with respect to the Index occurs, then the next following calendar day on which the [price] is again determined and published by the Index Sponsor and on which there is no Market Disruption Event with respect to the Index will be deemed to be the [the Valuation Date / insert other valuation time].

If according to the before-mentioned provisions [the Valuation Date / insert other valuation time] is postponed until the [third] [•] Payment

Business Day prior to the Redemption Date and if on such date the [*price*] of the Index is still not determined and published by the Index Sponsor or if a Market Disruption Event occurs or is continuing on such date, such date prior to the Redemption Date shall be deemed to be the relevant [the Valuation Date / *insert other valuation time*], and the Calculation Agent will, in its reasonable discretion (§ 315 of the German Civil Code) and in consideration of the prevailing market conditions, estimate the [*price*] of the Index on such date which shall be notified by the Issuer in accordance with § 13.

"Market Disruption Event" with respect to the Index means the occurrence or existence of any suspension of or limitation imposed on trading in the futures and options contracts contained in the Index on the exchanges or trading systems the prices of which are the basis for the calculation of the Index, or the suspension of or limitation imposed on trading in options or futures contracts on the Index on the options and futures exchange with the highest trading volume of options and futures contracts relating to the Index. provided that any such suspension or limitation is material in the reasonable discretion of the Issuer (§ 315 of the German Civil Code) for the evaluation of the Notes and the fulfillment of its obligations under the Notes. The occurrence of a Market Disruption Event shall be published in accordance with § 13.

A limitation regarding the office hours or the number of days of trading will not constitute a Market Disruption Event if it results from an announced change in the regular business hours of the relevant exchange. A limitation on trading imposed during the course of a day by reason of movements in price exceeding permitted limits shall only be deemed to be a Market Disruption Event in the case that such limitation is still prevailing at the time of termination of the trading hours on such date.

Alternative: Notes with reference to futures contracts on commodities

1. If in the opinion of the Calculation Agent (§ 10) an Extraordinary Event (as defined below) has occurred, the Issuer is entitled to either (i) make adjustments to the Terms and Conditions taking into consideration the provisions set forth hereinafter, or (ii) to (instead of an adjustment) terminate and redeem the Notes prematurely at the Early Redemption Amount (§ 4 paragraph 3) by giving notice in accordance with § 13. In making adjustments to the Terms and Conditions, the Issuer is entitled, but not obligated, to take into consideration the adjustments made to options or futures contracts relating to the Underlying that are traded on [the Exchange] [•]. If the Issuer makes adjustments without taking into consideration the manner in which adjustments are or would be made by the Exchange, the Issuer shall make the adjustments in its reasonable discretion (§ 315 of the German Civil Code). Any of the before-mentioned adjustments may, among others, relate to [the Initial Price, the Multiplier etc.] [other parameters] and may result in the Futures Contract being replaced by other futures contracts, a basket of futures contracts and/or cash, and another exchange being determined as the Exchange.

However, the Issuer is not obligated to make an adjustment and it is also entitled to make other adjustments taking into consideration the beforementioned principles.

2. Adjustments take effect as from the date determined by the Issuer, provided that (in case the Issuer takes into consideration the manner in which adjustments are or would be made by the [the Exchange] [•]) the Issuer shall take into consideration the date at which such adjustments take effect or would take effect on the [the Exchange] [•]. Adjustments as

well as the effective date shall be notified by the Issuer in accordance with \S 13.

3. If on the Valuation Date in the opinion of the Calculation Agent a [*price*] of the Futures Contract is not determined and published or if a Trading Disruption with respect to the Futures Contract occurs, then the next following calendar day on which a [*price*] of the Futures Contract is again determined and published and on which a Trading Disruption does not occur will be deemed to be the Valuation Date for the Futures Contract.

If according to the before-mentioned provisions the Valuation Date is postponed until the second Exchange Business Day prior to the Redemption Date and if on such date a [*price*] of the Futures Contract is still not determined and published or if a Trading Disruption occurs or is continuing on such date, such second Exchange Business Day prior to the Redemption Date shall be deemed to be the relevant Valuation Date, and the Calculation Agent will, in its reasonable discretion (§ 315 German Civil Code (BGB)) and in consideration of the prevailing market conditions, estimate the [*price*] of the Futures Contract on such day and make a notification in accordance with § 13.

4. For the purposes of this § 7 the following definitions shall apply:

"Disappearance of Reference Price" means (a) the permanent discontinuation of trading, in the Futures Contract on the Exchange; (b) the disappearance of, or of trading in, the Commodity; or (c) the disappearance or permanent discontinuance or unavailability of a [*price*], notwithstanding the availability of the Price Source or the status of trading in the Futures Contract or the Commodity.

"Extraordinary Event" means the occurrence of any of the following events: Disappearance of Reference Price, Hedging Disruption, Material Change in Content, Price Source Disruption, Tax Disruption, Trading Disruption or any other event being economically comparable to the before-mentioned events with regard to their effects.

"Hedging Disruption" means an event due to which the Issuer and/or its affiliates (§ 15 of the German Stock Corporation Act) are, even following economically reasonable efforts, not in the position (i) to enter, re-enter, replace, maintain, liquidate, acquire or dispose of any transactions or investments that the Issuer considers necessary to hedge its risks resulting from the assumption and performance of its obligations under the Notes or (ii) to realize, regain or transfer the proceeds resulting from such transactions or investments;

"Material Change in Content" means the occurrence of a material change in the content, composition or constitution of the Commodity or the Futures Contract.

"Price Source Disruption" means (a) the failure of the Price Source to announce or publish the relevant [*price*] (or the information necessary for determining the [*price*]); or (b) the temporary or permanent discontinuance or unavailability of the Price Source.

"**Tax Disruption**" means the imposition of, change in or removal of an excise, severance, sales, use, value-added, transfer, stamp, documentary, recording or similar tax on, or measured by reference to, a Commodity (other than a tax on, or measured by reference to overall gross or net income) by any government or taxation authority after the Trade Date, if the direct effect of such imposition, change or removal is to raise or lower the [price].

"Trading Disruption" means the material suspension of, or the material limitation imposed on, trading in the Futures Contract or the Commodity on the Exchange or in any additional futures contract, options contract or commodity on any Exchange. For these purposes:

- (a) a suspension of the trading in the Futures Contract or the Commodity on any Exchange Business Day shall be deemed to be material only if:
 - (1) all trading in the Futures Contract or the Commodity is suspended for the entire Exchange Business Day; or
 - (2) all trading in the Futures Contract or the Commodity is suspended subsequent to the opening of trading on the Exchange Business Day, trading does not recommence prior to the regularly scheduled close of trading in such Futures Contract or such Commodity on such Exchange Business Day and such suspension is announced less than one hour preceding its commencement; and
- (b) a limitation of trading in the Futures Contract or the Commodity on any Exchange Business Day shall be deemed to be material only if the Exchange establishes limits on the range within which the price of the Futures Contract or the Commodity may fluctuate and the closing or settlement price of the Futures Contract or the Commodity oh such day is at the upper or lower limit of that range.

Alternative: Notes with reference to a combination of different types of underlyings or to other underlyings

> [insert applicable provisions from alternatives above, if appropriate, and/or insert other applicable provisions including adjustment clauses, market disruption clauses, settlement disruption clauses and/or other aspects, if applicable to such Notes]

§ 8 (PRESENTATION PERIODS, PRESCRIPTION)

The period for presentation of the Notes (§ 801, paragraph 1, sentence 1 of the German Civil Code) shall be ten years and the period of limitation for claims under the Notes presented during the period for presentation shall be two years calculated from the expiry of the relevant presentation period.

§ 9 (STATUS)

The obligations under the Notes constitute direct, unconditional and unsecured obligations of the Issuer and rank at least pari passu with all other unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of the Issuer (save for such exceptions as may exist from time to time under applicable law).

§ 10

(AGENTS)

1. [Commerzbank Aktiengesellschaft [address] / [other bank]] shall be the

"Principal Paying Agent". The Issuer shall procure that there will at all times be a Principal Paying Agent. [The Issuer is entitled to appoint other banks of international standing as Principal Paying Agent or additional paying agents (each, a "Paying Agent"; the Principal Paying Agent and any additional Paying Agent together the "Paying Agents").] [Commerzbank International S.A. [address] / [and] [other bank(s)]] shall be appointed as additional Paying Agents").] [The Issuer shall procure that as long as Notes are listed on the [exchange] there will at all times be a Paying Agent in [city].]

Furthermore, the Issuer is entitled to terminate the appointment of the Principal Paying Agent as well as of individual Paying Agents. In the event of such termination or such bank being unable or unwilling to continue to act as Principal Paying Agent or Paying Agent, as the case may be, the Issuer shall appoint another bank of international standing as Principal Paying Agent or Paying Agent, respectively. Such appointment or termination shall be published without undue delay in accordance with § 13.

- 2. [Commerzbank Aktiengesellschaft [address] / [other bank]] shall be the "Calculation Agent". The Issuer shall procure that as long as [interest rates have to be determined or other] determinations have to be made in accordance with these Terms and Conditions there shall at all times be a Calculation Agent. The Issuer reserves the right at any time to terminate the appointment of the Calculation Agent. In the event of such termination or of the appointed office of any such bank being unable or unwilling to continue to act as Calculation Agent (as the case may be) the Issuer shall appoint an appropriate office of another leading bank to act as Calculation Agent. The appointment of another Calculation Agent shall be published without delay by the Issuer in accordance with § 13.
- 3. The Paying Agents and the Calculation Agent acting in such capacity, act only as agents of the Issuer. There is no agency or fiduciary relationship between the Paying Agents and the Calculation Agent on the one hand and the Noteholders on the other hand. The [Paying Agents and the Calculation Agent are hereby granted exemption from the restrictions of § 181 of the German Civil Code and any similar restrictions of the applicable laws of any other country.

§ 11 (TERMINATION)

- 1. Each Noteholder is entitled to declare his Notes due and to require the redemption of his Notes at the Early Redemption Amount pursuant to § 4 paragraph 3 as provided hereinafter, if:
 - the Issuer is in default for more than 30 days in the payment of principal or interest under these Terms and Conditions;
 - the Issuer is in default for more than 30 days in the payment of any amount due [shall be added if Notes contain a delivery obligation: and/or deliveries] under these Terms and Conditions;
 - (b) the Issuer violates any other obligation under these Terms and Conditions, and such violation continues for 60 days after receipt of written notice thereof from the respective Noteholder;

This paragraph (a) shall apply to all Notes bearing interest

This paragraph (a) shall apply to all Notes not bearing interest

- (c) the Issuer is wound up or dissolved whether by a resolution of the shareholders or otherwise (except in connection with a merger or reorganisation in such a way that all of the assets and liabilities of the Issuer pass to another legal person in universal succession by operation of law);
- (d) the Issuer ceases its payments and this continues for 60 days, or admits to be unable to pay its debts;
- (e) any insolvency proceedings are instituted against the Issuer which shall not have been dismissed or stayed within 60 days after their institution or the Issuer applies for the institution of such proceedings, or offers or makes an arrangement for the benefit of its creditors or the Federal Financial Supervisory Authority (BaFin) opens insolvency proceedings against the Issuer; or
- (f) in the case of a substitution of the Issuer within the meaning of § 12 paragraph 4 (b) any of the events set forth in sub-paragraphs (c) (e) above occurs in respect of the Guarantor.

The right to declare Notes due shall terminate if the circumstances giving rise to it have been remedied before such right is exercised.

2. The right to declare Notes due pursuant to paragraph 1 shall be exercised by a Noteholder by delivering or sending by registered mail to the Principal Paying Agent a written notice which shall state the principal amount of the Notes called for redemption and shall enclose evidence of ownership reasonably satisfactory to the Principal Paying Agent.

§ 12

(SUBSTITUTION OF ISSUER [, BRANCH DESIGNATION])

- 1. Any other company may assume at any time during the life of the Notes, subject to § 12 paragraph 4, without the Noteholders' consent upon notice by the Issuer given through publication in accordance with § 13, all the obligations of the Issuer under these Terms and Conditions.
- 2. Upon any such substitution, such substitute company (hereinafter called the "**New Issuer**") shall succeed to, and be substituted for, and may exercise every right and power of, the Issuer under these Terms and Conditions with the same effect as if the New Issuer had been named as the Issuer herein; the Issuer (and, in the case of a repeated application of this § 12, each previous New Issuer) shall be released from its obligations hereunder and from its liability as obligor under the Notes.
- 3. In the event of such substitution, any reference in these Terms and Conditions (except for this § 12) to the "**Issuer**" shall from then on be deemed to refer to the New Issuer and any reference to the country of the corporate seat of the Issuer which is to be substituted (except for the references in § 16 to the Federal Republic of Germany) shall be deemed to refer to the country of the corporate seat of the New Issuer and the country under the laws of which it is organised.
- 4. No such assumption shall be permitted unless
 - (a) the New Issuer has agreed to assume all obligations of the Issuer under the Notes pursuant to these Terms and Conditions;
 - (b) the New Issuer has agreed to indemnify and hold harmless each

Noteholder against any tax, duty, assessment or governmental charge imposed on such Noteholder in respect of such substitution;

- (c) the Issuer (in this capacity referred to as the "Guarantor") has unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed to the Noteholders compliance by the New Issuer with all obligations under the Notes pursuant to these Terms and Conditions;
- (d) the New Issuer and the Guarantor have obtained all governmental authorisations, approvals, consents and permissions necessary in the jurisdictions in which the Guarantor and/or the New Issuer are domiciled or the country under the laws of which they are organised.
- 5. Upon any substitution of the Issuer for a New Issuer, this § 12 shall apply again.
- [6. The Issuer may at any time, designate by publication in accordance with § 13 any branch (*Betriebsstätte*) of the Issuer outside the Federal Republic of Germany as the branch (*Betriebsstätte*) primarily responsible for the due and punctual payment in respect of the Notes then outstanding and the performance of all of the Issuer's other obligations under the Notes then outstanding.

Paragraphs 4 (c) and 5 of this § 12 shall apply *mutatis mutandis* to such designation.]

§ 13 (NOTICES)

Notices relating to the Notes shall be published on the internet page [•] (or on another internet page notified at least six weeks in advance by the Issuer in accordance with this § 13) and shall be deemed to be effective upon such publication unless such publication gives another effective date. If applicable law or regulations of the exchange on which the Notes are listed require a notification in another manner, notices shall also be given in the manner so required.

Unless these Terms and Conditions expressly provide for publication on the Issuer's internet page, any notices relating to the Notes shall be published in the electronic version of the Federal Gazette (*Bundesanzeiger*) and, where required by law, in one supra-regional mandatory publication for each of the exchanges on which the Notes are admitted to be traded. Any such notice shall be deemed to have been given on the day of its publication (or, in the case of several notices, on the first day of such publication).

§ 14 (AVAILABLE INFORMATION)

Commerzbank hereby undertakes to furnish upon the request of a Noteholder or the holder of any beneficial interest in a Note, upon the request of such holder or to a prospective purchaser designated by such holder or beneficial owner, the information required to be delivered under Rule 144A(d)(4) under the U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as amended if, at the time of the request, Commerzbank is neither a reporting company under Section 13 or 15(d) of the U.S. Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended ("**U.S. Exchange Act**"), nor exempt from reporting pursuant to Rule 12g3-2(b) under the U.S. Exchange Act.

This paragraph shall be added if there is a Branch Designation

This paragraph shall apply only to Notes which are neither listed on a exchange nor offered to the public

This paragraph shall

which are listed on a

exchange or offered

to the public

apply only to Notes

§ 15 (LIMITATION OF LIABILITY)

The Issuer, the Paying Agents and the Calculation Agent shall be held responsible for acting or failing to act in connection with the Notes only if, and insofar as, it either (i) breaches material obligations under or in connection with the Terms and Conditions of the Notes negligently or wilfully or (ii) breaches other obligations with gross negligence or wilfully.

§ 16 (FINAL CLAUSES)

- 1. The form and content of the Notes and the rights and duties of the Noteholders, the Issuer, the Calculation Agent and the Paying Agents shall in all respects be governed by the laws of the Federal Republic of Germany.
- In the event of manifest typing or calculation errors or similar manifest 2. errors in the Terms and Conditions, the Issuer shall be entitled to declare rescission (Anfechtung) to the Noteholders. The declaration of rescission shall be made without undue delay upon becoming aware of any such ground for rescission (Anfechtungsgrund) and in accordance with § 13. Following a declaration of rescission by the Issuer, the Noteholder is entitled to request repayment of the Issue Price by delivery of a duly completed redemption notice to the Principal Paying Agent on the form available at the Principal Paying Agent or by providing all information and statements requested therein (the "Redemption Notice") and by transfer of the Notes to the account of the Principal Paying Agent with the Clearing System. The Issuer shall make available the Issue Price to the Note Agent within [number] calendar days following receipt of the Redemption Notice and of the Notes by the Note Agent, whichever receipt is later, whereupon the Note Agent shall transfer the Issue Price to the account specified in the Redemption Notice. Upon payment of the Issue Price all rights under the Notes delivered shall expire.
- 3. The Issuer may combine the declaration of rescission pursuant to paragraph 2. with an offer to continue the Notes on the basis of corrected Terms and Conditions. Such an offer and the corrected provisions shall be notified to the Noteholders together with the declaration of rescission in accordance with § 13. Any such offer shall be deemed to be accepted by a Noteholder (and the rescission shall not take effect), unless the Noteholder requests repayment of the Issue Price within four weeks following the date on which the offer has become effective in accordance with § 13 by delivery of a duly completed Redemption Notice to the Principal Paying Agent and by transfer of the Notes to the account of the Principal Paying Agent with the Clearing System pursuant to paragraph 2. The Issuer shall refer to this effect in the notification.
- 4. **"Issue Price**" within the meaning of paragraphs 2. and 3. shall be the actual purchase price paid at the time of the first purchase of the Notes delivered for repayment [, or (if no purchase price for the first purchase of the Notes can be determined) the issue price as set forth in the applicable Final Terms relating to the Base Prospectus dated [date]].
- 5. Contradictory or incomplete provisions in the Terms and Conditions may be corrected or amended, as the case may be, by the Issuer in its reasonable discretion (§ 315 of the German Civil Code). The Issuer, however, shall only be entitled to make such corrections or amendments

which are reasonably acceptable to the Noteholders having regard to the interests of the Issuer and in particular which do not materially adversely affect the legal or financial situation of the Noteholders. Notice of any such correction or amendment shall be given to the Noteholders in accordance with § 13.

- 6. If the Noteholder was aware of typing or calculation errors or similar errors at the time of the acquisition of the Notes, then, notwithstanding paragraphs 2 5, the Noteholders can be bound by the Issuer to the corrected Terms and Conditions.
- 7. Place of performance is Frankfurt am Main.
- 8. Place of jurisdiction for all disputes and other proceedings in connection with the Notes for merchants, entities of public law, special funds under public law and entities without a place of general jurisdiction in the Federal Republic of Germany is Frankfurt am Main. In such a case, the place of jurisdiction in Frankfurt am Main shall be an exclusive place of jurisdiction.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS SET 2 (CERTIFICATES WITH FIXED REDEMPTION DATE)

PROGRAMME TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF CERTIFICATES WITH FIXED REDEMPTION DATE WHERE REDEMPTION AMOUNT OR ADDITIONAL PAYMENTS OR DELIVERIES ARE TO BE DETERMINED BY REFERENCE TO AN EXCHANGE RATE, AN INDEX, A BOND, A SHARE, ANY OTHER SECURITY, A FUTURE, A FUND, A STRADDLE, A COMMODITY, SWAP RATE(S), INTEREST RATE(S), ANY OTHER UNDERLYING, A BASKET OR INDEX CONSISTING OF ANY OF THE BEFORE-MENTIONED AND/OR FORMULA(E) (THE "**CERTIFICATES**")

The following terms and conditions apply to the Certificates issued as Series No. [number] and Tranche No. [number] of that Series under the Notes/Certificates Programme of Commerzbank Aktiengesellschaft (the "**Programme**").

	§ 1	
(FORM,	TRANSFERABILITY)	

Alternative:	Certificates in bearer form
	 This issue of [number] certificates (the "Certificates") of Commerzbank Aktiengesellschaft, Frankfurt am Main, Federal Republic of Germany (the "Issuer") is issued in [currency] (the "Issue Currency") [and relates to [•] (the "Underlying" [or "•"])]. The Certificates will rank pari passu among themselves.
These paragraphs 2 and 3 shall apply to all Certificates in bearer form (unless in the case of Certificates in USD with a life of more than 1 year and a first payment or delivery after 40 days following issue date	 The Certificates will be represented by a permanent global bearer certificate (the "Global Certificate") without interest coupons. No definitive Certificates will be issued and the right of delivery of definitive Certificates is excluded. The Global Certificate shall be deposited with [Clearstream Banking AG, Neue Börsenstr. 1, 60487 Frankfurt am Main,] [[Deutsche Bank AG, Große Gallusstraße 10 - 14, 60272 Frankfurt am Main,] [<i>other depositary, including address</i>] [as common depositary for]] [[Clearstream Banking, société anonyme, Luxembourg and Euroclear Bank S.A./N.V. as operator of the Euroclear System] [other international clearing system]] ([together] the "Clearing System"). The Global Certificate shall only be valid if it bears the hand-written
	signatures of two authorised officers of the Issuer.
These paragraphs 2 and 3 shall apply to Certificates in bearer form in USD with a life of more than 1 year and a first payment or delivery after 40 days following issue date	2. The Certificates will initially be represented by a temporary global certificate (the "Temporary Global Certificate"), which will be exchanged not earlier than 40 days and not later than 180 days after their issue date against a permanent global certificate (the "Permanent Global Certificate"; the Temporary Global Certificate and the Permanent Global Certificate hereinafter together the "Global Certificate"). The Temporary Global Certificate and the Permanent Global Certificate shall be deposited with [Clearstream Banking AG, Neue Börsenstr. 1, 60487 Frankfurt am Main,] [[Deutsche Bank AG, Große Gallusstraße 10 - 14, 60272 Frankfurt am Main,] [other depositary, including address] [as common depositary for]] [[Clearstream Banking, société anonyme, Luxembourg and Euroclear Bank S.A./N.V. as operator of the Euroclear System] [other international clearing system]] ([together] the "Clearing System"). The exchange shall only be made upon certification to the effect that, subject to certain exceptions, the beneficial owner or owners of the Certificates represented by the Temporary Global Certificate are not U.S. persons. No definitive Certificates will be issued and the right of delivery of

definitive Certificates is excluded.

- 3. The Temporary Global Certificate and the Permanent Global Certificate shall only be valid if they bear the hand-written signatures of two authorised officers of the Issuer.
- 4. The Certificateholders shall receive co-ownership participations in or rights with respect to the Global Certificate which are transferable in accordance with applicable law and the rules and regulations of the Clearing System.
- 5. The term "**Certificateholder**" in these Terms and Conditions refers to the holder of a co-ownership participation in or right with respect to the Global Certificate.
- 6. The Certificates can be transferred via the Clearing System [individually/only in lots of •/other].
- 7. The Issuer reserves the right to issue from time to time without the consent of the Certificateholders another tranche of Certificates with substantially identical terms, so that the same shall be consolidated to form a single Series and increase the aggregate principal amount of the Certificates. The term "Certificates" shall, in the event of such consolidation, also comprise such additionally issued Certificates.

Alternative:	Certificates issued pursuant to Rule 144A, Regulation D or Section 4(2) under the
	Securities Act in registered form

- This issue of [number] certificates (the "Certificates") of Commerzbank Aktiengesellschaft, Frankfurt am Main, Federal Republic of Germany (the "Issuer") is issued in [*currency*] (the "Issue Currency") [and relates to [•] (the "Underlying" [or "•"])]. The Certificates will rank pari passu among themselves.
- 2. The Certificates will be represented by a permanent global certificate in registered form (the "Global Certificate") without interest coupons. No definitive Certificates will be issued and the right of delivery of definitive Certificates is excluded. The Global Certificate shall be deposited with [Clearstream Banking AG, Neue Börsenstr. 1, 60487 Frankfurt am Main,] [[Deutsche Bank AG, Große Gallusstraße 10 14, 60272 Frankfurt am Main,] [*Icher depositary, including address*]] [as common depositary for] [[Clearstream Banking, société anonyme, Luxembourg and Euroclear Bank S.A./N.V. as operator of the Euroclear System] [other international clearing system]] ([together] the "Clearing System"). The Global Certificate will be subject to certain restrictions on transfers and will bear a legend regarding such restrictions. The Issuer shall maintain a register for the Certificates at [*registrar*] (the "Registrar").
- 3. The Global Certificate shall only be valid if it bears the hand-written signatures of two authorised officers of the Issuer.
- 4. The Certificateholders shall receive co-ownership participations in or rights with respect to the Global Certificate which are transferable in accordance with applicable law and the rules and regulations of the Clearing System.
- 5. The term " **Certificateholder**" in these Terms and Conditions refers to the holder of a co-ownership participation in or right with respect to the Global Certificate.
- 6. The Certificates can be transferred via the Clearing System [individually/only in lots of •/other].

7. The Issuer reserves the right to issue from time to time without the consent of the Certificateholders another tranche of Certificates with substantially identical terms, so that the same shall be consolidated to form a single Series and increase the aggregate principal amount of the Certificates. The term "Certificates" shall, in the event of such consolidation, also comprise such additionally issued Certificates.

§ 2 (INTEREST)

The Certificates shall not bear any interest.

§ 3 (REDEMPTION [; OTHER PAYMENTS] [•])

- [1.] [Subject to [§ •] [other applicable provisions] [the/The] Certificates will be redeemed pursuant to the following provisions on [Redemption Date] [the •th Payment Business Day (§ 5 paragraph 3) following the [Valuation Date] [•] (the "Redemption Date") by [insert applicable provisions including formula(e) and/or provisions regarding redemption by way of payment of Final Redemption Amount (including its definition) and/or redemption by way of delivery and/or additional definitions and/or other aspects, if appropriate].
- [2.] [insert provisions regarding payments in addition to the Final Redemption Amount, if appropriate]

Alternative:	Certificates for which gross-up tax clause of § 6 applies
This paragraph shall apply to all Certificate where the Issuer does not have a Call Option	1. Except as provided in [§ 7 paragraph [1/3] and] § 6, the Issuer shall not be entitled to redeem the Certificates prior to the Redemption Date.
This paragraph shall apply to all Certificates where the Issuer has a Call Option	 The Issuer shall, in addition to the right to redeem the Certificates prior to the Redemption Date in accordance with [§ 7 paragraph [1/3] and] § 6, have the right upon not less than [number] days' prior notice to be given by publication in accordance with § 13, to redeem prior to the Redemption Date all, but not less than all, of the outstanding Certificates in accord- ance with the following provisions: [insert applicable provisions]
This paragraph shall apply to all Certificates where the Certificateholders do not have a Put Option	2. Except as provided in § 11, the Certificateholders shall not be entitled to call for a redemption of the Certificates prior to the Redemption Date.
This paragraph shall apply to all Certificates where the Certificateholders have a Put Option	 Each Certificateholder shall, in addition to the right to call for redemption in accordance with § 11, be entitled upon not less than [number] days' prior written notice to the Principal Paying Agent, to call his Certificates for early redemption in accordance with the following provisions: [insert applicable provisions]

§ 4 (EARLY REDEMPTION, REPURCHASE OF CERTIFICATES)

This paragraph shall apply to all Certificates which do not contain an early redemption right with reference to an underlying pursuant to § 7

This paragraph shall apply to all Certificates which contain an early redemption right with reference to an underlying pursuant to § 7

This paragraph shall apply to all Certificates with Automatic Early Redemption

- 3. If the Certificates are called for redemption due to an event having occurred as described in § 6 paragraph 3 or in § 11, as the case may be, they shall be redeemed at the "Early Redemption Amount" which shall be determined as follows: [insert applicable provisions]
- 3. If the Certificates are called for redemption due to the occurrence of an Extraordinary Event in accordance with § 7 paragraph [1/3] or an event having occurred as described in § 6 paragraph 3 or in § 11, as the case may be, they shall be redeemed at the early redemption amount (the "Early Redemption Amount") which shall be calculated by the Issuer [in its reasonable discretion (§ 315 of the German Civil Code) as the fair value of the Certificates at the date as determined by the Issuer. Such date and the Early Redemption Amount shall be notified in accordance with § 13] [insert other applicable provision]. The rights arising from the Certificates will terminate upon the payment of the Early Redemption Amount.
- [4]. Notwithstanding any other rights to redeem the Certificates prior to the Redemption Date in accordance with these Terms and Conditions, the Certificates shall be terminated automatically and redeemed on the Automatic Early Redemption Date at the Automatic Early Redemption Amount.

[Insert applicable provisions, including but not limited to early termination trigger event(s), definitions of Automatic Early Redemption Date(s) and Automatic Early Redemption Amount(s) and/or other amount(s) and/or formula(e) and/or additional definitions and/or provisions regarding market disruption, settlement disruption, adjustment clauses and/or other aspects, if appropriate

This paragraph shall [5]. The Issuer may at any time purchase Certificates in the market or apply to all otherwise. Certificates repurchased by or on behalf of the Issuer may be Certificates held by the Issuer, re-issued, resold or surrendered to the Principal Paying Agent (§ 10) for cancellation.

Alternative:	Certificates for which gross-up tax clause of § 6 does not apply
This paragraph shall apply to all Certificates where the Issuer does not have a Call Option	1. [Except as provided in § 7 paragraph [1/3], the] [The] Issuer shall not be entitled to redeem the Certificates prior to the Redemption Date.
This paragraph shall apply to all Certificates where the Issuer has a Call Option	 The Issuer shall [, in addition to the right to redeem the Certificates prior to the Redemption Date in accordance with § 7 paragraph [1/3],] have the right upon not less than [<i>number</i>] days' prior notice to be given by publication in accordance with § 13, to redeem prior to the Redemption Date all, but not less than all, of the outstanding Certificates in accordance with the following provisions: [<i>insert applicable provisions</i>]
This paragraph shall apply to all Certificates where the Certificateholders do not have a Put Option	2. Except as provided in § 11, the Certificateholders shall not be entitled to call for a redemption of the Certificates prior to the Redemption Date.
This paragraph shall apply to all	2. Each Certificateholder shall, in addition to the right to call for redemption in accordance with § 11, be entitled upon not less than [number] days'

Certificate where the Certificateholders have a Put Option

This paragraph shall apply to all Certificates which do not contain an early redemption right with reference to an underlying pursuant to § 7

This paragraph shall apply to all Certificates which contain an early redemption right with reference to an underlying pursuant to § 7

This paragraph shall apply to all Certificates with Automatic Early Redemption prior written notice to the Principal Paying Agent, to call his Certificates for early redemption in accordance with the following provisions: [insert applicable provisions]

- 3. If the Certificates are called for redemption due to an event having occurred as described in § 11 they shall be redeemed at the "Early Redemption Amount" which shall be determined as follows: [insert applicable provisions]
- 3. If the Certificates are called for redemption due to the occurrence of an Extraordinary Event in accordance with § 7 paragraph [1/3] or an event having occurred as described in § 11, as the case may be, they shall be redeemed at the early redemption amount amount (the "Early Redemption Amount") which shall be calculated by the Issuer [in its reasonable discretion (§ 315 of the German Civil Code) as the fair value of the Certificates at the date as determined by the Issuer in the notification of the termination] [insert other applicable provision]. The rights arising from the Certificates will terminate upon the payment of the Early Redemption Amount.
- [4. Notwithstanding any other rights to redeem the Certificates prior to the Redemption Date in accordance with these Terms and Conditions, the Certificates shall be terminated automatically and redeemed on the Automatic Early Redemption Date at the Automatic Early Redemption Amount.]

[Insert applicable provisions, including but not limited to early termination trigger event(s), definitions of Automatic Early Redemption Date(s) and Automatic Early Redemption Amount(s) and/or other amount(s) and/or formula(e) and/or additional definitions and/or provisions regarding market disruption, settlement disruption, adjustment clauses and/or other aspects, if appropriate]

[4/5]. The Issuer may at any time purchase Certificates in the market or otherwise. Certificates repurchased by or on behalf of the Issuer may be held by the Issuer, re-issued, resold or surrendered to the Principal Paying Agent (§ 10) for cancellation.

§ 5 (PAYMENTS [, DELIVERY OF [•] [THE UNDERLYING])

Alternative:	Certificates with cash settlement only	
	1.	The Issuer irrevocably undertakes to pay, as and when due, all amounts payble pursuant to these Terms and Conditions.
This paragraph shall be added to para- graph 1 in the case of Certificates in USD with a life of more than 1 year and a first payment or delivery after 40 days following issue date		Payments on Certificates represented by a Temporary Global Certificate shall only be effected upon due certification in accordance with § 1 paragraph 2.

2. All amounts payable pursuant to these Terms and Conditions will be made against presentation, and in the case of the last payment, against

Page 78

surrender of the Global Certificate to the Principal Paying Agent for transfer to the Clearing System or pursuant to the Clearing System's instruction for credit to the relevant accountholders of the Clearing System. Payment to the Clearing System or pursuant to the Clearing System's instruction shall release the Issuer from its payment obligations under the Certificates in the amount of such payment.

3. If any payment with respect to a Certificate is to be effected on a day other than a Payment Business Day, payment shall be effected on the next following Payment Business Day. In this case, the relevant Certificateholder shall neither be entitled to any payment claim nor to any interest claim or other compensation with respect to such delay.

"Payment Business Day" means a day [on which the Trans-European Automated Real-Time Gross settlement Express Transfer system which utilises a single shared platform (TARGET2) is open / (other than a Saturday or Sunday) on which commercial banks and foreign exchange markets in [city]] and the Clearing System settle payments in [the Issue Currency] [•].

 All payments are subject in all cases to any applicable fiscal or other laws, regulations and directives, but without prejudice to the provisions of § 6. No commission or expense shall be charged to the Certificateholders in respect of such payments.

This paragraph

This paragraph

applies if the gross-

up tax clause of § 6 is not selected

is selected

applies if the gross-

up tax clause of § 6

- 4. All payments are subject in all cases to any applicable fiscal or other laws, regulations and directives.
- 5. The Issuer may deposit with the local court (*Amtsgericht*), Frankfurt am Main, payments not claimed by Certificateholders within 12 months after the respective due date, even though the respective Certificateholders may not be in default of acceptance. If and to the extent that the deposit is made under waiver of the right of withdrawal, the respective claims of the respective Certificateholders against the Issuer shall cease.

Alternative:	Certificates with cash settlement and delivery obligations	
	 The Issuer irrevocably undertakes to pay, as and when due, all amounts payble or to deliver, as and when due, [the Underlying] [•] pursuant to these Terms and Conditions. 	
This paragraph shall be added to para- graph 1 in the case of Certificates in USD with a life of more than 1 year and a first payment or delivery after 40 days following issue date	Payments and deliveries on Certificates represented by a Temporary Global Certificate shall only be effected upon due certification in accordance with § 1 paragraph 2.	
	2. Payment and delivery obligations pursuant to these Terms and Conditions will be made against presentation, and in the case of the last payment or delivery, against surrender of the Global Certificate to the Principal Paying Agent for transfer to the Clearing System or pursuant to the Clearing System's instruction for credit to the relevant accountholders of the	

System's instruction for credit to the cleaning System of pursuant to the cleaning Clearing System. Any payment or delivery to the Clearing System or pursuant to the Clearing System's instruction shall release the Issuer from its payment or delivery obligations under the Certificates in the amount of such payment or delivery, respectively.

Page 79

3. If any payment with respect to a Certificate is to be effected on a day other than a Payment Business Day, payment shall be effected on the next following Payment Business Day. In this case, the relevant Certificateholder shall neither be entitled to any payment claim nor to any interest claim or other compensation with respect to such delay.

"Payment Business Day" means a day [on which the Trans-European Automated Real-Time Gross settlement Express Transfer system which utilises a single shared platform (TARGET2) is open / (other than a Saturday or Sunday) on which commercial banks and foreign exchange markets in [city]] and the Clearing System settle payments in [the Issue Currency] [•].

- 4. All payments and/or deliveries are subject in all cases to any applicable fiscal or other laws, regulations and directives, but without prejudice to the provisions of § 6. No commission or expense shall be charged to the Certificateholders in respect of such payments.
 - 4. All payments and/or deliveries are subject in all cases to any applicable fiscal or other laws, regulations and directives.
 - 5. The Issuer may deposit with the local court (*Amtsgericht*), Frankfurt am Main, any amounts payable and/or any deliveries not claimed by Certificateholders within 12 months after the respective due date, even though the respective Certificateholders may not be in default of acceptance. If and to the extent that the deposit is made under waiver of the right of withdrawal, the respective claims of the respective Certificateholders against the Issuer shall cease.

§6 (TAXES)

Alternative:	Certificates with respect to which the Certificateholder has to pay taxes, fees or other duties (Certificateholder tax responsibility clause)
	All present and future taxes, fees or other duties in connection with the Certificates shall be borne and paid by the Certificateholders. The Issuer is entitled to withhold from payments to be made under the Certificates any taxes,

entitled to withhold from payments to be made under the Certificates any taxes, fees and/or duties payable by the Certificateholder in accordance with the previous sentence.

Alternative:	Certificates with respect to which the Certificateholder has to pay taxes, fees or
	other duties (Certificateholder tax responsibility clause)

- 1. All amounts payable under the Certificates will be paid without deduction or withholding for or on account of any present or future taxes, duties or governmental charges whatsoever imposed or levied by or on behalf of the Federal Republic of Germany or any taxing authority therein, unless the Issuer is compelled by a law or other regulation to deduct or withhold such taxes, duties or governmental charges. In that event, the Issuer shall pay such additional amounts (the "Additional Amounts") as may be necessary in order that the net amounts after such deduction or withholding shall equal the amounts that would have been payable if no such deduction or withholding had been made.
- 2. No Additional Amounts shall be payable pursuant to paragraph 1 with respect to taxes, duties or governmental charges

This paragraph applies if the grossup tax clause of § 6 is selected

This paragraph applies if the grossup tax clause of § 6 is not selected

- (a) for which a Certificateholder is liable because of a connection with the Federal Republic of Germany or another [member state of the European Union] [state that is part of the European Economic Area] other than the mere fact of his being the holder of the Certificates;
- (b) to which the Certificateholder would not be subject if he had presented his Certificates for payment within 30 days from the due date for payment, or, if the necessary funds were not provided to the Principal Paying Agent or any other Paying Agent appointed pursuant to § 10 when due, within 30 days from the date on which such funds are provided to the Paying Agents and a notice to that effect has been published in accordance with § 13;
- (c) which would not be payable if the Certificates had been kept in safe custody with, and the payments had been collected by, a credit institution;
- (d) which are deducted or withheld by a Paying Agent, if the payment could have been made by another Paying Agent without such deduction or withholding;
- (e) which are deducted or withheld pursuant to (i) any European Union Directive or Regulation concerning the taxation of interest income, or (ii) any international treaty or understanding relating to such taxation and to which the Federal Republic of Germany or another member state of the European Union or the European Union is party, or (iii) any provision of law implementing or complying with, or introduced to conform with, such Directive, regulation, treaty or understanding;
- (f) which are payable by any person acting as custodian bank or collecting agent on behalf of a Certificateholder, or otherwise in any manner which does not constitute a deduction or withholding by the Issuer from payments of principal or interest made by it;
- (g) which are deducted or withheld, even if the deduction or withholding has to be made by the Issuer or its representative, pursuant to the Corporate Tax Reform Act 2008 of the Federal Republic of Germany providing for the introduction of a definitive flat tax (*Abgeltungssteuer*) on certain investment income as from 1 January 2009; or
- (h) which are payable by reason of a change in law (or by reason of any application or official interpretation of any law or regulation) that becomes effective more than 30 days after the relevant payment becomes due, or, if this occurs later, is duly provided for and notice thereof is given in accordance with § 13.
- 3. If at any future time as a result of a change of the laws applicable in the Federal Republic of Germany or a change in their official application, the Issuer is required, or at the time of the next succeeding payment due will be required, to pay Additional Amounts as provided in § 6 paragraph 1, the Issuer will be entitled, upon not less than 30 days' and not more than 60 days' notice to be given by publication in accordance with § 13, prior to the Redemption Date to redeem all Certificates at the Early Redemption Amount. No redemption pursuant to this § 6 paragraph 3 shall be made more than 30 days prior to the date on which such change of the laws or their official application becomes applicable to the Certificates for the first

time.

\$7 ([ADJUSTMENTS, MARKET DISRUPTION [, POSTPONEMENT OF VALUATION DATE] [, SETTLEMENT DISRUPTION] [•]]] [THIS CLAUSE HAS BEEN INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK])

Alternative:	Certificates without adjustments
[leave blank]	
Alternative:	Certificates with reference to a share or shares
	1. If in the opinion of the Calculation Agent (§ 10) an Adjustment Event or an Extraordinary Event (both as defined below) has occurred, the Issuer is entitled, but not obligated, to make adjustments to the Terms and Conditions taking into consideration the provisions set forth hereinafter. If in the opinion of the Calculation Agent an Extraordinary Event has occurred, the Issuer is entitled, but not obligated, to (instead of an adjustment) terminate and redeem all, but not less than all, Certificates prematurely at the Early Redemption Amount (§ 4 paragraph 3) by giving notice in accordance with § 13 where an adjustment is not possible or would be unreasonable.
	2. When making adjustments to the Terms and Conditions, the Issuer shall act in its reasonable discretion (§ 315 of the German Civil Code) and is entitled, but not obligated, to take into consideration the adjustments to options or futures contracts relating to the Underlying made by the Related Exchange or that would have been made by the Related Exchange if such options or futures contracts were traded on the Related Exchange.
	3. Any of the before-mentioned adjustments may, among others, relate to [<i>parameters</i>] and may result in the Underlying being replaced by other securities, a basket of securities and/or cash, and another exchange being determined as the Exchange. However, the Issuer is also entitled to make other adjustments taking into consideration the before-mentioned principles.
	 Adjustments take effect as from the date determined by the Issuer,. Adjustments as well as the effective date shall be notified by the Issuer in accordance with § 13.
	5. If on [the Valuation Date <i>I</i> insert other valuation time] the [price] of the Underlying is not determined and published by the Exchange, or if on [the Valuation Date / insert other valuation time], in the opinion of the Calculation Agent, a Market Disruption Event with respect to the Underlying occurs, then the next following calendar day on which the [price] is again determined and published by the Exchange and on which there is no Market Disruption Event with respect to the Underlying will be deemed to be [the Valuation Date / insert other valuation time].
	If according to the before-mentioned provisions [the Valuation Date / <i>insert other valuation time</i>] is postponed until the second Exchange Business Day prior to the Redemption Date and if on such date the [<i>price</i>] of the Underlying is still not determined and published by the Exchange or if a Market Disruption Event occurs or is continuing on such date, such date prior to be the Redemption Date and if on such date the relevant the Redemption Date and published by the Exchange or if a Market Disruption Event occurs or is continuing on such date, such date

prior to the Redemption Date shall be deemed to be the relevant [the Valuation Date / insert other valuation time], and the Calculation Agent will, in its reasonable discretion (§ 315 of the German Civil Code) and in consideration of the prevailing market conditions, estimate the [price] of the Underlying on such date which shall be notified by the Issuer in accordance with § 13.

This paragraph shall apply to all Certificates without delivery obligations 6.

For the purposes of this § 7 the following definitions shall apply:

"Adjustment Event" means:

- (a) any of the following actions taken by the Company: capital increases through issuance of new shares against capital contribution and issuance of subscription rights to the shareholders, capital increases out of the Company's reserves, issuance of securities with option or conversion rights related to the Underlying, distributions of extraordinary dividends, stock splits or any other split, consolidation or alteration of category (as long as this does not constitute a merger);
- (b) a spin-off of a part of the Company in such a way that a new independent entity is formed, or that the spun-off part of the Company is absorbed by another entity;
- (c) the adjustment of options or futures contracts relating to the Underlying on the Related Exchange or the announcement of such adjustment; or
- (d) any other adjustment event being economically comparable to the before-mentioned events with regard to their effects.

"Extraordinary Event" means any of the following events:

- (a) a takeover-bid, i.e. an offer to take over or to swap or any other offer or any other act of an individual person or a legal entity that results in the individual person or legal entity buying, otherwise acquiring or obtaining a right to buy more than 10% of the outstanding shares of the Company as a consequence of a conversion or otherwise, as determined by the Issuer based on notifications to the competent authorities or on other information determined as relevant by the Issuer;
- (b) the termination of trading in, or early settlement of, options or futures contracts relating to the Underlying on the Related Exchange or the announcement of such termination or early settlement;
- (c) the becoming known of the intention of the Company or of the Exchange to terminate the listing of the Underlying on the Exchange or the termination of the listing of the Underlying at the Exchange or the announcement of the Exchange that the listing of the Underlying at the Exchange will terminate immediately or at a later date and that the Underlying will not be admitted, traded or listed at any other comparable exchange, trading system or quotation system immediately following the termination of the listing;
- (d) the Issuer and/or its affiliates (§ 15 of the German Stock Corporation Act) are, even following economically reasonable efforts, not in the position (i) to enter, re-enter, replace, maintain, liquidate, acquire or dispose of any transactions or investments that the Issuer considers necessary to hedge its risks resulting from the assumption and performance of its obligations under the

Certificates or (ii) to realize, regain or transfer the proceeds resulting from such transactions or investments;

- (e) a procedure is introduced or ongoing pursuant to which all shares or the substantial assets of the Company are or are liable to be nationalized or expropriated or otherwise transferred to public agencies, authorities or organizations;
- (f) the application for insolvency proceedings or for comparable proceedings with regard to the assets of the Company according to the applicable law of the Company; or
- (g) any other event being economically comparable to the beforementioned events with regard to their effects.

"Market Disruption Event" means the occurrence or existence of any suspension of, or limitation imposed on, trading (by reason of movements in price exceeding the limits permitted by the Exchange or otherwise) in (a) the Underlying on the Exchange, or (b) any options contracts or futures contracts relating to the Underlying on the Related Exchange, provided that any such suspension or limitation is material in the reasonable discretion of the Issuer (§ 315 of the German Civil Code) for the evaluation of the Certificates and the fulfillment of its obligations under the Certificates. The occurrence of a Market Disruption Event shall be published in accordance with § 13.

A limitation regarding the office hours or the number of days of trading will not constitute a Market Disruption Event if it results from an announced change in the regular business hours of the relevant exchange. A limitation on trading imposed during the course of a day by reason of movements in price exceeding permitted limits shall only be deemed to be a Market Disruption Event in the case that such limitation is still prevailing at the time of termination of the trading hours on such date.

6. If the Issuer is required to deliver [the Delivery Amount] [•] and if, in the opinion of the Calculation Agent, a Settlement Disruption Event occurs or is continuing on the Redemption Date, then the delivery of the [the Delivery Amount] [•] shall be postponed to the first following Exchange Business Day on which there is no Settlement Disruption Event (the "Postponed Settlement Date"). In no event shall the Postponed Settlement Date be later than the fifth Exchange Business Day following the Redemption Date. If the Settlement Disruption Event is continuing on the fourth Exchange Business Day following the Redemption Date, then (i) the Postponed Settlement Date shall be the fifth Exchange Business Day following the Redemption Date and (ii) the Issuer shall have the right to pay a cash equivalent redemption amount (the "Cash Equivalent Redemption Amount"), in lieu of the delivery of the Delivery Amount, to the Certificateholder. In the event of a payment of a Cash Equivalent Redemption Amount § 5 paragraph 3 of these Terms and Conditions shall apply mutatis mutandis. The Cash Equivalent Redemption Amount will be determined by the Issuer in its reasonable discretion (§ 315 of the German Civil Code).

All determinations made by the Issuer and/or the Calculation Agent pursuant to this paragraph shall be notified to the Certificateholder in accordance with § 13. The Certificateholder will not be entitled to any compensation from the Issuer for any loss suffered as a result of the occurrence of a Settlement Disruption Event and no liability in respect thereof shall attach to the Issuer.

These paragraphs shall apply to all Certificates with delivery obligations 7. For the purposes of this § 7 the following definitions shall apply:

"Adjustment Event" means:

- (a) any of the following actions taken by the Company: capital increases through issuance of new shares against capital contribution and issuance of subscription rights to the shareholders, capital increases out of the Company's reserves, issuance of securities with option or conversion rights related to the Underlying, distributions of extraordinary dividends, stock splits or any other split, consolidation or alteration of category (as long as this does not constitute a merger);
- (b) a spin-off of a part of the Company in such a way that a new independent entity is formed, or that the spun-off part of the Company is absorbed by another entity;
- (c) the adjustment of options or futures contracts relating to the Underlying on the Related Exchange or the announcement of such adjustment; or
- (d) any other adjustment event being economically comparable to the before-mentioned events with regard to their effects.

"Extraordinary Event" means any of the following events:

- (a) a takeover-bid, i.e. an offer to take over or to swap or any other offer or any other act of an individual person or a legal entity that results in the individual person or legal entity buying, otherwise acquiring or obtaining a right to buy more than 10% of the outstanding shares of the Company as a consequence of a conversion or otherwise, as determined by the Issuer based on notifications to the competent authorities or on other information determined as relevant by the Issuer;
- (b) the termination of trading in, or early settlement of, options or futures contracts relating to the Underlying on the Related Exchange or the announcement of such termination or early settlement;
- (c) the becoming known of the intention of the Company or of the Exchange to terminate the listing of the Underlying on the Exchange or the termination of the listing of the Underlying at the Exchange or the announcement of the Exchange that the listing of the Underlying at the Exchange will terminate immediately or at a later date and that the Underlying will not be admitted, traded or listed at any other comparable exchange, trading system or quotation system immediately following the termination of the listing;
- (d) the Issuer and/or its affiliates (§ 15 of the German Stock Corporation Act) are, even following economically reasonable efforts, not in the position (i) to enter, re-enter, replace, maintain, liquidate, acquire or dispose of any transactions or investments that the Issuer considers necessary to hedge its risks resulting from the assumption and performance of its obligations under the Certificates or (ii) to realize, regain or transfer the proceeds resulting from such transactions or investments;
- (e) a procedure is introduced or ongoing pursuant to which all shares

or the substantial assets of the Company are or are liable to be nationalized or expropriated or otherwise transferred to public agencies, authorities or organizations;

- (f) the application for insolvency proceedings or for comparable proceedings with regard to the assets of the Company according to the applicable law of the Company; or
- (g) any other event being economically comparable to the beforementioned events with regard to their effects.

"Market Disruption Event" means the occurrence or existence of any suspension of, or limitation imposed on, trading (by reason of movements in price exceeding the limits permitted by the Exchange or otherwise) in (a) the Underlying on the Exchange, or (b) any options contracts or futures contracts relating to the Underlying on the Related Exchange, provided that any such suspension or limitation is material in the reasonable discretion of the Issuer (§ 315 of the German Civil Code) for the evaluation of the Certificates and the fulfillment of its obligations under the Certificates. The occurrence of a Market Disruption Event shall be published in accordance with § 13.

A limitation regarding the office hours or the number of days of trading will not constitute a Market Disruption Event if it results from an announced change in the regular business hours of the relevant exchange. A limitation on trading imposed during the course of a day by reason of movements in price exceeding permitted limits shall only be deemed to be a Market Disruption Event in the case that such limitation is still prevailing at the time of termination of the trading hours on such date.

"Settlement Disruption Event" means an event, [(a)] which, in the opinion of the Calculation Agent, is beyond the control of the Issuer and as a result of which the Issuer cannot deliver or cannot procure the delivery of [the Delivery Amount] [•] [or, (b) if it is impossible to deliver [the Delivery Amount] [•] to the Certificateholders under the applicable rules of the Clearing System irrespective of when such rules have been introduced].

Alternative:	Certificates with reference to an index consisting of futures contracts
	1. If the Index is no longer calculated and published by the Index Sponsor but by another person, company or institution acceptable to the Issuer as the new Index Sponsor (the " Successor Sponsor "), the redemption of the Certificates will be determined on the basis of the Index being calculated and published by the Successor Sponsor and any reference made to the Index Sponsor shall, if the context so admits, then refer to the Successor Sponsor.
	2. If at any time the Index is cancelled or replaced, the Calculation Agent (§ 10) will determine its reasonable discretion (§ 315 of the German Civil Code) another index on the basis of which the redemption of the Certificates will be determined (the " Successor Index "). The respective Successor Index as well as the time of its first application will be notified as soon as possible pursuant to § 13. Any reference made to the Index in these Terms and Conditions shall, if the context so admits, then refer to the Successor Index. All related definitions shall be deemed to be amended accordingly. Furthermore, the Calculation Agent will make all necessary adjustments to the Terms and Conditions of the Certificates

resulting from a substitution of the Index.

- 3. If in the opinion of the Calculation Agent (i) the determination of a Successor Index in accordance with the above paragraph is not possible or unreasonable for the Issuer or (ii) if the Index Sponsor materially modifies the calculation method of an Index with effect on or before [the Valuation Date / insert other valuation time], or materially modifies the Index in any other way (except for modifications which are contemplated in the calculation method of the Index relating to a change with respect to securities comprising the Index, the market capitalisation or with respect to any other routine measures) (each of such events an "Extraordinary Event"), then the Issuer is entitled to (a) continue (itself or through an independent expert determined by the Issuer) the calculation of the Index on the basis of the former concept of the Index and its last determined level or (b) to (instead of a continuation of the calculation of the Index) terminate and redeem all, but not less than all, Certificates prematurely at the Early Redemption Amount (§ 4 paragraph 3) by giving notice in accordance with § 13.
- 4. If on [the Valuation Date / insert other valuation time] the [price] of the Index is not determined and published by the Index Sponsor, or if on [the Valuation Date / insert other valuation time], in the opinion of the Calculation Agent, a Market Disruption Event with respect to the Index occurs, then the next following calendar day on which the [price] is again determined and published by the Index Sponsor and on which there is no Market Disruption Event with respect to the Index will be deemed to be the [the Valuation Date / insert other valuation time].

If according to the before-mentioned provisions [the Valuation Date / insert other valuation time] is postponed until the [third] [•] Payment Business Day prior to the Redemption Date and if on such date the [*price*] of the Index is still not determined and published by the Index Sponsor or if a Market Disruption Event occurs or is continuing on such date, such date prior to the Redemption Date shall be deemed to be the relevant [the Valuation Date / *insert other valuation time*], and the Calculation Agent will, in its reasonable discretion (§ 315 of the German Civil Code) and in consideration of the prevailing market conditions, estimate the [*price*] of the Index on such date which shall be notified by the Issuer in accordance with § 13.

"Market Disruption Event" with respect to the Index means the occurrence or existence of any suspension of or limitation imposed on trading in the futures and options contracts contained in the Index on the exchanges or trading systems the prices of which are the basis for the calculation of the Index, or the suspension of or limitation imposed on trading in options or futures contracts on the Index on the options and futures exchange with the highest trading volume of options and futures contracts relating to the Index. provided that any such suspension or limitation is material in the reasonable discretion of the Issuer (§ 315 of the German Civil Code) for the evaluation of the Certificates and the fulfillment of its obligations under the Certificates. The occurrence of a Market Disruption Event shall be published in accordance with § 13.

A limitation regarding the office hours or the number of days of trading will not constitute a Market Disruption Event if it results from an announced change in the regular business hours of the relevant exchange. A limitation on trading imposed during the course of a day by reason of movements in price exceeding permitted limits shall only be deemed to be a Market Disruption Event in the case that such limitation is still prevailing at the time of termination of the trading hours on such date.

Alternative:	Certificates with reference to an index consisting of shares	
--------------	--------------------------------------------------------------	--

- If the Index is no longer calculated and published by the Index Sponsor but by another person, company or institution acceptable to the Issuer as the new Index Sponsor (the "Successor Sponsor"), the redemption of the Certificates will be determined on the basis of the Index being calculated and published by the Successor Sponsor and any reference made to the Index Sponsor shall, if the context so admits, then refer to the Successor Sponsor.
- 2. If at any time the Index is cancelled or replaced, the Calculation Agent (§ 10) will determine another index on the basis of which the redemption of the Certificates will be determined (the "Successor Index"). The respective Successor Index as well as the time of its first application will be notified as soon as possible pursuant to § 13. Any reference made to the Index in these Terms and Conditions shall, if the context so admits, then refer to the Successor Index. All related definitions shall be deemed to be amended accordingly. Furthermore, the Calculation Agent will make all necessary adjustments to the Terms and Conditions of the Certificates resulting from a substitution of the Index.
- 3. In the case that the occurrence of an Adjustment Event with respect to a share contained in the Index (the "Index Share") has a material effect on the price of the Index, the Calculation Agent will make adjustments to [*insert parameters*] in its reasonable discretion (§ 315 of the German Civil Code) and give notification pursuant to § 13. Such adjustment shall become effective on the date on which the occurrence of the Adjustment Event with respect to the share contained in the Index has its effect on the price of the Index.

"Adjustment Event" means any of the following events:

- (a) the substitution of the Index by a Successor Index pursuant to paragraph 2;
- (b) any of the following actions taken by the company issuing the Index Shares (the "Index Company"): capital increases through issuance of new shares against capital contribution and issuance of subscription rights to the shareholders, capital increases out of the Index Company's reserves, issuance of securities with option or conversion rights related to the Index Shares, distributions of extraordinary dividends, stock splits or any other split, consolidation or alteration of category (as long as this does not constitute a merger);
- (c) a spin-off of a part of the Index Company in such a way that a new independent entity is formed, or that the spun-off part of the Index Company is absorbed by another entity;
- (d) the adjustment of options or futures contracts relating to the Index Shares on the exchange with the highest trading volume in such option or futures contracts (the "related exchange") or the announcement of such adjustment;
- (e) a takeover-bid, i.e. an offer to take over or to swap or any other offer or any other act of an individual person or a legal entity that results in the individual person or legal entity buying, otherwise acquiring or obtaining a right to buy more than 10% of the outstanding shares of the Index Company as a consequence of a conversion or otherwise, as determined by the Issuer based on

notifications to the competent authorities or on other information determined as relevant by the Issuer in its reasonable discretion (§ 315 of the German Civil Code);

- (f) the termination of trading in, or early settlement of, options or futures contracts relating to the Index Shares on the related exchange or relating to the Index itself or the announcement of such termination or early settlement;
- (g) the becoming known of the intention of the Index Company or of the exchange on which the respective Index Shares are traded (provided that the quotations of the prices of the Index Shares on such exchange are taken for the calculation of the Index) (the "exchange") to terminate the listing of the Index Shares on the exchange or the termination of the listing of the Index Shares at the exchange or the announcement of the exchange that the listing of the Index Shares at the exchange will terminate immediately or at a later date and that the Index Shares will not be admitted, traded or listed at any other comparable exchange, trading system or quotation system immediately following the termination of the listing;
- (h) the Issuer and/or its affiliates (§ 15 of the German Stock Corporation Act) are, even following economically reasonable efforts, not in the position (i) to enter, re-enter, replace, maintain, liquidate, acquire or dispose of any transactions or investments that the Issuer considers necessary to hedge its risks resulting from the assumption and performance of its obligations under the Certificates or (ii) to realize, regain or transfer the proceeds resulting from such transactions or investments;
- a procedure is introduced or ongoing pursuant to which all shares or the substantial assets of the Index Company are or are liable to be nationalized or expropriated or otherwise transferred to public agencies, authorities or organizations;
- (j) the application for insolvency proceedings or for comparable proceedings with regard to the assets of the Index Company according to the applicable law of the Index Company; or
- (k) any other adjustment event being economically comparable to the before-mentioned events with regard to their effects.
- 4. If in the opinion of the Calculation Agent (i) the determination of a Successor Index in accordance with the above paragraph is not possible or unreasonable for the Issuer or (ii) if the Index Sponsor materially modifies the calculation method of an Index with effect on or before [the Valuation Date / insert other valuation time], or materially modifies the Index in any other way (except for modifications which are contemplated in the calculation method of the Index relating to a change with respect to securities comprising the Index, the market capitalisation or with respect to any other routine measures) (each of such events an "Extraordinary Event"), then the Issuer is entitled to (a) continue (itself or through an independent expert determined by the Issuer) the calculation of the Index on the basis of the former concept of the Index and its last determined level or (b) to (instead of a continuation of the calculation of the Index) terminate and redeem all, but not less than all, Certificates prematurely at the Early Redemption Amount (§ 4 paragraph 3) by giving notice in accordance with § 13.

5. If on [the Valuation Date *I insert other valuation time*] the [*price*] of the Index is not determined and published by the Index Sponsor, or if on [the Valuation Date / *insert other valuation time*], in the opinion of the Calculation Agent, a Market Disruption Event with respect to the Index occurs, then the next following calendar day on which the [*price*] is again determined and published by the Index Sponsor and on which there is no Market Disruption Event with respect to the Index will be deemed to be the [the Valuation Date / *insert other valuation time*].

If according to the before-mentioned provisions [the Valuation Date / insert other valuation time] is postponed until the [third] [•] Payment Business Day prior to the Redemption Date and if on such date the [*price*] of the Index is still not determined and published by the Index Sponsor or if a Market Disruption Event occurs or is continuing on such date, such date prior to the Redemption Date shall be deemed to be the relevant [the Valuation Date / *insert other valuation time*], and the Calculation Agent will, in its reasonable discretion (§ 315 of the German Civil Code) and in consideration of the prevailing market conditions, estimate the [*price*] of the Index on such date which shall be notified by the Issuer in accordance with § 13.

"Market Disruption Event" means the occurrence or existence of any suspension of, or limitation imposed on, trading in the Index Shares on the exchange or the suspension of or limitation imposed on trading in options or futures contracts on the Index on the options and futures exchange with the highest trading volume of option and future contracts relating to the Index, provided that any such suspension or limitation is material in the reasonable discretion of the Issuer (§ 315 of the German Civil Code) for the evaluation of the Certificates and the fulfillment of its obligations under the Certificates. The occurrence of a Market Disruption Event shall be published in accordance with § 13

A limitation regarding the office hours or the number of days of trading will not constitute a Market Disruption Event if it results from an announced change in the regular business hours of the relevant exchange. A limitation on trading imposed during the course of a day by reason of movements in price exceeding permitted limits shall only be deemed to be a Market Disruption Event in the case that such limitation is still prevailing at the time of termination of the trading hours on such date.

Alternative: Certificates with reference to futures contracts on commodities

1 If in the opinion of the Calculation Agent (§ 10) an Extraordinary Event (as defined below) has occurred, the Issuer is entitled to either (i) make adjustments to the Terms and Conditions taking into consideration the provisions set forth hereinafter, or (ii) to (instead of an adjustment) terminate and redeem all, but not less than all, Certificates prematurely at the Early Redemption Amount (§ 4 paragraph 3) by giving notice in accordance with § 13. In making adjustments to the Terms and Conditions, the Issuer is entitled, but not obligated, to take into consideration the adjustments made to options or futures contracts relating to the Underlying that are traded on [the Exchange] [•]. If the Issuer makes adjustments without taking into consideration the manner in which adjustments are or would be made by the Exchange, the Issuer shall make the adjustments in its reasonable discretion (§ 315 of the German Civil Code). Any of the before-mentioned adjustments may, among others, relate to [the Initial Price, the Multiplier etc.] [other parameters] and may result in the Futures Contract being replaced by other futures contracts, a basket of futures contracts and/or cash, and

another exchange being determined as the Exchange.

However, the Issuer is not obligated to make an adjustment and it is also entitled to make other adjustments taking into consideration the beforementioned principles.

- 2. Adjustments take effect as from the date determined by the Issuer, provided that (in case the Issuer takes into consideration the manner in which adjustments are or would be made by the [the Exchange] [•]) the Issuer shall take into consideration the date at which such adjustments take effect or would take effect on the [the Exchange] [•]. Adjustments as well as the effective date shall be notified by the Issuer in accordance with § 13.
- 3. If on the Valuation Date in the opinion of the Calculation Agent a [*price*] of the Futures Contract is not determined and published or if a Trading Disruption with respect to the Futures Contract occurs, then the next following calendar day on which a [*price*] of the Futures Contract is again determined and published and on which a Trading Disruption does not occur will be deemed to be the Valuation Date for the Futures Contract.

If according to the before-mentioned provisions the Valuation Date is postponed until the second Exchange Business Day prior to the Redemption Date and if on such date a [*price*] of the Futures Contract is still not determined and published or if a Trading Disruption occurs or is continuing on such date, such second Exchange Business Day prior to the Redemption Date shall be deemed to be the relevant Valuation Date, and the Calculation Agent will, in its reasonable discretion (§ 315 German Civil Code (BGB)) and in consideration of the prevailing market conditions, estimate the [*price*] of the Futures Contract on such day and make a notification in accordance with § 13.

4. For the purposes of this § 7 the following definitions shall apply:

"Disappearance of Reference Price" means (a) the permanent discontinuation of trading, in the Futures Contract on the Exchange; (b) the disappearance of, or of trading in, the Commodity; or (c) the disappearance or permanent discontinuance or unavailability of a [*price*], notwithstanding the availability of the Price Source or the status of trading in the Futures Contract or the Commodity.

"Extraordinary Event" means the occurrence of any of the following events: Disappearance of Reference Price, Hedging Disruption, Material Change in Content, Price Source Disruption, Tax Disruption, Trading Disruption or any other event being economically comparable to the before-mentioned events with regard to their effects.

"Hedging Disruption" means an event due to which the Issuer and/or its affiliates (§ 15 of the German Stock Corporation Act) are, even following economically reasonable efforts, not in the position (i) to enter, re-enter, replace, maintain, liquidate, acquire or dispose of any transactions or investments that the Issuer considers necessary to hedge its risks resulting from the assumption and performance of its obligations under the Certificates or (ii) to realize, regain or transfer the proceeds resulting from such transactions or investments;

"Material Change in Content" means the occurrence of a material change in the content, composition or constitution of the Commodity or the Futures Contract.

"**Price Source Disruption**" means (a) the failure of the Price Source to announce or publish the relevant [*price*] (or the information necessary for determining the [*price*]); or (b) the temporary or permanent discontinuance or unavailability of the Price Source.

"Tax Disruption" means the imposition of, change in or removal of an excise, severance, sales, use, value-added, transfer, stamp, documentary, recording or similar tax on, or measured by reference to, a Commodity (other than a tax on, or measured by reference to overall gross or net income) by any government or taxation authority after the Trade Date, if the direct effect of such imposition, change or removal is to raise or lower the [*price*].

"**Trading Disruption**" means the material suspension of, or the material limitation imposed on, trading in the Futures Contract or the Commodity on the Exchange or in any additional futures contract, options contract or commodity on any Exchange. For these purposes:

- (a) a suspension of the trading in the Futures Contract or the Commodity on any Exchange Business Day shall be deemed to be material only if:
 - (1) all trading in the Futures Contract or the Commodity is suspended for the entire Exchange Business Day; or
 - (2) all trading in the Futures Contract or the Commodity is suspended subsequent to the opening of trading on the Exchange Business Day, trading does not recommence prior to the regularly scheduled close of trading in such Futures Contract or such Commodity on such Exchange Business Day and such suspension is announced less than one hour preceding its commencement; and
- (b) a limitation of trading in the Futures Contract or the Commodity on any Exchange Business Day shall be deemed to be material only if the Exchange establishes limits on the range within which the price of the Futures Contract or the Commodity may fluctuate and the closing or settlement price of the Futures Contract or the Commodity oh such day is at the upper or lower limit of that range.

Alternative: Certificates with reference to a combination of different types of underlyings or to other underlyings

[insert applicable provisions from alternatives above, if appropriate, and/or insert other applicable provisions including adjustment clauses, market disruption clauses, settlement disruption clauses and/or other aspects, if applicable to such Certificates]

§ 8 (PRESENTATION PERIODS, PRESCRIPTION)

The period for presentation of the Certificates (§ 801, paragraph 1, sentence 1 of the German Civil Code) shall be ten years and the period of limitation for claims under the Certificates presented during the period for presentation shall be two years calculated from the expiry of the relevant presentation period.

§ 9 (STATUS)

The obligations under the Certificates constitute direct, unconditional and unsecured obligations of the Issuer and rank at least *pari passu* with all other unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of the Issuer (save for such exceptions as may exist from time to time under applicable law).

§ 10

(AGENTS)

1. [Commerzbank Aktiengesellschaft [address] / [other bank]] shall be the "Principal Paying Agent". The Issuer shall procure that there will at all times be a Principal Paying Agent. [The Issuer is entitled to appoint other banks of international standing as Principal Paying Agent or additional paying agents (each, a "Paying Agent"; the Principal Paying Agent and any additional Paying Agent together the "Paying Agents").] [Commerzbank International S.A. [address] / [and] [other bank(s)]] shall be appointed as additional Paying Agent[s] (together with the Principal Paying Agent the "Paying Agents").] [The Issuer shall procure that as long as Certificates are listed on the [exchange] there will at all times be a Paying Agent in [city].]

Furthermore, the Issuer is entitled to terminate the appointment of the Principal Paying Agent as well as of individual Paying Agents. In the event of such termination or such bank being unable or unwilling to continue to act as Principal Paying Agent or Paying Agent, as the case may be, the Issuer shall appoint another bank of international standing as Principal Paying Agent or Paying Agent, respectively. Such appointment or termination shall be published without undue delay in accordance with § 13.

- 2. [Commerzbank Aktiengesellschaft [address] / [other bank]] shall be the "Calculation Agent". The Issuer shall procure that as long as [interest rates have to be determined or other] determinations have to be made in accordance with these Terms and Conditions there shall at all times be a Calculation Agent. The Issuer reserves the right at any time to terminate the appointment of the Calculation Agent. In the event of such termination or of the appointed office of any such bank being unable or unwilling to continue to act as Calculation Agent (as the case may be) the Issuer shall appoint an appropriate office of another leading bank to act as Calculation Agent. The appointment of another Calculation Agent shall be published without delay by the Issuer in accordance with § 13.
- 3. The Paying Agents and the Calculation Agent acting in such capacity, act only as agents of the Issuer. There is no agency or fiduciary relationship between the Paying Agents and the Calculation Agent on the one hand and the Certificateholders on the other hand. The [Paying Agents and the Calculation Agent are hereby granted exemption from the restrictions of § 181 of the German Civil Code and any similar restrictions of the applicable laws of any other country.

§ 11 (TERMINATION)

1. Each Certificateholder is entitled to declare his Certificates due and to require the redemption of his Certificates at the Early Redemption Amount pursuant to § 4 paragraph 3 as provided hereinafter, if:

- (a) the Issuer is in default for more than 30 days in the payment of any amount due [shall be added if Certificates contain a delivery obligation: and/or deliveries];
- (b) the Issuer violates any other obligation under these Terms and Conditions, and such violation continues for 60 days after receipt of written notice thereof from the respective Certificateholder;
- (c) the Issuer is wound up or dissolved whether by a resolution of the shareholders or otherwise (except in connection with a merger or reorganisation in such a way that all of the assets and liabilities of the Issuer pass to another legal person in universal succession by operation of law);
- (d) the Issuer ceases its payments and this continues for 60 days, or admits to be unable to pay its debts;
- (e) any insolvency proceedings are instituted against the Issuer which shall not have been dismissed or stayed within 60 days after their institution or the Issuer applies for the institution of such proceedings, or offers or makes an arrangement for the benefit of its creditors or the Federal Financial Supervisory Authority (BaFin) opens insolvency proceedings against the Issuer; or
- (f) in the case of a substitution of the Issuer within the meaning of § 12 paragraph 4 (b) any of the events set forth in sub-paragraphs (c) (e) above occurs in respect of the Guarantor.

The right to declare Certificates due shall terminate if the circumstances giving rise to it have been remedied before such right is exercised.

2. The right to declare Certificates due pursuant to paragraph 1 shall be exercised by a Certificateholder by delivering or sending by registered mail to the Principal Paying Agent a written notice which shall state the principal amount of the Certificates called for redemption and shall enclose evidence of ownership reasonably satisfactory to the Principal Paying Agent.

§ 12 ([SUBSTITUTION OF ISSUER [, BRANCH DESIGNATION] [THIS CLAUSE HAS BEEN LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK])

Alternative:	Certificates with substitution of the Issuer		
	1. Any other company may assume at any time during the life of the Certificates, subject to § 12 paragraph 4, without the Certificateholders' consent upon notice by the Issuer given through publication in accordance with § 13, all the obligations of the Issuer under these Terms and Conditions.		
	2. Upon any such substitution, such substitute company (hereinafter called the " New Issuer ") shall succeed to, and be substituted for, and may exercise every right and power of, the Issuer under these Terms and Conditions with the same effect as if the New Issuer had been named as the Issuer herein; the Issuer (and, in the case of a repeated application of this § 12, each previous New Issuer) shall be released from its obligations hereunder and from its liability as obligor under the Certificates.		

- 3. In the event of such substitution, any reference in these Terms and Conditions (except for this § 12) to the "Issuer" shall from then on be deemed to refer to the New Issuer and any reference to the country of the corporate seat of the Issuer which is to be substituted (except for the references in § 16 to the Federal Republic of Germany) shall be deemed to refer to the country of the corporate seat of the New Issuer and the country under the laws of which it is organised.
- 4. No such assumption shall be permitted unless
 - the New Issuer has agreed to assume all obligations of the Issuer (a) under the Certificates pursuant to these Terms and Conditions;
 - (b) the New Issuer has agreed to indemnify and hold harmless each Certificateholder against any tax, duty, assessment or governmental charge imposed on such Certificateholder in respect of such substitution;
 - (c) the Issuer (in this capacity referred to as the "Guarantor") has unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed to the Certificateholders compliance by the New Issuer with all obligations under the Certificates pursuant to these Terms and Conditions;
 - (d) the New Issuer and the Guarantor have obtained all governmental authorisations, approvals, consents and permissions necessary in the jurisdictions in which the Guarantor and/or the New Issuer are domiciled or the country under the laws of which they are organised.
- 5. Upon any substitution of the Issuer for a New Issuer, this § 12 shall apply again.
- This paragraph shall **[**6. The Issuer may at any time, designate by publication in accordance with be added if there is a § 13 any branch (Betriebsstätte) of the Issuer outside the Federal Branch Designation Republic of Germany as the branch (Betriebsstätte) primarily responsible for the due and punctual payment in respect of the Certificates then outstanding and the performance of all of the Issuer's other obligations under the Certificates then outstanding.

Paragraphs 4 (c) and 5 of this § 12 shall apply mutatis mutandis to such designation.]

Alternative: Certificates without substitution of the Issuer

[leave blank]

§ 13 (NOTICES)

This paragraph shall apply only to Certificates which are listed on a exchange or offered to the public	Notices relating to the Certificates shall be published on the internet page [•] (or on another internet page notified at least six weeks in advance by the Issuer in accordance with this § 13) and shall be deemed to be effective upon such publication unless such publication gives another effective date. If applicable law or regulations of the exchange on which the Certificates are listed require a notification in another manner, notices shall also be given in the manner so required.
This paragraph shall	Unless these Terms and Conditions expressly provide for publication on the

apply only to Certificates which Issuer's internet page, any notices relating to the Certificates shall be published

are neither listed on a exchange nor offered to the public in the electronic version of the Federal Gazette (*Bundesanzeiger*) and, where required by law, in one supra-regional mandatory publication for each of the exchanges on which the Certificates are admitted to be traded. Any such notice shall be deemed to have been given on the day of its publication (or, in the case of several notices, on the first day of such publication).

§ 14

(AVAILABLE INFORMATION)

Commerzbank hereby undertakes to furnish upon the request of a Certificateholder or the holder of any beneficial interest in a Certificate, upon the request of such holder or to a prospective purchaser designated by such holder or beneficial owner, the information required to be delivered under Rule 144A(d)(4) under the U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as amended if, at the time of the request, Commerzbank is neither a reporting company under Section 13 or 15(d) of the U.S. Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended ("U.S. Exchange Act"), nor exempt from reporting pursuant to Rule 12g3-2(b) under the U.S. Exchange Act.

§ 15 (LIMITATION OF LIABILITY)

The Issuer, the Paying Agents and the Calculation Agent shall be held responsible for acting or failing to act in connection with the Certificates only if, and insofar as, it either (i) breaches material obligations under or in connection with the Terms and Conditions of the Certificates negligently or wilfully or (ii) breaches other obligations with gross negligence or wilfully.

§ 16 (FINAL CLAUSES)

- 1. The form and content of the Certificates and the rights and duties of the Certificateholders, the Issuer, the Calculation Agent and the Paying Agents shall in all respects be governed by the laws of the Federal Republic of Germany.
- 2. In the event of manifest typing or calculation errors or similar manifest errors in the Terms and Conditions, the Issuer shall be entitled to declare rescission (Anfechtung) to the Certificateholders. The declaration of rescission shall be made without undue delay upon becoming aware of any such ground for rescission (Anfechtungsgrund) and in accordance with § 13. Following a declaration of rescission by the Issuer, the Certificateholder is entitled to request repayment of the Issue Price by delivery of a duly completed redemption notice to the Principal Paying Agent on the form available at the Principal Paying Agent or by providing all information and statements requested therein (the "Redemption Notice") and by transfer of the Certificates to the account of the Principal Paying Agent with the Clearing System. The Issuer shall make available the Issue Price to the Certificate Agent within [number] calendar days following receipt of the Redemption Notice and of the Certificates by the Certificate Agent, whichever receipt is later, whereupon the Certificate Agent shall transfer the Issue Price to the account specified in the Redemption Notice. Upon payment of the Issue Price all rights under the Certificates delivered shall expire.
- 3. The Issuer may combine the declaration of rescission pursuant to paragraph 2. with an offer to continue the Certificates on the basis of

corrected Terms and Conditions. Such an offer and the corrected provisions shall be notified to the Certificateholders together with the declaration of rescission in accordance with § 13. Any such offer shall be deemed to be accepted by a Certificateholder (and the rescission shall not take effect), unless the Certificateholder requests repayment of the Issue Price within four weeks following the date on which the offer has become effective in accordance with § 13 by delivery of a duly completed Redemption Notice to the Principal Paying Agent and by transfer of the Certificates to the account of the Principal Paying Agent with the Clearing System pursuant to paragraph 2. The Issuer shall refer to this effect in the notification.

- 4. **"Issue Price**" within the meaning of paragraphs 2. and 3. shall be the actual purchase price paid at the time of the first purchase of the Certificates delivered for repayment [, or (if no purchase price for the first purchase of the Certificates can be determined) the issue price as set forth in the applicable Final Terms relating to the Base Prospectus dated [date]].
- 5. Contradictory or incomplete provisions in the Terms and Conditions may be corrected or amended, as the case may be, by the Issuer in its reasonable discretion (§ 315 of the German Civil Code). The Issuer, however, shall only be entitled to make such corrections or amendments which are reasonably acceptable to the Certificateholders having regard to the interests of the Issuer and in particular which do not materially adversely affect the legal or financial situation of the Certificateholders. Notice of any such correction or amendment shall be given to the Certificateholders in accordance with § 13.
- 6. If the Certificateholder was aware of typing or calculation errors or similar errors at the time of the acquisition of the Certificates, then, notwithstanding paragraphs 2 5, the Certificateholders can be bound by the Issuer to the corrected Terms and Conditions.
- 7. Place of performance is Frankfurt am Main.
- 8. Place of jurisdiction for all disputes and other proceedings in connection with the Certificates for merchants, entities of public law, special funds under public law and entities without a place of general jurisdiction in the Federal Republic of Germany is Frankfurt am Main. In such a case, the place of jurisdiction in Frankfurt am Main shall be an exclusive place of jurisdiction.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS SET 3 (UNLIMITED CERTIFICATES WITHOUT FIXED REDEMPTION DATE)

PROGRAMME TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF UNLIMITED CERTIFICATES WITHOUT FIXED REDEMPTION DATE WHERE REDEMPTION AMOUNT OR ADDITIONAL PAYMENTS OR DELIVERIES ARE TO BE DETERMINED BY REFERENCE TO AN EXCHANGE RATE, AN INDEX, A BOND, A SHARE, ANY OTHER SECURITY, A FUTURES CONTRACT, A FUND, A STRADDLE, A COMMODITY, SWAP RATE(S), INTEREST RATE(S), ANY OTHER UNDERLYING, A BASKET OR INDEX CONSISTING OF ANY OF THE BEFORE-MENTIONED AND/OR FORMULA(E) (THE "UNLIMITED CERTIFICATES")

The following terms and conditions apply to the Certificates issued as Series No. [number] and Tranche No. [number] of that Series under the Notes/Certificates Programme of Commerzbank Aktiengesellschaft (the "**Programme**").

§ 1
(FORM, TRANSFERABILITY)

Alternative:	Certificates in bearer form	
	 This issue of [number] unlimited certificates (the "Certificates") of Commerzbank Aktiengesellschaft, Frankfurt am Main, Federal Republic of Germany (the "Issuer") is issued in [currency] (the "Issue Currency") [and relates to [•] (the "Underlying" [or "•"])]. The Certificates will rank pari passu among themselves. 	
These paragraphs 2 and 3 shall apply to all Certificates in bearer form (unless in the case of Certificates in USD with a life of more than 1 year and a first payment or delivery after 40 days following issue date)	 The Certificates will be represented by a permanent global bearer certificate (the "Global Certificate") without interest coupons. No definitive Certificates will be issued and the right of delivery of definitive Certificates is excluded. The Global Certificate shall be deposited with [Clearstream Banking AG, Neue Börsenstr. 1, 60487 Frankfurt am Main,] [[Deutsche Bank AG, Große Gallusstraße 10 - 14, 60272 Frankfurt am Main,] [<i>other depositary, including address</i>] [as common depositary for]] [[Clearstream Banking, société anonyme, Luxembourg and Euroclear Bank S.A./N.V. as operator of the Euroclear System] [other international clearing system]] ([together] the "Clearing System"). The Global Certificate shall only be valid if it bears the hand-written 	
	signatures of two authorised officers of the Issuer.	
These paragraphs 2 and 3 shall apply to Certificates in bearer form in USD with a life of more than 1 year and a first payment or delivery after 40 days following issue date	2. The Certificates will initially be represented by a temporary global certificate (the "Temporary Global Certificate"), which will be exchanged not earlier than 40 days and not later than 180 days after their issue date against a permanent global certificate (the "Permanent Global Certificate"; the Temporary Global Certificate and the Permanent Global Certificate hereinafter together the "Global Certificate"). The Temporary Global Certificate and the Permanent Global Certificate shall be deposited with [Clearstream Banking AG, Neue Börsenstr. 1, 60487 Frankfurt am Main,] [[Deutsche Bank AG, Große Gallusstraße 10 - 14, 60272 Frankfurt am Main,] [<i>other depositary, including address</i>] [as common depositary for]] [[Clearstream Banking, société anonyme, Luxembourg and Euroclear Bank S.A./N.V. as operator of the Euroclear System] [other international clearing system]] ([together] the "Clearing System"). The exchange shall only be made upon certificate are not U.S. persons. No definitive Certificates will be issued and the right of delivery of	

definitive Certificates is excluded.

- 3. The Temporary Global Certificate and the Permanent Global Certificate shall only be valid if they bear the hand-written signatures of two authorised officers of the Issuer.
- 4. The Certificateholders shall receive co-ownership participations in or rights with respect to the Global Certificate which are transferable in accordance with applicable law and the rules and regulations of the Clearing System.
- 5. The term "**Certificateholder**" in these Terms and Conditions refers to the holder of a co-ownership participation in or right with respect to the Global Certificate.
- 6. The Certificates can be transferred via the Clearing System [individually/only in lots of •/other].
- 7. The Issuer reserves the right to issue from time to time without the consent of the Certificateholders another tranche of Certificates with substantially identical terms, so that the same shall be consolidated to form a single Series and increase the aggregate principal amount of the Certificates. The term "Certificates" shall, in the event of such consolidation, also comprise such additionally issued Certificates.

Alternative:	Certificates issued pursuant to Rule 144A, Regulation D or Section 4(2) under the
	Securities Act in registered form

- This issue of [number] unlimited certificates (the "Certificates") of Commerzbank Aktiengesellschaft, Frankfurt am Main, Federal Republic of Germany (the "Issuer") is issued in [currency] (the "Issue Currency") [and relates to [•] (the "Underlying" [or "•"])]. The Certificates will rank pari passu among themselves.
- 2. The Certificates will be represented by a permanent global certificate in registered form (the "Global Certificate") without interest coupons. No definitive Certificates will be issued and the right of delivery of definitive Certificates is excluded. The Global Certificate shall be deposited with [Clearstream Banking AG, Neue Börsenstr. 1, 60487 Frankfurt am Main,] [[Deutsche Bank AG, Große Gallusstraße 10 14, 60272 Frankfurt am Main,] [*other depositary, including address*]] [as common depositary for] [[Clearstream Banking, société anonyme, Luxembourg and Euroclear Bank S.A./N.V. as operator of the Euroclear System] [other international clearing system]] ([together] the "Clearing System"). The Global Certificate will be subject to certain restrictions on transfers and will bear a legend regarding such restrictions. The Issuer shall maintain a register for the Certificates at [*registrar*] (the "Registrar").
- 3. The Global Certificate shall only be valid if it bears the hand-written signatures of two authorised officers of the Issuer.
- 4. The Certificateholders shall receive co-ownership participations in or rights with respect to the Global Certificate which are transferable in accordance with applicable law and the rules and regulations of the Clearing System.
- 5. The term " **Certificateholder**" in these Terms and Conditions refers to the holder of a co-ownership participation in or right with respect to the Global Certificate.
- 6. The Certificates can be transferred via the Clearing System [indi-

vidually/only in lots of •/other].

7. The Issuer reserves the right to issue from time to time without the consent of the Certificateholders another tranche of Certificates with substantially identical terms, so that the same shall be consolidated to form a single Series and increase the aggregate principal amount of the Certificates. The term "Certificates" shall, in the event of such consolidation, also comprise such additionally issued Certificates.

§ 2 (REDEMPTION AT THE REQUEST OF A CERTIFICATEHOLDER)

- 1. Subject to the provision of § 3 paragraph 4, every Certificateholder shall, in addition to the termination right provided under § 11, have the right to request the redemption of the Certificates from the Issuer. The redemption pursuant to this clause can only be requested in accordance with the following provisions and only with respect to a Redemption Date [(paragraph 6)]. ["Redemption Date" means [•]].
- Each Certificate shall be redeemed on the Redemption Date [, subject to postponement in accordance with § 7 paragraph ●] [at an amount (the "Final Redemption Amount") which is calculated pursuant to the following provisions:]

[insert applicable provisions including formula(e) and/or provisions regarding redemption by way of payment of Final Redemption Amount (including its definition) and/or redemption by way of delivery and/or additional definitions and/or other aspects, if appropriate]

- 3. In order to request the redemption of the Certificates with respect to a Redemption Date, the Certificateholder has to:
 - submit a written notice to the Principal Paying Agent (§ 10) requesting the redemption of the Certificates held and specifying a Redemption Date (the "Redemption Notice"); and
 - (b) deliver the Certificates to the Principal Paying Agent (i) by an irrevocable order to the Principal Paying Agent to transfer the Certificates from its account with the Principal Paying Agent or (ii) by transfer of the Certificates to the account of the Principal Paying Agent with the Clearing System.
- The Redemption Notice must be received by the Principal Paying Agent 4. not later than [•] Payment Business Days (§ 5 paragraph 3) prior to such Redemption Date. A Redemption Notice received by the Principal Paying Agent shall be binding and irrevocable. It has to be in the form available at the Principal Paying Agent or informal if accepted by the Principal Paying Agent. An informal Redemption Notice has to contain the information requested in such form which is, amongst others: the requested Redemption Date, the number of Certificates for which a redemption is requested, the name and address of the relevant Certificateholder as well as the name and account details of the Certificateholder's account . A Redemption Notice which does not fulfill the above requirements may be held invalid by the Principal Paying Agent. The decision of the Principal Paying Agent whether or not to accept a Redemption notice shall be valid and binding on the Issuer and the relevant Certificateholder.

This paragraph shall apply only to Certificates in relation to which the number of Certificates redeemable on a single Redemption Date is limited

- 5. If the number of Certificates requested for redemption deviates from the number of Certificates received by the Principal Paying Agent, the Redemption Notice shall only be valid for a number of Certificates equal to the smaller of the two numbers. Any Certificates transferred in excess of this number shall be transferred back to the Certificateholder at its own expense and risk.
- 6. For the purposes of these Terms and Conditions, the following definitions shall apply:

[insert applicable provisions including formula(e) and/or provisions regarding redemption by way of payment of Final Redemption Amount (including its definition) and/or redemption by way of delivery and/or additional definitions and/or other aspects, if appropriate]

[7. In the case that the number of Certificates validly requested for redemption on a specific Redemption Date (the "Original Redemption Date") exceeds [insert details] the Issuer will not be obligated to redeem the Certificates validly delivered for redemption on such Redemption Date. In such event the Issuer [is entitled to postpone the redemption of the Certificates validly delivered for redemption until the Redemption Date immediately following the Original Redemption Date] [•]. The Issuer shall publish any postponement of the redemption of the Certificates from the Original Redemption Date to the immediately following Redemption Date in accordance with § 13 without undue delay following the Original Redemption Date.]

[alternatively: insert other provisions relating to the redemption and/or other aspects, if appropriate]

§ 3
(TERMINATION BY THE ISSUER)

Alternative:		icates which contain an extraordinary redemption right with reference to an rlying pursuant to § 7
This paragraph 1 shall apply if the tax gross-up clause of § 6 is not selected	1.	The Issuer shall, in addition to the extraordinary right to redeem the Certificates in accordance with § 7 paragraph [1/3], be entitled to terminate the Certificates in whole but not in part [<i>insert applicable provisions</i>] (each a "Termination Date") (the "Termination by the
-		Issuer"). [The first Termination Date shall be [•]].
This paragraph 1 shall apply if the tax gross-up clause of § 6 is selected	1.	The Issuer shall, in addition to the extraordinary right to redeem the Certificates in accordance with [§ 7 paragraph [1/3] and] § 6 paragraph 3, be entitled to terminate the Certificates in whole but not in part [<i>insert applicable provisions</i>] (each a "Termination Date") (the "Termination by the Issuer"). [The first Termination Date shall be [•]].
	2.	The Termination by the Issuer has to be notified [at the least [•] prior to the respective Termination Date] [other provisions] in accordance with § 13. Such notification is irrevocable and must include the Termination Date.
	3.	Following the Termination by the Issuer of the Certificates each Certificate shall be redeemed on the Termination Date [, subject to postponement in accordance with § 7 paragraph [•]] [at the Final Redemption Amount as determined, <i>mutatis mutandis</i> , according to § 2 paragraph 2, where the Valuation Date shall be [<i>insert applicable provisions</i>] prior to the Termination Date].

		[alternatively: insert applicable provisions including formula(e) and/or provisions regarding redemption by way of payment of Final Redemption Amount (including its definition) and/or redemption by way of delivery and/or additional definitions and/or other aspects, if appropriate]
	4.	Upon notification by the Issuer of the Termination of the Certificates by the Issuer the right of the Certificateholders to request the redemption of the Certificates in accordance with § 2 shall expire.
Alternative:		ficates which do not contain an extraordinary redemption right with reference Underlying pursuant to § 7
This paragraph 1 shall apply if the tax gross-up clause of § 6 is not selected	1.	The Issuer shall be entitled to terminate the Certificates in whole but not in part [<i>insert applicable provisions</i>] (each a " Termination Date ") (the " Termination by the Issuer "). [The first Termination Date shall be [•]].
This paragraph 1 shall apply if the tax gross-up clause of § 6 is selected	1.	The Issuer shall, in addition to the extraordinary right to redeem the Certificates in accordance with § 6 paragraph 3, be entitled to terminate the Certificates in whole but not in part [<i>insert applicable provisions</i>] (each a " Termination Date ") (the " Termination by the Issuer "). [The first Termination Date shall be [•]].
	3.	The Termination by the Issuer has to be notified [at the least [•] prior to the respective Termination Date] [other provisions] in accordance with § 13. Such notification is irrevocable and must include the Termination Date.
	3.	Following the Termination by the Issuer of the Certificates each Certificate shall be redeemed on the Termination Date [, subject to postponement in accordance with § 7 paragraph [•]] [at the Final Redemption Amount as determined, <i>mutatis mutandis</i> , according to § 2 paragraph 2, where the Valuation Date shall be [<i>insert applicable provisions</i>] prior to the Termination Date].
		[alternatively: insert applicable provisions including formula(e) and/or provisions regarding redemption by way of payment of Final Redemption Amount (including its definition) and/or redemption by way of delivery and/or additional definitions and/or other aspects, if appropriate]
	4.	Upon notification by the Issuer of the Termination of the Certificates by the Issuer the right of the Certificateholders to request the redemption of the Certificates in accordance with § 2 shall expire.

§ 4 (EARLY REDEMPTION, REPURCHASE OF CERTIFICATES)

Alternative:	Certificates which contain an extraordinary redemption right with reference to an Underlying pursuant to § 7	
This paragraph 1 shall apply if the tax gross-up clause of § 6 is not selected	1. If the Certificates are called for redemption due to the occurrence of an Extraordinary Event in accordance with § 7 paragraph [1 / 3] or an event having occurred as described in § 11, as the case may be, they shall be redeemed at the early redemption amount (the "Early Redemption Amount") which shall be calculated by the Issuer [in its reasonable discretion (§ 315 of the German Civil Code) as the fair value of the Certificates at the date as determined by the Issuer in the due notification of the termination in accordance with § 13] [insert other applicable provision]. The rights arising from the Certificates will terminate upon the	

payment of the Early Redemption Amount.

[insert applicable provisions, including but not limited to early termination trigger event(s), definitions of Early Redemption Date(s) and Early Redemption Amount(s) and/or other amount(s) and/or formula(e) and/or additional definitions and/or provisions regarding market disruption, settlement disruption, adjustment clauses and/or other aspects, if appropriate]

This paragraph 1 1. If the Certificates are called for redemption due to the occurrence of an shall apply if the tax Extraordinary Event in accordance with § 7 paragraph [1 / 3] or an event gross-up clause of having occurred as described in § 6 paragraph 3 or in § 11, as the case § 6 is selected may be, they shall be redeemed at the early redemption amount (the "Early Redemption Amount") which shall be calculated by the Issuer [in its reasonable discretion (§ 315 of the German Civil Code) as the fair value of the Certificates at the date as determined by the Issuer in the due notification of the termination in accordance with § 13] [insert other applicable provision]. The rights arising from the Certificates will terminate upon the payment of the Early Redemption Amount.

[insert applicable provisions, including but not limited to early termination trigger event(s), definitions of Early Redemption Date(s) and/or other amount(s) and/or formula(e) and/or additional definitions and/or provisions regarding market disruption, settlement disruption, adjustment clauses and/or other aspects, if appropriate]

2. The Issuer may at any time purchase Certificates in the market or otherwise. Certificates repurchased by or on behalf of the Issuer may be held by the Issuer, re-issued, resold or surrendered to the Principal Paying Agent for cancellation.

Alternative:		ficates which do not contain an extraordinary redemption right with reference Underlying pursuant to § 7
This paragraph 1 shall apply if the tax gross-up clause of § 6 is not selected	1.	If the Certificates are called for redemption due to an event having occurred as described in § 11 the Certificates shall be redeemed at the early redemption amount (the " Early Redemption Amount ") which shall be determined as follows:
		[insert applicable provisions, including but not limited to early termination trigger event(s), definitions of Early Redemption Date(s) and/or other amount(s) and/or formula(e) and/or additional definitions and/or provisions regarding market disruption, settlement disruption, adjustment clauses and/or other aspects, if appropriate]
This paragraph 1 shall apply if the tax gross-up clause of § 6 is selected	1.	If the Certificates are called for redemption due to an event having occurred as described in § 6 paragraph 3 or in § 11, as the case may be, the Certificates shall be redeemed at the early redemption amount (the "Early Redemption Amount") which shall be determined as follows:
		[insert applicable provisions, including but not limited to early termination trigger event(s), definitions of Early Redemption Date(s) and/or other amount(s) and/or formula(e) and/or additional definitions and/or provisions regarding market disruption, settlement disruption, adjustment clauses and/or other aspects, if appropriate]
	2.	The Issuer may at any time purchase Certificates in the market or otherwise. Certificates repurchased by or on behalf of the Issuer may be held by the Issuer, re-issued, resold or surrendered to the Principal Paying Agent for cancellation.

§ 5 (PAYMENTS [, DELIVERY OF [•] [THE UNDERLYING])

Alternative:	ve: Certificates with cash settlement only		
	1.	The Issuer irrevocably undertakes to pay, as and when due, all amounts payble pursuant to these Terms and Conditions.	
This paragraph shall be added to para- graph 1 in the case of Certificates in USD with a life of more than 1 year and a first payment or delivery after 40 days following issue date		Payments on Certificates represented by a Temporary Global Certificate shall only be effected upon due certification in accordance with § 1 paragraph 2.	
	2.	All amounts payable pursuant to these Terms and Conditions will be made against presentation, and in the case of the last payment, against surrender of the Global Certificate to the Principal Paying Agent for transfer to the Clearing System or pursuant to the Clearing System's instruction for credit to the relevant accountholders of the Clearing System. Payment to the Clearing System or pursuant to the Clearing System's instruction shall release the Issuer from its payment obligations under the Certificates in the amount of such payment.	
	3.	If any payment with respect to a Certificate is to be effected on a day other than a Payment Business Day, payment shall be effected on the next following Payment Business Day. In this case, the relevant Certifi- cateholder shall neither be entitled to any payment claim nor to any interest claim or other compensation with respect to such delay.	
		" Payment Business Day " means a day [on which the Trans-European Automated Real-Time Gross settlement Express Transfer system which utilises a single shared platform (TARGET2) is open / (other than a Saturday or Sunday) on which commercial banks and foreign exchange markets in [city]] and the Clearing System settle payments in [the Issue Currency] [•].	
This paragraph applies if the gross- up tax clause of § 6 is selected	4.	All payments are subject in all cases to any applicable fiscal or other laws, regulations and directives, but without prejudice to the provisions of § 6. No commission or expense shall be charged to the Certificateholders in respect of such payments.	
This paragraph applies if the gross- up tax clause of § 6 is not selected	4.	All payments are subject in all cases to any applicable fiscal or other laws, regulations and directives.	
	5.	The Issuer may deposit with the local court (<i>Amtsgericht</i>), Frankfurt am Main, payments not claimed by Certificateholders within 12 months after the respective due date, even though the respective Certificateholders may not be in default of acceptance. If and to the extent that the deposit is made under waiver of the right of withdrawal, the respective claims of the respective Certificateholders against the Issuer shall cease.	
Alternative:	Cert	ificates with cash settlement and delivery obligations	
	1	The Issuer irrevocably undertakes to pay, as and when due, all amounts	

1. The Issuer irrevocably undertakes to pay, as and when due, all amounts

payble or to deliver, as and when due, [the Underlying] [•] pursuant to these Terms and Conditions.

Payments and deliveries on Certificates represented by a Temporary Global Certificate shall only be effected upon due certification in accordance with § 1 paragraph 2.

- 2. Payment and delivery obligations pursuant to these Terms and Conditions will be made against presentation, and in the case of the last payment or delivery, against surrender of the Global Certificate to the Principal Paying Agent for transfer to the Clearing System or pursuant to the Clearing System's instruction for credit to the relevant accountholders of the Clearing System. Any payment or delivery to the Clearing System or pursuant to the Clearing System's instruction shall release the Issuer from its payment or delivery obligations under the Certificates in the amount of such payment or delivery, respectively.
- 3. If any payment with respect to a Certificate is to be effected on a day other than a Payment Business Day, payment shall be effected on the next following Payment Business Day. In this case, the relevant Certificateholder shall neither be entitled to any payment claim nor to any interest claim or other compensation with respect to such delay.

"Payment Business Day" means a day [on which the Trans-European Automated Real-Time Gross settlement Express Transfer system which utilises a single shared platform (TARGET2) is open / (other than a Saturday or Sunday) on which commercial banks and foreign exchange markets in [city]] and the Clearing System settle payments in [the Issue Currency] [•].

- 4. All payments and/or deliveries are subject in all cases to any applicable fiscal or other laws, regulations and directives, but without prejudice to the provisions of § 6. No commission or expense shall be charged to the Certificateholders in respect of such payments.
- 4. All payments and/or deliveries are subject in all cases to any applicable fiscal or other laws, regulations and directives.
- 5. The Issuer may deposit with the local court (*Amtsgericht*), Frankfurt am Main, any amounts payable and/or any deliveries not claimed by Certificateholders within 12 months after the respective due date, even though the respective Certificateholders may not be in default of acceptance. If and to the extent that the deposit is made under waiver of the right of withdrawal, the respective claims of the respective Certificateholders against the Issuer shall cease.

Alternative: Certificates with respect to which the Certificateholder has to pay taxes, fees or other duties (Certificateholder tax responsibility clause)

All present and future taxes, fees or other duties in connection with the

This paragraph shall be added to paragraph 1 in the case of Certificates in USD with a life of more than 1 year and a first payment or delivery after 40 days following issue date

This paragraph applies if the grossup tax clause of § 6 is selected

This paragraph applies if the grossup tax clause of § 6 is not selected Certificates shall be borne and paid by the Certificateholders. The Issuer is entitled to withhold from payments to be made under the Certificates any taxes, fees and/or duties payable by the Certificateholder in accordance with the previous sentence.

Alternative:	Certificates with respect to which the Certificateholder has to pay taxes, fees or other duties (Certificateholder tax responsibility clause)		
	1.	or wit gover the Fe the Is such shall p neces withho	nounts payable under the Certificates will be paid without deduction hholding for or on account of any present or future taxes, duties or nmental charges whatsoever imposed or levied by or on behalf of ederal Republic of Germany or any taxing authority therein, unless suer is compelled by a law or other regulation to deduct or withhold taxes, duties or governmental charges. In that event, the Issuer bay such additional amounts (the "Additional Amounts") as may be sary in order that the net amounts after such deduction or olding shall equal the amounts that would have been payable if no deduction or withholding had been made.
	2.		dditional Amounts shall be payable pursuant to paragraph 1 with ct to taxes, duties or governmental charges
		(a)	for which a Certificateholder is liable because of a connection with the Federal Republic of Germany or another [member state of the European Union] [state that is part of the European Economic Area] other than the mere fact of his being the holder of the Certificates;
		(b)	to which the Certificateholder would not be subject if he had presented his Certificates for payment within 30 days from the due date for payment, or, if the necessary funds were not provided to the Principal Paying Agent or any other Paying Agent appointed pursuant to § 10 when due, within 30 days from the date on which such funds are provided to the Paying Agents and a notice to that effect has been published in accordance with § 13;
		(c)	which would not be payable if the Certificates had been kept in safe custody with, and the payments had been collected by, a credit institution;
		(d)	which are deducted or withheld by a Paying Agent, if the payment could have been made by another Paying Agent without such deduction or withholding;
		(e)	which are deducted or withheld pursuant to (i) any European Union Directive or Regulation concerning the taxation of interest income, or (ii) any international treaty or understanding relating to such taxation and to which the Federal Republic of Germany or another member state of the European Union or the European Union is party, or (iii) any provision of law implementing or complying with, or introduced to conform with, such Directive, regulation, treaty or understanding;
		(f)	which are payable by any person acting as custodian bank or

- collecting agent on behalf of a Certificateholder, or otherwise in any manner which does not constitute a deduction or withholding by the Issuer from payments of principal or interest made by it;
- (g) which are deducted or withheld, even if the deduction or withholding has to be made by the Issuer or its representative,

pursuant to the Corporate Tax Reform Act 2008 of the Federal Republic of Germany providing for the introduction of a definitive flat tax (*Abgeltungssteuer*) on certain investment income as from 1 January 2009; or

- (h) which are payable by reason of a change in law (or by reason of any application or official interpretation of any law or regulation) that becomes effective more than 30 days after the relevant payment becomes due, or, if this occurs later, is duly provided for and notice thereof is given in accordance with § 13.
- 3. If at any future time as a result of a change of the laws applicable in the Federal Republic of Germany or a change in their official application, the Issuer is required, or at the time of the next succeeding payment due will be required, to pay Additional Amounts as provided in § 6 paragraph 1, the Issuer will be entitled, upon not less than 30 days' and not more than 60 days' notice to be given by publication in accordance with § 13, prior to the Redemption Date to redeem all Certificates at the Early Redemption Amount. No redemption pursuant to this § 6 paragraph 3 shall be made more than 30 days prior to the date on which such change of the laws or their official application becomes applicable to the Certificates for the first time.

§ 7

([ADJUSTMENTS, MARKET DISRUPTION [, POSTPONEMENT OF VALUATION DATE] [, SETTLEMENT DISRUPTION] [•]] [THIS CLAUSE HAS BEEN INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK])

Alternative:	Certificates without adjustments			
	[leave blank]			
Alternative:	Certificates with reference to a share or shares			
	1. If in the opinion of the Calculation Agent (§ 10) an Adjustment Event or an Extraordinary Event (both as defined below) has occurred, the Issuer is entitled, but not obligated, to make adjustments to the Terms and Conditions taking into consideration the provisions set forth hereinafter. If in the opinion of the Calculation Agent an Extraordinary Event has occurred, the Issuer is entitled, but not obligated, to (instead of an adjustment) terminate and redeem all, but not less than all, Certificates prematurely at the Early Redemption Amount (§ 4 paragraph 1) by giving notice in accordance with § 13 where an adjustment is not possible or would be unreasonable.			
	2. When making adjustments to the Terms and Conditions, the Issuer shall act in its reasonable discretion (§ 315 of the German Civil Code) and is entitled, but not obligated, to take into consideration the adjustments to options or futures contracts relating to the Underlying made by the Related Exchange or that would have been made by the Related Exchange if such options or futures contracts were traded on the Related Exchange.			
	3. Any of the before-mentioned adjustments may, among others, relate to [<i>parameters</i>] and may result in the Underlying being replaced by other securities, a basket of securities and/or cash, and another exchange being determined as the Exchange. However, the Issuer is also entitled to make other adjustments taking into consideration the before-mentioned principles.			

- 4. Adjustments take effect as from the date determined by the Issuer,. Adjustments as well as the effective date shall be notified by the Issuer in accordance with § 13.
- 5. If on [the Valuation Date *I insert other valuation time*] the [*price*] of the Underlying is not determined and published by the Exchange, or if on [the Valuation Date / *insert other valuation time*], in the opinion of the Calculation Agent, a Market Disruption Event with respect to the Underlying occurs, then the next following calendar day on which the [*price*] is again determined and published by the Exchange and on which there is no Market Disruption Event with respect to the Underlying will be deemed to be [the Valuation Date / *insert other valuation time*].

If according to the before-mentioned provisions [the Valuation Date / *insert other valuation time*] is postponed until the second Exchange Business Day prior to the Redemption Date and if on such date the [*price*] of the Underlying is still not determined and published by the Exchange or if a Market Disruption Event occurs or is continuing on such date, such date prior to the Redemption Date shall be deemed to be the relevant [the Valuation Date / *insert other valuation time*], and the Calculation Agent will, in its reasonable discretion (§ 315 of the German Civil Code) and in consideration of the prevailing market conditions, estimate the [*price*] of the Underlying on such date which shall be notified by the Issuer in accordance with § 13.

6. For the purposes of this § 7 the following definitions shall apply:

"Adjustment Event" means:

- (a) any of the following actions taken by the Company: capital increases through issuance of new shares against capital contribution and issuance of subscription rights to the shareholders, capital increases out of the Company's reserves, issuance of securities with option or conversion rights related to the Underlying, distributions of extraordinary dividends, stock splits or any other split, consolidation or alteration of category (as long as this does not constitute a merger);
- (b) a spin-off of a part of the Company in such a way that a new independent entity is formed, or that the spun-off part of the Company is absorbed by another entity;
- the adjustment of options or futures contracts relating to the Underlying on the Related Exchange or the announcement of such adjustment; or
- (d) any other adjustment event being economically comparable to the before-mentioned events with regard to their effects.

"Extraordinary Event" means any of the following events:

(a) a takeover-bid, i.e. an offer to take over or to swap or any other offer or any other act of an individual person or a legal entity that results in the individual person or legal entity buying, otherwise acquiring or obtaining a right to buy more than 10% of the outstanding shares of the Company as a consequence of a conversion or otherwise, as determined by the Issuer based on notifications to the competent authorities or on other information determined as relevant by the Issuer;

This paragraph shall apply to all Certificates without delivery obligations

- (b) the termination of trading in, or early settlement of, options or futures contracts relating to the Underlying on the Related Exchange or the announcement of such termination or early settlement;
- (c) the becoming known of the intention of the Company or of the Exchange to terminate the listing of the Underlying on the Exchange or the termination of the listing of the Underlying at the Exchange or the announcement of the Exchange that the listing of the Underlying at the Exchange will terminate immediately or at a later date and that the Underlying will not be admitted, traded or listed at any other comparable exchange, trading system or quotation system immediately following the termination of the listing;
- (d) the Issuer and/or its affiliates (§ 15 of the German Stock Corporation Act) are, even following economically reasonable efforts, not in the position (i) to enter, re-enter, replace, maintain, liquidate, acquire or dispose of any transactions or investments that the Issuer considers necessary to hedge its risks resulting from the assumption and performance of its obligations under the Certificates or (ii) to realize, regain or transfer the proceeds resulting from such transactions or investments;
- (e) a procedure is introduced or ongoing pursuant to which all shares or the substantial assets of the Company are or are liable to be nationalized or expropriated or otherwise transferred to public agencies, authorities or organizations;
- the application for insolvency proceedings or for comparable proceedings with regard to the assets of the Company according to the applicable law of the Company; or
- (g) any other event being economically comparable to the beforementioned events with regard to their effects.

"Market Disruption Event" means the occurrence or existence of any suspension of, or limitation imposed on, trading (by reason of movements in price exceeding the limits permitted by the Exchange or otherwise) in (a) the Underlying on the Exchange, or (b) any options contracts or futures contracts relating to the Underlying on the Related Exchange, provided that any such suspension or limitation is material in the reasonable discretion of the Issuer (§ 315 of the German Civil Code) for the evaluation of the Certificates and the fulfillment of its obligations under the Certificates. The occurrence of a Market Disruption Event shall be published in accordance with § 13.

A limitation regarding the office hours or the number of days of trading will not constitute a Market Disruption Event if it results from an announced change in the regular business hours of the relevant exchange. A limitation on trading imposed during the course of a day by reason of movements in price exceeding permitted limits shall only be deemed to be a Market Disruption Event in the case that such limitation is still prevailing at the time of termination of the trading hours on such date.

These paragraphs shall apply to all Certificates with delivery obligations 6. If the Issuer is required to deliver [the Delivery Amount] [•] and if, in the opinion of the Calculation Agent, a Settlement Disruption Event occurs or is continuing on the Redemption Date, then the delivery of the [the Delivery Amount] [•] shall be postponed to the first following Exchange

Business Day on which there is no Settlement Disruption Event (the "**Postponed Settlement Date**"). In no event shall the Postponed Settlement Date be later than the fifth Exchange Business Day following the Redemption Date. If the Settlement Disruption Event is continuing on the fourth Exchange Business Day following the Redemption Date, then (i) the Postponed Settlement Date shall be the fifth Exchange Business Day following the Redemption Date, then event of a cash equivalent redemption amount (the "**Cash Equivalent Redemption Amount**"), in lieu of the delivery of the Delivery Amount, to the Certificateholder. In the event of a payment of a Cash Equivalent Redemption Amount § 5 paragraph 3 of these Terms and Conditions shall apply *mutatis mutandis*. The Cash Equivalent Redemption Amount will be determined by the Issuer in its reasonable discretion (§ 315 of the German Civil Code).

All determinations made by the Issuer and/or the Calculation Agent pursuant to this paragraph shall be notified to the Certificateholder in accordance with § 13. The Certificateholder will not be entitled to any compensation from the Issuer for any loss suffered as a result of the occurrence of a Settlement Disruption Event and no liability in respect thereof shall attach to the Issuer.

7. For the purposes of this § 7 the following definitions shall apply:

"Adjustment Event" means:

- (a) any of the following actions taken by the Company: capital increases through issuance of new shares against capital contribution and issuance of subscription rights to the shareholders, capital increases out of the Company's reserves, issuance of securities with option or conversion rights related to the Underlying, distributions of extraordinary dividends, stock splits or any other split, consolidation or alteration of category (as long as this does not constitute a merger);
- (b) a spin-off of a part of the Company in such a way that a new independent entity is formed, or that the spun-off part of the Company is absorbed by another entity;
- (c) the adjustment of options or futures contracts relating to the Underlying on the Related Exchange or the announcement of such adjustment; or
- (d) any other adjustment event being economically comparable to the before-mentioned events with regard to their effects.

"Extraordinary Event" means any of the following events:

- (a) a takeover-bid, i.e. an offer to take over or to swap or any other offer or any other act of an individual person or a legal entity that results in the individual person or legal entity buying, otherwise acquiring or obtaining a right to buy more than 10% of the outstanding shares of the Company as a consequence of a conversion or otherwise, as determined by the Issuer based on notifications to the competent authorities or on other information determined as relevant by the Issuer;
- (b) the termination of trading in, or early settlement of, options or futures contracts relating to the Underlying on the Related Exchange or the announcement of such termination or early

settlement;

- (c) the becoming known of the intention of the Company or of the Exchange to terminate the listing of the Underlying on the Exchange or the termination of the listing of the Underlying at the Exchange or the announcement of the Exchange that the listing of the Underlying at the Exchange will terminate immediately or at a later date and that the Underlying will not be admitted, traded or listed at any other comparable exchange, trading system or quotation system immediately following the termination of the listing;
- (d) the Issuer and/or its affiliates (§ 15 of the German Stock Corporation Act) are, even following economically reasonable efforts, not in the position (i) to enter, re-enter, replace, maintain, liquidate, acquire or dispose of any transactions or investments that the Issuer considers necessary to hedge its risks resulting from the assumption and performance of its obligations under the Certificates or (ii) to realize, regain or transfer the proceeds resulting from such transactions or investments;
- (e) a procedure is introduced or ongoing pursuant to which all shares or the substantial assets of the Company are or are liable to be nationalized or expropriated or otherwise transferred to public agencies, authorities or organizations;
- (f) the application for insolvency proceedings or for comparable proceedings with regard to the assets of the Company according to the applicable law of the Company; or
- (g) any other event being economically comparable to the beforementioned events with regard to their effects.

"Market Disruption Event" means the occurrence or existence of any suspension of, or limitation imposed on, trading (by reason of movements in price exceeding the limits permitted by the Exchange or otherwise) in (a) the Underlying on the Exchange, or (b) any options contracts or futures contracts relating to the Underlying on the Related Exchange, provided that any such suspension or limitation is material in the reasonable discretion of the Issuer (§ 315 of the German Civil Code) for the evaluation of the Certificates and the fulfillment of its obligations under the Certificates. The occurrence of a Market Disruption Event shall be published in accordance with § 13.

A limitation regarding the office hours or the number of days of trading will not constitute a Market Disruption Event if it results from an announced change in the regular business hours of the relevant exchange. A limitation on trading imposed during the course of a day by reason of movements in price exceeding permitted limits shall only be deemed to be a Market Disruption Event in the case that such limitation is still prevailing at the time of termination of the trading hours on such date.

"Settlement Disruption Event" means an event, [(a)] which, in the opinion of the Calculation Agent, is beyond the control of the Issuer and as a result of which the Issuer cannot deliver or cannot procure the delivery of [the Delivery Amount] [•] [or, (b) if it is impossible to deliver [the Delivery Amount] [•] to the Certificateholders under the applicable rules of the Clearing System irrespective of when such rules have been introduced].

Alternative:	Certificates with reference to an index consisting of shares	
--------------	--------------------------------------------------------------	--

- If the Index is no longer calculated and published by the Index Sponsor but by another person, company or institution acceptable to the Issuer as the new Index Sponsor (the "Successor Sponsor"), the redemption of the Certificates will be determined on the basis of the Index being calculated and published by the Successor Sponsor and any reference made to the Index Sponsor shall, if the context so admits, then refer to the Successor Sponsor.
- 2. If at any time the Index is cancelled or replaced, the Calculation Agent (§ 10) will determine another index on the basis of which the redemption of the Certificates will be determined (the "Successor Index"). The respective Successor Index as well as the time of its first application will be notified as soon as possible pursuant to § 13. Any reference made to the Index in these Terms and Conditions shall, if the context so admits, then refer to the Successor Index. All related definitions shall be deemed to be amended accordingly. Furthermore, the Calculation Agent will make all necessary adjustments to the Terms and Conditions of the Certificates resulting from a substitution of the Index.
- 3. In the case that the occurrence of an Adjustment Event with respect to a share contained in the Index (the "Index Share") has a material effect on the price of the Index, the Calculation Agent will make adjustments to [*insert parameters*] in its reasonable discretion (§ 315 of the German Civil Code) and give notification pursuant to § 13. Such adjustment shall become effective on the date on which the occurrence of the Adjustment Event with respect to the share contained in the Index has its effect on the price of the Index.

"Adjustment Event" means any of the following events:

- (a) the substitution of the Index by a Successor Index pursuant to paragraph 2;
- (b) any of the following actions taken by the company issuing the Index Shares (the "Index Company"): capital increases through issuance of new shares against capital contribution and issuance of subscription rights to the shareholders, capital increases out of the Index Company's reserves, issuance of securities with option or conversion rights related to the Index Shares, distributions of extraordinary dividends, stock splits or any other split, consolidation or alteration of category (as long as this does not constitute a merger);
- (c) a spin-off of a part of the Index Company in such a way that a new independent entity is formed, or that the spun-off part of the Index Company is absorbed by another entity;
- (d) the adjustment of options or futures contracts relating to the Index Shares on the exchange with the highest trading volume in such option or futures contracts (the "related exchange") or the announcement of such adjustment;
- (e) a takeover-bid, i.e. an offer to take over or to swap or any other offer or any other act of an individual person or a legal entity that results in the individual person or legal entity buying, otherwise acquiring or obtaining a right to buy more than 10% of the outstanding shares of the Index Company as a consequence of a conversion or otherwise, as determined by the Issuer based on

notifications to the competent authorities or on other information determined as relevant by the Issuer in its reasonable discretion (§ 315 of the German Civil Code);

- (f) the termination of trading in, or early settlement of, options or futures contracts relating to the Index Shares on the related exchange or relating to the Index itself or the announcement of such termination or early settlement;
- (g) the becoming known of the intention of the Index Company or of the exchange on which the respective Index Shares are traded (provided that the quotations of the prices of the Index Shares on such exchange are taken for the calculation of the Index) (the "exchange") to terminate the listing of the Index Shares on the exchange or the termination of the listing of the Index Shares at the exchange or the announcement of the exchange that the listing of the Index Shares at the exchange will terminate immediately or at a later date and that the Index Shares will not be admitted, traded or listed at any other comparable exchange, trading system or quotation system immediately following the termination of the listing;
- (h) the Issuer and/or its affiliates (§ 15 of the German Stock Corporation Act) are, even following economically reasonable efforts, not in the position (i) to enter, re-enter, replace, maintain, liquidate, acquire or dispose of any transactions or investments that the Issuer considers necessary to hedge its risks resulting from the assumption and performance of its obligations under the Certificates or (ii) to realize, regain or transfer the proceeds resulting from such transactions or investments;
- a procedure is introduced or ongoing pursuant to which all shares or the substantial assets of the Index Company are or are liable to be nationalized or expropriated or otherwise transferred to public agencies, authorities or organizations;
- (j) the application for insolvency proceedings or for comparable proceedings with regard to the assets of the Index Company according to the applicable law of the Index Company; or
- (k) any other adjustment event being economically comparable to the before-mentioned events with regard to their effects.
- 4. If in the opinion of the Calculation Agent (i) the determination of a Successor Index in accordance with the above paragraph is not possible or unreasonable for the Issuer or (ii) if the Index Sponsor materially modifies the calculation method of an Index with effect on or before [the Valuation Date / insert other valuation time], or materially modifies the Index in any other way (except for modifications which are contemplated in the calculation method of the Index relating to a change with respect to securities comprising the Index, the market capitalisation or with respect to any other routine measures) (each of such events an "Extraordinary **Event**"), then the Issuer is entitled to (a) continue (itself or through an independent expert determined by the Issuer) the calculation of the Index on the basis of the former concept of the Index and its last determined level or (b) to (instead of a continuation of the calculation of the Index) terminate and redeem all, but not less than all, Certificates prematurely at the Early Redemption Amount (§ 4 paragraph 1) by giving notice in accordance with § 13.

5. If on [the Valuation Date *I insert other valuation time*] the [*price*] of the Index is not determined and published by the Index Sponsor, or if on [the Valuation Date / *insert other valuation time*], in the opinion of the Calculation Agent, a Market Disruption Event with respect to the Index occurs, then the next following calendar day on which the [*price*] is again determined and published by the Index Sponsor and on which there is no Market Disruption Event with respect to the Index will be deemed to be the [the Valuation Date / *insert other valuation time*].

If according to the before-mentioned provisions [the Valuation Date / insert other valuation time] is postponed until the [third] [•] Payment Business Day prior to the Redemption Date and if on such date the [*price*] of the Index is still not determined and published by the Index Sponsor or if a Market Disruption Event occurs or is continuing on such date, such date prior to the Redemption Date shall be deemed to be the relevant [the Valuation Date / *insert other valuation time*], and the Calculation Agent will, in its reasonable discretion (§ 315 of the German Civil Code) and in consideration of the prevailing market conditions, estimate the [*price*] of the Index on such date which shall be notified by the Issuer in accordance with § 13.

"Market Disruption Event" means the occurrence or existence of any suspension of, or limitation imposed on, trading in the Index Shares on the exchange or the suspension of or limitation imposed on trading in options or futures contracts on the Index on the options and futures exchange with the highest trading volume of option and future contracts relating to the Index, provided that any such suspension or limitation is material in the reasonable discretion of the Issuer (§ 315 of the German Civil Code) for the evaluation of the Certificates and the fulfillment of its obligations under the Certificates. The occurrence of a Market Disruption Event shall be published in accordance with § 13

A limitation regarding the office hours or the number of days of trading will not constitute a Market Disruption Event if it results from an announced change in the regular business hours of the relevant exchange. A limitation on trading imposed during the course of a day by reason of movements in price exceeding permitted limits shall only be deemed to be a Market Disruption Event in the case that such limitation is still prevailing at the time of termination of the trading hours on such date.

Alternative: Certificates with reference to an index consisting of futures contracts

- If the Index is no longer calculated and published by the Index Sponsor but by another person, company or institution acceptable to the Issuer as the new Index Sponsor (the "Successor Sponsor"), the redemption of the Certificates will be determined on the basis of the Index being calculated and published by the Successor Sponsor and any reference made to the Index Sponsor shall, if the context so admits, then refer to the Successor Sponsor.
- 2. If at any time the Index is cancelled or replaced, the Calculation Agent (§ 10) will determine its reasonable discretion (§ 315 of the German Civil Code) another index on the basis of which the redemption of the Certificates will be determined (the "Successor Index"). The respective Successor Index as well as the time of its first application will be notified as soon as possible pursuant to § 13. Any reference made to the Index in these Terms and Conditions shall, if the context so admits, then refer to the Successor Index. All related definitions shall be deemed to be amended accordingly. Furthermore, the Calculation Agent will make all

necessary adjustments to the Terms and Conditions of the Certificates resulting from a substitution of the Index.

- 3. If in the opinion of the Calculation Agent (i) the determination of a Successor Index in accordance with the above paragraph is not possible or unreasonable for the Issuer or (ii) if the Index Sponsor materially modifies the calculation method of an Index with effect on or before [the Valuation Date / insert other valuation time], or materially modifies the Index in any other way (except for modifications which are contemplated in the calculation method of the Index relating to a change with respect to securities comprising the Index, the market capitalisation or with respect to any other routine measures) (each of such events an "Extraordinary Event"), then the Issuer is entitled to (a) continue (itself or through an independent expert determined by the Issuer) the calculation of the Index on the basis of the former concept of the Index and its last determined level or (b) to (instead of a continuation of the calculation of the Index) terminate and redeem all, but not less than all, Certificates prematurely at the Early Redemption Amount (§ 4 paragraph 3) by giving notice in accordance with § 13.
- 4. If on [the Valuation Date / insert other valuation time] the [price] of the Index is not determined and published by the Index Sponsor, or if on [the Valuation Date / insert other valuation time], in the opinion of the Calculation Agent, a Market Disruption Event with respect to the Index occurs, then the next following calendar day on which the [price] is again determined and published by the Index Sponsor and on which there is no Market Disruption Event with respect to the Index will be deemed to be the [the Valuation Date / insert other valuation time].

If according to the before-mentioned provisions [the Valuation Date / insert other valuation time] is postponed until the [third] [•] Payment Business Day prior to the Redemption Date and if on such date the [price] of the Index is still not determined and published by the Index Sponsor or if a Market Disruption Event occurs or is continuing on such date, such date prior to the Redemption Date shall be deemed to be the relevant [the Valuation Date / insert other valuation time], and the Calculation Agent will, in its reasonable discretion (§ 315 of the German Civil Code) and in consideration of the prevailing market conditions, estimate the [price] of the Index on such date which shall be notified by the Issuer in accordance with § 13.

"Market Disruption Event" with respect to the Index means the occurrence or existence of any suspension of or limitation imposed on trading in the futures and options contracts contained in the Index on the exchanges or trading systems the prices of which are the basis for the calculation of the Index, or the suspension of or limitation imposed on trading in options or futures contracts on the Index on the options and futures exchange with the highest trading volume of options and futures contracts relating to the Index. provided that any such suspension or limitation is material in the reasonable discretion of the Issuer (§ 315 of the German Civil Code) for the evaluation of the Certificates and the fulfillment of its obligations under the Certificates. The occurrence of a Market Disruption Event shall be published in accordance with § 13.

A limitation regarding the office hours or the number of days of trading will not constitute a Market Disruption Event if it results from an announced change in the regular business hours of the relevant exchange. A limitation on trading imposed during the course of a day by reason of movements in price exceeding permitted limits shall only be deemed to be a Market Disruption Event in the case that such limitation is still prevailing at the time of termination of the trading hours on such date.

Alternative:

Certificates with reference to futures contracts on commodities

1. If in the opinion of the Calculation Agent (§ 10) an Extraordinary Event (as defined below) has occurred, the Issuer is entitled to either (i) make adjustments to the Terms and Conditions taking into consideration the provisions set forth hereinafter, or (ii) to (instead of an adjustment) terminate and redeem all, but not less than all, Certificates prematurely at the Early Redemption Amount (§ 4 paragraph 1) by giving notice in In making adjustments to the Terms and accordance with § 13. Conditions, the Issuer is entitled, but not obligated, to take into consideration the adjustments made to options or futures contracts relating to the Underlying that are traded on [the Exchange] [•]. If the Issuer makes adjustments without taking into consideration the manner in which adjustments are or would be made by the Exchange, the Issuer shall make the adjustments in its reasonable discretion (§ 315 of the German Civil Code). Any of the before-mentioned adjustments may, among others, relate to [the Initial Price, the Multiplier etc.] [other parameters] and may result in the Futures Contract being replaced by other futures contracts, a basket of futures contracts and/or cash, and another exchange being determined as the Exchange.

However, the Issuer is not obligated to make an adjustment and it is also entitled to make other adjustments taking into consideration the beforementioned principles.

- 2. Adjustments take effect as from the date determined by the Issuer, provided that (in case the Issuer takes into consideration the manner in which adjustments are or would be made by the [the Exchange] [•]) the Issuer shall take into consideration the date at which such adjustments take effect or would take effect on the [the Exchange] [•]. Adjustments as well as the effective date shall be notified by the Issuer in accordance with § 13.
- 3. If on the Valuation Date in the opinion of the Calculation Agent a [*price*] of the Futures Contract is not determined and published or if a Trading Disruption with respect to the Futures Contract occurs, then the next following calendar day on which a [*price*] of the Futures Contract is again determined and published and on which a Trading Disruption does not occur will be deemed to be the Valuation Date for the Futures Contract.

If according to the before-mentioned provisions the Valuation Date is postponed until the second Exchange Business Day prior to the Redemption Date and if on such date a [*price*] of the Futures Contract is still not determined and published or if a Trading Disruption occurs or is continuing on such date, such second Exchange Business Day prior to the Redemption Date shall be deemed to be the relevant Valuation Date, and the Calculation Agent will, in its reasonable discretion (§ 315 German Civil Code (BGB)) and in consideration of the prevailing market conditions, estimate the [*price*] of the Futures Contract on such day and make a notification in accordance with § 13.

4. For the purposes of this § 7 the following definitions shall apply:

"**Disappearance of Reference Price**" means (a) the permanent discontinuation of trading, in the Futures Contract on the Exchange; (b) the disappearance of, or of trading in, the Commodity; or (c) the disappearance or permanent discontinuance or unavailability of a [*price*], notwithstanding the availability of the Price Source or the status of trading in the Futures Contract or the Commodity.

"Extraordinary Event" means the occurrence of any of the following events: Disappearance of Reference Price, Hedging Disruption, Material Change in Content, Price Source Disruption, Tax Disruption, Trading Disruption or any other event being economically comparable to the before-mentioned events with regard to their effects.

"Hedging Disruption" means an event due to which the Issuer and/or its affiliates (§ 15 of the German Stock Corporation Act) are, even following economically reasonable efforts, not in the position (i) to enter, re-enter, replace, maintain, liquidate, acquire or dispose of any transactions or investments that the Issuer considers necessary to hedge its risks resulting from the assumption and performance of its obligations under the Certificates or (ii) to realize, regain or transfer the proceeds resulting from such transactions or investments;

"Material Change in Content" means the occurrence of a material change in the content, composition or constitution of the Commodity or the Futures Contract.

"**Price Source Disruption**" means (a) the failure of the Price Source to announce or publish the relevant [*price*] (or the information necessary for determining the [*price*]); or (b) the temporary or permanent discontinuance or unavailability of the Price Source.

"Tax Disruption" means the imposition of, change in or removal of an excise, severance, sales, use, value-added, transfer, stamp, documentary, recording or similar tax on, or measured by reference to, a Commodity (other than a tax on, or measured by reference to overall gross or net income) by any government or taxation authority after the Trade Date, if the direct effect of such imposition, change or removal is to raise or lower the [*price*].

"**Trading Disruption**" means the material suspension of, or the material limitation imposed on, trading in the Futures Contract or the Commodity on the Exchange or in any additional futures contract, options contract or commodity on any Exchange. For these purposes:

- (a) a suspension of the trading in the Futures Contract or the Commodity on any Exchange Business Day shall be deemed to be material only if:
 - all trading in the Futures Contract or the Commodity is suspended for the entire Exchange Business Day; or
 - (2) all trading in the Futures Contract or the Commodity is suspended subsequent to the opening of trading on the Exchange Business Day, trading does not recommence prior to the regularly scheduled close of trading in such Futures Contract or such Commodity on such Exchange Business Day and such suspension is announced less than one hour preceding its commencement; and
- (b) a limitation of trading in the Futures Contract or the Commodity on any Exchange Business Day shall be deemed to be material only if the Exchange establishes limits on the range within which the price of the Futures Contract or the Commodity may fluctuate and the closing or settlement price of the Futures Contract or the Commodity oh such day is at the upper or lower limit of that range.

Alternative: Certificates with reference to a combination of different types of underlyings or to other underlyings

[insert applicable provisions from alternatives above, if appropriate, and/or insert other applicable provisions including adjustment clauses, market disruption clauses, settlement disruption clauses and/or other aspects, if applicable to such Certificates]

§ 8 (PRESENTATION PERIODS, PRESCRIPTION)

The period for presentation of the Certificates (§ 801, paragraph 1, sentence 1 of the German Civil Code) shall be ten years and the period of limitation for claims under the Certificates presented during the period for presentation shall be two years calculated from the expiry of the relevant presentation period.

§ 9 (STATUS)

The obligations under the Certificates constitute direct, unconditional and unsecured obligations of the Issuer and rank at least *pari passu* with all other unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of the Issuer (save for such exceptions as may exist from time to time under applicable law).

§ 10

(AGENTS)

1. [Commerzbank Aktiengesellschaft [address] / [other bank]] shall be the "Principal Paying Agent". The Issuer shall procure that there will at all times be a Principal Paying Agent. [The Issuer is entitled to appoint other banks of international standing as Principal Paying Agent or additional paying agents (each, a "Paying Agent"; the Principal Paying Agent and any additional Paying Agent together the "Paying Agents").] [Commerzbank International S.A. [address] / [and] [other bank(s)]] shall be appointed as additional Paying Agent[s] (together with the Principal Paying Agent the "Paying Agents").] [The Issuer shall procure that as long as Certificates are listed on the [exchange] there will at all times be a Paying Agent in [city].]

Furthermore, the Issuer is entitled to terminate the appointment of the Principal Paying Agent as well as of individual Paying Agents. In the event of such termination or such bank being unable or unwilling to continue to act as Principal Paying Agent or Paying Agent, as the case may be, the Issuer shall appoint another bank of international standing as Principal Paying Agent or Paying Agent, respectively. Such appointment or termination shall be published without undue delay in accordance with § 13.

2. [Commerzbank Aktiengesellschaft [address] / [other bank]] shall be the "Calculation Agent". The Issuer shall procure that as long as [interest rates have to be determined or other] determinations have to be made in accordance with these Terms and Conditions there shall at all times be a Calculation Agent. The Issuer reserves the right at any time to terminate the appointment of the Calculation Agent. In the event of such termination or of the appointed office of any such bank being unable or unwilling to continue to act as Calculation Agent (as the case may be) the Issuer

shall appoint an appropriate office of another leading bank to act as Calculation Agent. The appointment of another Calculation Agent shall be published without delay by the Issuer in accordance with § 13.

3. The Paying Agents and the Calculation Agent acting in such capacity, act only as agents of the Issuer. There is no agency or fiduciary relationship between the Paying Agents and the Calculation Agent on the one hand and the Certificateholders on the other hand. The [Paying Agents and the Calculation Agent are hereby granted exemption from the restrictions of § 181 of the German Civil Code and any similar restrictions of the applicable laws of any other country.

§ 11 (TERMINATION)

- 1. Each Certificateholder is entitled to declare its Certificates due and to require the redemption of his Certificates at the Early Redemption Amount pursuant to § 4 paragraph 1 as provided hereinafter, if:
 - (a) the Issuer is in default for more than 30 days in the payment of any amount due [shall be added if Certificates contain a delivery obligation: and/or deliveries];
 - (b) the Issuer violates any other obligation under these Terms and Conditions, and such violation continues for 60 days after receipt of written notice thereof from the respective Certificateholder;
 - (c) the Issuer is wound up or dissolved whether by a resolution of the shareholders or otherwise (except in connection with a merger or reorganisation in such a way that all of the assets and liabilities of the Issuer pass to another legal person in universal succession by operation of law);
 - (d) the Issuer ceases its payments and this continues for 60 days, or admits to be unable to pay its debts;
 - (e) any insolvency proceedings are instituted against the Issuer which shall not have been dismissed or stayed within 60 days after their institution or the Issuer applies for the institution of such proceedings, or offers or makes an arrangement for the benefit of its creditors or the Federal Financial Supervisory Authority (BaFin) opens insolvency proceedings against the Issuer; or
 - (f) in the case of a substitution of the Issuer within the meaning of § 12 paragraph 4 (b) any of the events set forth in sub-paragraphs (c)-(e) above occurs in respect of the Guarantor.

The right to declare Certificates due shall terminate if the circumstances giving rise to it have been remedied before such right is exercised.

2. The right to declare Certificates due pursuant to paragraph 1 shall be exercised by a Certificateholder by delivering or sending by registered mail to the Principal Paying Agent a written notice which shall state the principal amount of the Certificates called for redemption and shall enclose evidence of ownership reasonably satisfactory to the Principal Paying Agent.

§ 12 ([SUBSTITUTION OF ISSUER [, BRANCH DESIGNATION] [THIS CLAUSE HAS BEEN LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK])

Alternative:	Cert	tificates with substitution of the Issuer
	1.	Any other company may assume at any time during the life of the Certificates, subject to § 12 paragraph 4, without the Certificateholders' consent upon notice by the Issuer given through publication in accordance with § 13, all the obligations of the Issuer under these Terms and Conditions.
	2.	Upon any such substitution, such substitute company (hereinafter called the " New Issuer ") shall succeed to, and be substituted for, and may exercise every right and power of, the Issuer under these Terms and Conditions with the same effect as if the New Issuer had been named as the Issuer herein; the Issuer (and, in the case of a repeated application of this § 12, each previous New Issuer) shall be released from its obligations hereunder and from its liability as obligor under the Certificates.
	3.	In the event of such substitution, any reference in these Terms and Conditions (except for this § 12) to the "Issuer " shall from then on be deemed to refer to the New Issuer and any reference to the country of the corporate seat of the Issuer which is to be substituted (except for the references in § 16 to the Federal Republic of Germany) shall be deemed to refer to the country of the corporate seat of the New Issuer and the country under the laws of which it is organised.
	4.	No such assumption shall be permitted unless
		 (a) the New Issuer has agreed to assume all obligations of the Issuer under the Certificates pursuant to these Terms and Conditions;
		(b) the New Issuer has agreed to indemnify and hold harmless each Certificateholder against any tax, duty, assessment or governmental charge imposed on such Certificateholder in respect of such substitution;
		(c) the Issuer (in this capacity referred to as the "Guarantor") has unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed to the Certificateholders compliance by the New Issuer with all obligations under the Certificates pursuant to these Terms and Conditions;
		(d) the New Issuer and the Guarantor have obtained all governmental authorisations, approvals, consents and permissions necessary in the jurisdictions in which the Guarantor and/or the New Issuer are domiciled or the country under the laws of which they are organised.
	5.	Upon any substitution of the Issuer for a New Issuer, this § 12 shall apply again.
This paragraph shall be added if there is a Branch Designation	[6.	The Issuer may at any time, designate by publication in accordance with § 13 any branch (<i>Betriebsstätte</i>) of the Issuer outside the Federal Republic of Germany as the branch (<i>Betriebsstätte</i>) primarily responsible for the due and punctual payment in respect of the Certificates then outstanding and the performance of all of the Issuer's other obligations under the Certificates then outstanding.

Paragraphs 4 (c) and 5 of this § 12 shall apply *mutatis mutandis* to such

designation.]

Alternative:

Certificates without substitution of the Issuer

[leave blank]

§ 13 (NOTICES)

This paragraph shall apply only to Certificates which are listed on a exchange or offered to the public

This paragraph shall apply only to Certificates which are neither listed on a exchange nor offered to the public Notices relating to the Certificates shall be published on the internet page [•] (or on another internet page notified at least six weeks in advance by the Issuer in accordance with this § 13) and shall be deemed to be effective upon such publication unless such publication gives another effective date. If applicable law or regulations of the exchange on which the Certificates are listed require a notification in another manner, notices shall also be given in the manner so required.

Unless these Terms and Conditions expressly provide for publication on the Issuer's internet page, any notices relating to the Certificates shall be published in the electronic version of the Federal Gazette (*Bundesanzeiger*) and, where required by law, in one supra-regional mandatory publication for each of the exchanges on which the Certificates are admitted to be traded. Any such notice shall be deemed to have been given on the day of its publication (or, in the case of several notices, on the first day of such publication).

§ 14 (AVAILABLE INFORMATION)

Commerzbank hereby undertakes to furnish upon the request of a Certificateholder or the holder of any beneficial interest in a Certificate, upon the request of such holder or to a prospective purchaser designated by such holder or beneficial owner, the information required to be delivered under Rule 144A(d)(4) under the U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as amended if, at the time of the request, Commerzbank is neither a reporting company under Section 13 or 15(d) of the U.S. Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended ("**U.S. Exchange Act**"), nor exempt from reporting pursuant to Rule 12g3-2(b) under the U.S. Exchange Act.

§ 15 (LIMITATION OF LIABILITY)

The Issuer, the Paying Agents and the Calculation Agent shall be held responsible for acting or failing to act in connection with the Certificates only if, and insofar as, it either (i) breaches material obligations under or in connection with the Terms and Conditions of the Certificates negligently or wilfully or (ii) breaches other obligations with gross negligence or wilfully.

§ 16 (FINAL CLAUSES)

- 1. The form and content of the Certificates and the rights and duties of the Certificateholders, the Issuer, the Calculation Agent and the Paying Agents shall in all respects be governed by the laws of the Federal Republic of Germany.
- 2. In the event of manifest typing or calculation errors or similar manifest

errors in the Terms and Conditions, the Issuer shall be entitled to declare rescission (Anfechtung) to the Certificateholders. The declaration of rescission shall be made without undue delay upon becoming aware of any such ground for rescission (Anfechtungsgrund) and in accordance with § 13. Following a declaration of rescission by the Issuer, the Certificateholder is entitled to request repayment of the Issue Price by delivery of a duly completed redemption notice to the Principal Paying Agent on the form available at the Principal Paying Agent or by providing all information and statements requested therein (the "Redemption Notice") and by transfer of the Certificates to the account of the Principal Paying Agent with the Clearing System. The Issuer shall make available the Issue Price to the Certificate Agent within [number] calendar days following receipt of the Redemption Notice and of the Certificates by the Certificate Agent, whichever receipt is later, whereupon the Certificate Agent shall transfer the Issue Price to the account specified in the Redemption Notice. Upon payment of the Issue Price all rights under the Certificates delivered shall expire.

- 3. The Issuer may combine the declaration of rescission pursuant to paragraph 2. with an offer to continue the Certificates on the basis of corrected Terms and Conditions. Such an offer and the corrected provisions shall be notified to the Certificateholders together with the declaration of rescission in accordance with § 13. Any such offer shall be deemed to be accepted by a Certificateholder (and the rescission shall not take effect), unless the Certificateholder requests repayment of the Issue Price within four weeks following the date on which the offer has become effective in accordance with § 13 by delivery of a duly completed Redemption Notice to the Principal Paying Agent and by transfer of the Certificates to the account of the Principal Paying Agent with the Clearing System pursuant to paragraph 2. The Issuer shall refer to this effect in the notification.
- 4. **"Issue Price**" within the meaning of paragraphs 2. and 3. shall be the actual purchase price paid at the time of the first purchase of the Certificates delivered for repayment [, or (if no purchase price for the first purchase of the Certificates can be determined) the issue price as set forth in the applicable Final Terms relating to the Base Prospectus dated [date]].
- 5. Contradictory or incomplete provisions in the Terms and Conditions may be corrected or amended, as the case may be, by the Issuer in its reasonable discretion (§ 315 of the German Civil Code). The Issuer, however, shall only be entitled to make such corrections or amendments which are reasonably acceptable to the Certificateholders having regard to the interests of the Issuer and in particular which do not materially adversely affect the legal or financial situation of the Certificateholders. Notice of any such correction or amendment shall be given to the Certificateholders in accordance with § 13.
- If the Certificateholder was aware of typing or calculation errors or similar errors at the time of the acquisition of the Certificates, then, notwithstanding paragraphs 2 - 5, the Certificateholders can be bound by the Issuer to the corrected Terms and Conditions.
- 7. Place of performance is Frankfurt am Main.
- 8. Place of jurisdiction for all disputes and other proceedings in connection with the Certificates for merchants, entities of public law, special funds under public law and entities without a place of general jurisdiction in the Federal Republic of Germany is Frankfurt am Main. In such a case, the

place of jurisdiction in Frankfurt am Main shall be an exclusive place of jurisdiction.

FORM OF FINAL TERMS (NOTES)

FORM OF FINAL TERMS

FINAL TERMS

relating to

COMMERZBANK AKTIENGESELLSCHAFT

[Issue Currency] [Aggregate Principal Amount] [[•] per cent. / Fixed Rate / Step-up / Step-down / Reverse Convertible / Zero Coupon / Floating Rate / Interest Structured / Redemption Structured] Notes of 200[•]/20[•]

issued under the

Notes/Certificates Programme

of

COMMERZBANK AKTIENGESELLSCHAFT

Date of the Final Terms: [•]

Series No.: [•]

Tranche No.: [•] of that Series

This document constitutes the Final Terms relating to the issue of Notes under the Notes/Certificates Programme of Commerzbank Aktiengesellschaft (the "**Programme**") and shall be read in conjunction with the Base Prospectus dated • November 2008 as supplemented from time to time[, save in respect of the Programme Terms and Conditions which are extracted from the former base prospectus dated [10 December 2008] and which had been incorporated by reference into the Base Prospectus dated • December 2009]⁵. Full information on the Issuer and the offer of the Notes is only available on the basis of the combination of these Final Terms and the Base Prospectus and supplements thereto, if any. The Base Prospectus and any supplements will be available free of charge at the head office of the Issuer, Kaiserstraße 16 (Kaiserplatz), 60311 Frankfurt am Main, Federal Republic of Germany and at the following website of Commerzbank Aktiengesellschaft: www.commerzbank.com. These Final Terms are available [in the same form] [•] (*in the event of a public offering and/or listing and admission to trading on a regulated market of a member state of the European Economic Area*).

I. Terms and Conditions:

⁶[The Programme Terms and Conditions dated [• December 2009] [•]⁷ (the "**Programme Terms and Conditions**") shall be amended by incorporating the terms of the Final Terms, and by deleting all provisions not applicable to the respective Tranche of the respective Series (the "**Consolidated Terms**") in the form attached hereto as <u>Annex 1</u>. The Consolidated Terms shall replace the Programme Terms and Conditions in their entirety. If and to the extent the Consolidated Terms deviate from the Programme Terms and Conditions, the Consolidated Terms shall prevail.]

⁸[The following terms of the Final Terms amend and supplement the Programme Terms and Conditions dated [• December 2009] [•]⁹ (the "**Programme Terms and Conditions**"). If and to the extent the following terms deviate from the Programme Terms and Conditions, the following terms shall prevail. [add terms]]

II. Other Conditions			
Issue Date	[date]		
Issue Price	[●] ¹⁰		
[Offer Period	From [•] to [•]. The Offer Period may be extended or shortened.]		
[Minimum subscription amount	[•]]		
[Maximum subscription amount	[•]]		
German Securities Identification No.	[•]		

⁵ This additional language applies if the first tranche of an issue which is being increased was issued under a former Base Prospectus.

⁶ Only applicable in case of Consolidated Terms.

⁷ This additional language applies if the first tranche of an issue which is being increased was issued under a former Base Prospectus.

⁸ Only applicable in case of Supplemented Terms.

⁹ This additional language applies if the first tranche of an issue which is being increased was issued under a former Base Prospectus.

¹⁰ Agio needs to be specified if applicable.

Common Code	[•]
ISIN	[•]
	[If fungible with an existing Series, details of that Series, including the date on which the Notes become fungible]
[Other security code(s)	[•]]
Listing	[Yes [insert exchange] / Not Applicable]
[Stabilising Agent	Issuer / None]
[Market Making	[•]
	[(insert name and address of entities which have a firm commitment to act as intermediaries in secondary trading, providing liquidity through bid and offer rates and description of the main terms of their commitment]]
[Targeted investor category	[•]]
[Additional Selling Restrictions	The following Selling Restrictions shall apply in addition to the Selling Restrictions set forth in the Prospectus: •]
¹¹ [Additional Risk Factors]	
¹² [Additional Taxation Disclosure]	
[Additional further Information	[Consider inclusion of further information to comply with Annex V and/or Annex XII of the Commission Regulation (EC) No 809/2004 of April 29, 2004 (the " Prospectus Regulation ") if relevant]]
[Ratings:	[The Issuer has been rated as follows:
	[S & P: [•]]
	[Moody's: [•]]
	[[Other]: [•]]
	[Need to include a brief explanation of the meaning of the ratings if this has previously been published by the rating provider.]
	[The Notes to be issued have been rated:
	[S & P: [•]]

¹¹ Specific additional risk factors if appropriate.

¹² Information on taxes on the income from Notes withheld at source in respect of countries where the offer is being made or admission to trading is being sought.

[Interests of natural and legal persons involved in the issue/offer

Reasons for the offer, estimated net proceeds and total expenses

¹³[(i) Reasons for the offer

[(ii)] Estimated net proceeds

[(iii)] Estimated total expenses

¹⁴[Indication of yield:

[Floating Rate Notes only - past and future interest rates

[Moody's: [•]]

[[Other]: [•]]

[Need to include a brief explanation of the meaning of the ratings if this has previously been published by the rating provider.]

[The above disclosure should reflect the rating allocated to Notes of the type being issued under the Programme generally or, where the issue has been specifically rated, that rating.]]

[So far as the Issuer is aware, no person involved in the offer of the Notes has an interest material to the offer.][•]]

[•]]

[•]

[If proceeds are intended for more than one use will need to split out and present in order of priority. If proceeds insufficient to fund all proposed uses state amount and sources of other funding.]

[•]

[Include breakdown of expenses.] [If the Notes are derivative securities to which Annex XII of the Prospectus Directive Regulation applies it is only necessary to include disclosure of net proceeds and total expenses at (ii) and (iii) above where disclosure is included at (i) above.]

[•]

Calculated as [include details of method of calculation in summary form] on the Issue Date.

[As set out above, the yield is calculated at the Issue Date on the basis of the Issue Price. It is not an indication of future yield.]]

Details of past and future [LIBOR/EURIBOR/other] rates can be obtained from [Telerate] [•].]

¹³ If reasons for offer different from making profit and/or hedging certain risks will need to include those reasons here.

¹⁴ Only applicable in case of Fixed Rate, Step-up and Step-down Notes

¹⁵[Interest Structured Notes/ Redemption Structured Notes and Reverse Convertible Notes only - performance of and other information concerning the Underlying/Formula(e)/other variable, explanation of effect on value of investment and associated risks]

[•]

[The information included herein with respect to the underlying to which interest payment/redemption payment [{delivery] under the Notes is linked [(the "Underlying")] [(the "Underlying Entities")] consists only of extracts from, or summaries of, publicly available information. The Issuer accepts responsibility that such information has been correctly extracted or summarised. No further or other responsibility in respect of such information is accepted by the Issuer. In particular, the Issuer accepts no responsibility in respect of the accuracy or completeness of the information set forth herein concerning the Underlying [or the Underlying Entities] of the Notes or that there has not occurred any event which would affect the accuracy or completeness of such information. [[•]

¹⁵ Need to include details of where past and future performance and volatility of the index/formula(e)/other variable can be obtained and a clear and comprehensive explanation of how the value of the investment is affected by the underlying and the circumstances when the risks are most evident. [Where the underlying is an index need to include the name of the index and a description if composed by the Issuer and if the index is not composed by the Issuer need to include details of where the information about the index can be obtained. Where the underlying is not an index need to include equivalent information.]

FORM OF FINAL TERMS (CERTIFICATES WITH FIXED REDEMPTION DATE)

FORM OF FINAL TERMS

FINAL TERMS

relating to

COMMERZBANK AKTIENGESELLSCHAFT

[Number] [•] Certificates

issued under the

Notes/Certificates Programme

of

COMMERZBANK AKTIENGESELLSCHAFT

Date of the Final Terms: [•] Series No.: [•] Tranche No.: [•] of that Series This document constitutes the Final Terms relating to the issue of Certificates under the Notes/Certificates Programme of Commerzbank Aktiengesellschaft (the "**Programme**") and shall be read in conjunction with the Base Prospectus dated • December 2009 as supplemented from time to time[, save in respect of the Programme Terms and Conditions which are extracted from the former base prospectus dated [10 December 2008] and which had been incorporated by reference into the Base Prospectus dated • December 2009]¹⁶. Full information on the Issuer and the offer of the Certificates is only available on the basis of the combination of these Final Terms and the Base Prospectus and supplements thereto, if any. The Base Prospectus and any supplements will be available free of charge at the head office of the Issuer, Kaiserstraße 16 (Kaiserplatz), 60311 Frankfurt am Main, Federal Republic of Germany and at the following website of Commerzbank Aktiengesellschaft: www.commerzbank.com. These Final Terms are available [in the same form] [•] (*in the event of a public offering and/or listing and admission to trading on a regulated market of a member state of the European Economic Area*).

I.

Terms and Conditions:

¹⁷[The Programme Terms and Conditions dated [• December 2009] [•]¹⁸ (the "**Programme Terms and Conditions**") shall be amended by incorporating the terms of the Final Terms, and by deleting all provisions not applicable to the respective Tranche of the respective Series (the "**Consolidated Terms**") in the form attached hereto as <u>Annex 1</u>. The Consolidated Terms shall replace the Programme Terms and Conditions in their entirety. If and to the extent the Consolidated Terms deviate from the Programme Terms and Conditions, the Consolidated Terms shall prevail.]

¹⁹[The following terms of the Final Terms amend and supplement the Programme Terms and Conditions dated [• December 2009] [•]²⁰ (the "**Programme Terms and Conditions**"). If and to the extent the following terms deviate from the Programme Terms and Conditions, the following terms shall prevail. [*add terms*]]

II. Other Conditions

Issue Date	[date]
Issue Price	[•] ²¹
[Offer Period	From [•] to [•]. The Offer Period may be extended or shortened.]]
[Minimum subscription amount	[•]]
[Maximum subscription amount	[•]]

¹⁶ This additional language applies if the first tranche of an issue which is being increased was issued under a former Base Prospectus.

¹⁷ Only applicable in case of Consolidated Terms.

¹⁸ This additional language applies if the first tranche of an issue which is being increased was issued under a former Base Prospectus.

¹⁹ Only applicable in case of Supplemented Terms.

²⁰ This additional language applies if the first tranche of an issue which is being increased was issued under a former Base Prospectus.

²¹ Agio needs to be specified if applicable.

German Securities Identification No.	[•]
Common Code	[•]
ISIN	[•]
	[If fungible with an existing Series, details of that Series, including the date on which the Certificates become fungible]
[Other security code(s)	[•]]
Listing	[Yes [insert exchange] / No]
[Stabilising Agent	Issuer/ None]
[Market Making	[•]
	[(insert name and address of entities which have a firm commitment to act as intermediaries in secondary trading, providing liquidity through bid and offer rates and description of the main terms of their commitment]]
Targeted investor category	[•]]
[Additional Selling Restrictions	The following Selling Restrictions shall apply in addition to the Selling Restrictions set forth in the Prospectus: •]
²² [Additional Risk Factors]	
²³ [Additional Taxation Disclosure]	
[Additional further Information	[Consider inclusion of further information to comply with Annex V and/or Annex XII of the Prospectus Regulation if relevant]]
[Ratings:	[The Issuer has been rated as follows:
	[S & P: [•]]
	[Moody's: [•]]
	[[Other]: [•]]
	[Need to include a brief explanation of the meaning of the ratings if this has previously been published by the rating provider.]
	[The Certificates to be issued have been rated:
	[S & P: [•]]

²² Specific additional risk factors if appropriate.

²³ Information on taxes on the income from Certificates withheld at source in respect of countries where the offer is being made or admission to trading is being sought.

[Interests of natural and legal persons involved in the issue/offer

Reasons for the offer, estimated net proceeds and total expenses

²⁴[(i) Reasons for the offer

[(ii)] Estimated net proceeds

[(iii)] Estimated total expenses

²⁵Performance of and other information concerning Underlying/Formula(e)/other variable, explanation of effect on value of investment and associated risks [Moody's: [•]]

[[Other]: [•]]

[Need to include a brief explanation of the meaning of the ratings if this has previously been published by the rating provider.]

[The above disclosure should reflect the rating allocated to Certificates of the type being issued under the Programme generally or, where the issue has been specifically rated, that rating.]]

[So far as the Issuer is aware, no person involved in the offer of the Certificates has an interest material to the offer.][•]]

[•]]

[•]

[If proceeds are intended for more than one use will need to split out and present in order of priority. If proceeds insufficient to fund all proposed uses state amount and sources of other funding.]

[•] [Include breakdown of expenses.] [It is only necessary to include disclosure of net proceeds and total expenses at (ii) and (iii) above where disclosure is included at (i) above.]

[•]

[The information included herein with respect to the underlying to which interest payment/redemption payment [{delivery] under the Certificates is linked [(the "**Underlying**")] [(the "**Underlying Entities**")] consists only of extracts from, or summaries of, publicly available information. The Issuer accepts responsibility that such information has been correctly extracted or summarised. No further or other responsibility in respect of such information is accepted by the Issuer. In particular, the Issuer accepts no

²⁴ If reasons for offer different from making profit and/or hedging certain risks will need to include those reasons here.

²⁵ Need to include details of where past and future performance and volatility of the index/formula(e)/other variable can be obtained and a clear and comprehensive explanation of how the value of the investment is affected by the underlying and the circumstances when the risks are most evident. [Where the underlying is an index need to include the name of the index and a description if composed by the Issuer and if the index is not composed by the Issuer need to include details of where the information about the index can be obtained. Where the underlying is not an index need to include equivalent information.]

responsibility in respect of the accuracy or completeness of the information set forth herein concerning the Underlying [or the Underlying Entities] of the Certificates or that there has not occurred any event which would affect the accuracy or completeness of such information.][•] FORM OF FINAL TERMS (UNLIMITED CERTIFICATES WITHOUT FIXED REDEMPTION DATE)

FORM OF FINAL TERMS

FINAL TERMS

relating to

COMMERZBANK AKTIENGESELLSCHAFT

[Number] [•] Unlimited Certificates

issued under the

Notes/Certificates Programme

of

COMMERZBANK AKTIENGESELLSCHAFT

Date of the Final Terms: [•] Series No.: [•] Tranche No.: [•] of that Series This document constitutes the Final Terms relating to the issue of Certificates under the Notes/Certificates Programme of Commerzbank Aktiengesellschaft (the "**Programme**") and shall be read in conjunction with the Base Prospectus dated • December 2009as supplemented from time to time[, save in respect of the Programme Terms and Conditions which are extracted from the former base prospectus dated [10 December 2008] and which had been incorporated by reference into the Base Prospectus dated • December 2009]²⁶. Full information on the Issuer and the offer of the Certificates is only available on the basis of the combination of these Final Terms and the Base Prospectus and supplements thereto, if any. The Base Prospectus and any supplements will be available free of charge at the head office of the Issuer, Kaiserstraße 16 (Kaiserplatz), 60311 Frankfurt am Main, Federal Republic of Germany and at the following website of Commerzbank Aktiengesellschaft: www.commerzbank.com. These Final Terms are available [in the same form] [•] (*in the event of a public offering and/or listing and admission to trading on a regulated market of a member state of the European Economic Area*).

I.

Terms and Conditions:

²⁷[The Programme Terms and Conditions dated [• December 2009] [•]²⁸ (the "**Programme Terms** and **Conditions**") shall be amended by incorporating the terms of the Final Terms, and by deleting all provisions not applicable to the respective Tranche of the respective Series (the "**Consolidated Terms**") in the form attached hereto as <u>Annex 1</u>. The Consolidated Terms shall replace the Programme Terms and Conditions in their entirety. If and to the extent the Consolidated Terms deviate from the Programme Terms and Conditions, the Consolidated Terms shall prevail.]

²⁹[The following terms of the Final Terms amend and supplement the Programme Terms and Conditions dated [• December 2009] [•]³⁰ (the "**Programme Terms and Conditions**"). If and to the extent the following terms deviate from the Programme Terms and Conditions, the following terms shall prevail. [*add terms*]]

II. Other Conditions

Issue Date	[date]
Issue Price	[•] ³¹
[Offer Period	From [•] to [•]. The Offer Period may be extended or shortened.]]
[Minimum subscription amount	[•]]
[Maximum subscription amount	[•]]

²⁶ This additional language applies if the first tranche of an issue which is being increased was issued under a former Base Prospectus.

²⁷ Only applicable in case of Consolidated Terms.

²⁸ This additional language applies if the first tranche of an issue which is being increased was issued under a former Base Prospectus.

²⁹ Only applicable in case of Supplemented Terms.

³⁰ This additional language applies if the first tranche of an issue which is being increased was issued under a former Base Prospectus.

³¹ Agio needs to be specified if applicable.

German Securities Identification No.	[•]
Common Code	[•]
ISIN	[•]
	[If fungible with an existing Series, details of that Series, including the date on which the Certificates become fungible]
[Other security code(s)	[•]]
Listing	[Yes [insert exchange] / No]
[Stabilising Agent	Issuer/ None]
[Market Making	[•]
	[(insert name and address of entities which have a firm commitment to act as intermediaries in secondary trading, providing liquidity through bid and offer rates and description of the main terms of their commitment]]
Targeted investor category	[•]]
[Additional Selling Restrictions	The following Selling Restrictions shall apply in addition to the Selling Restrictions set forth in the Prospectus: •]
³² [Additional Risk Factors]	
³³ [Additional Taxation Disclosure]	
[Additional further Information	[Consider inclusion of further information to comply with Annex V and/or Annex XII of the Prospectus Regulation if relevant]]
[Ratings:	[The Issuer has been rated as follows:
	[S & P: [•]]
	[Moody's: [•]]
	[[Other]: [•]]
	[Need to include a brief explanation of the meaning of the ratings if this has previously been published by the rating provider.]
	[The Certificates to be issued have been rated:
	[S & P: [•]]

³² Specific additional risk factors if appropriate.

³³ Information on taxes on the income from Certificates withheld at source in respect of countries where the offer is being made or admission to trading is being sought.

[Interests of natural and legal persons involved in the issue/offer

Reasons for the offer, estimated net proceeds and total expenses

³⁴[(i) Reasons for the offer

[(ii)] Estimated net proceeds

[(iii)] Estimated total expenses

³⁵Performance of and other information concerning Underlying/Formula(e)/other variable, explanation of effect on value of investment and associated risks [Moody's: [•]]

[[Other]: [•]]

[Need to include a brief explanation of the meaning of the ratings if this has previously been published by the rating provider.]

[The above disclosure should reflect the rating allocated to Certificates of the type being issued under the Programme generally or, where the issue has been specifically rated, that rating.]]

[So far as the Issuer is aware, no person involved in the offer of the Certificates has an interest material to the offer.][•]]

[•]]

[•]

[If proceeds are intended for more than one use will need to split out and present in order of priority. If proceeds insufficient to fund all proposed uses state amount and sources of other funding.]

[•] [Include breakdown of expenses.] [It is only necessary to include disclosure of net proceeds and total expenses at (ii) and (iii) above where disclosure is included at (i) above.]

[•]

[The information included herein with respect to the underlying to which interest payment/redemption payment [{delivery] under the Certificates is linked [(the "**Underlying**")] [(the "**Underlying Entities**")] consists only of extracts from, or summaries of, publicly available information. The Issuer accepts responsibility that such information has been correctly extracted or summarised. No further or other responsibility in respect of such information is accepted by the Issuer. In particular, the Issuer accepts no

³⁴ If reasons for offer different from making profit and/or hedging certain risks will need to include those reasons here.

³⁵ Need to include details of where past and future performance and volatility of the index/formula(e)/other variable can be obtained and a clear and comprehensive explanation of how the value of the investment is affected by the underlying and the circumstances when the risks are most evident. [Where the underlying is an index need to include the name of the index and a description if composed by the Issuer and if the index is not composed by the Issuer need to include details of where the information about the index can be obtained. Where the underlying is not an index need to include equivalent information.]

responsibility in respect of the accuracy or completeness of the information set forth herein concerning the Underlying [or the Underlying Entities] of the Certificates or that there has not occurred any event which would affect the accuracy or completeness of such information.][•]

TAXATION

If the relevant Final Terms contain a tax gross-up clause, all amounts payable under the Securities will be paid without deduction or withholding for or on account of any present or future taxes, duties or governmental charges whatsoever imposed or levied by or on behalf of the Federal Republic of Germany or any taxing authority therein. In the case that the Issuer is compelled by a law or other regulation to deduct or withhold such taxes, duties or governmental charges the Issuer will pay any additional amounts to compensate the holder of Securities for such deduction or withholding, unless one of the exceptions set forth in the gross-up clause applies.

If the relevant Final Terms do not contain a gross-up tax clause, all present and future taxes, fees or other duties in connection with the Securities shall be borne and paid by the holders of the Securities. The Issuer is entitled to withhold from payments to be made under the Securities any taxes, fees and/or duties payable by the holder of the Securities in accordance with the previous sentence.

Taxation in Germany

Currently, there is no legal obligation for the Issuer (acting as issuer of the Securities and not as disbursing agent (*auszahlende Stelle*) as defined under German tax law) to deduct or withhold any German withholding tax (*Quellensteuer*) from payments of interest, principal and gains from the disposition, redemption or settlement of the Securities or on any ongoing payments to the holder of any Securities. Further, income and capital gains derived from particular issues of Securities can be subject to German income tax (*Einkommensteuer*). All tax implications can be subject to alteration due to future law changes.

Prospective investors are recommended to consult their own advisors as to the tax consequences of an investment in the Securities, taking into account the taxation in the holder's country of residence or deemed residence.

U.S. Taxation

The U.S. Federal income tax consequences of certain investments is uncertain as there is no legal authority as to their proper characterization for U.S. Federal income tax purposes. Prospective investors should therefore consult their tax advisors as the Federal, state, local and other tax consequences to the purchase, ownership and disposition of investment products.

OFFERING AND SELLING RESTRICTIONS

The Issuer does not represent that the Base Prospectus and the relevant Final Terms may be lawfully distributed, or that the Securities may be lawfully offered in any jurisdiction or pursuant to an exemption available under the laws and regulations of such jurisdiction, or assume any responsibility for facilitating such distribution or offering. In particular, no action has been taken by the Issuer which would permit a public offering of the Securities or distribution of the Base Prospectus and the relevant Final Terms other than asking for the approval by the German Federal Financial Supervisory Authority (*Bundesanstalt für Finanzdienstleistungsaufsicht*) ("**BaFin**") in accordance with the provisions of the German Securities Prospectus Act (*Wertpapierprospektgesetz*) and possibly in the future for a notification of such approval to other states in order to provide for a lawful offer by the Issuer itself. Accordingly, the Securities may not be offered or sold, directly or indirectly, and neither this Base Prospectus nor any Final Terms nor any advertisement or other offering material may be distributed or published in any jurisdiction, except under circumstances which are in compliance with any applicable laws and regulations.

SELLING RESTRICTIONS WITHIN THE EUROPEAN ECONOMIC AREA

In any member state of the European Economic Area ("**EEA**") that has implemented Directive 2003/71/EC (the "**Prospectus Directive**") (the "**Relevant Member State**"), the Securities may, with (and including) the day of entry into effect of the respective implementation in the Relevant Member State, be publicly offered in the Relevant Member State, provided that this is permitted under the applicable laws and other legal provisions, and further provided that

(a) the Public Offering starts or occurs within a period of 12 months following the publication of the Prospectus which has been approved by BaFin in accordance with the provisions of the German Securities Prospectus Act and, if the Securities are publicly offered in a Relevant Member State other than Germany, the approval has been notified to the competent authority in such Relevant Member State in accordance with § 18 of the German Securities Prospectus Act, or

(b) one of the exemptions set forth in § 3 para. 2 of the German Securities Prospectus Act exists or, in case of an offering outside of Germany, an exemption from the obligation to prepare a prospectus exists as set forth in the implementing law of the respective Relevant Member State in which the Public Offering shall occur.

"**Public Offering**" means (i) a communication to persons in any form and by any means presenting sufficient information on the terms of the offer and the securities to be offered, so as to enable an investor to decide to purchase or subscribe to these securities, as well as (ii) any additional specifications defined more closely in the implementing law of the respective Relevant Member State, in which the Public Offering shall occur.

In any EEA member state that has not implemented the Prospectus Directive, the Securities may only be publicly offered within or from the jurisdiction of such member state, provided that this is in accordance with the applicable laws and other legal provisions. The Issuer has not undertaken any steps, nor will the Issuer undertake any steps, aimed at making the Public Offering of the Securities or their possession or the marketing of offering documents related to the Securities legal in such jurisdiction if this requires special measures to be taken.

SELLING RESTRICTIONS OUTSIDE OF THE EUROPEAN ECONOMIC AREA

In a country outside of the EEA, the Securities may only be publicly offered, sold or delivered within or from the jurisdiction of such country, provided that this is in accordance with the applicable laws and other legal provisions, and provided further that the Issuer does not incur any obligations. The Issuer has not undertaken any steps, nor will the Issuer undertake any steps, aimed at making the Public Offering of the Securities or their possession or the marketing of offering documents related to the Securities legal in such jurisdiction if this requires special measures to be taken.

U.S. TRANSFER AND SELLING RESTRICTIONS

Transfer Restrictions

Each initial and subsequent purchaser of the Securities or person wishing to transfer an interest from one Security to another will be deemed to acknowledge, represent and agree as follows (terms used in this paragraph that are defined in Rule 144A or in Regulation S are used herein as defined therein):

(i) that the Base Prospectus does not contain all the information that would be included in an effective registration statement under the Securities Act;

(ii) that either: (a) it is a Qualified Institutional Buyer ("**QIB**") (as defined in Rule 144a under the U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "**Securities Act**")), purchasing (or holding) the Securities for its own account or for the account of one or more QIBs and it is aware that any sale to it is being made in reliance on an exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities Act provided by one or more of Rule 144A, Regulation D or Section 4(2) and the representations deemed to be made hereby or (b) it is outside the United States and is not a U.S. person;

(iii) that the Securities are being offered and sold in a transaction not involving a public offering in the United States within the meaning of the Securities Act, that the Securities are "restricted securities" within the meaning of Rule 144(a)(3) under the Securities Act and that the Securities have not been and will not be registered under the Securities Act or any applicable U.S. State securities laws and may not be offered or sold within the United States or to, or for the account or benefit of, U.S. persons except as set forth below;

(iv) that if in the future it decides to resell, pledge or otherwise transfer the Securities or any beneficial interests in the Securities, it will do so only (a) inside the United States to a person whom the seller reasonably believes is a QIB purchasing for its own account or for the account of a QIB in a transaction meeting the requirements of Rule 144A, (b) outside the United States in compliance with Rule 903 or Rule 904 under the Securities Act, (c) pursuant to the exemption from registration provided by Rule 144 under the Securities Act (if available);(d) pursuant to an effective registration statement under the Securities Act, in each case in accordance with all applicable U.S. State securities Act (in the case of this clause (e), as confirmed in an opinion of counsel satisfactory to Commerzbank).

(v) it will, and will require each subsequent holder to, notify any purchaser of the Securities from it of the resale restrictions referred to in paragraph (iv) above, if then applicable and it acknowledges that each Security will contain a legend substantially to the effect of paragraph (vii) below and any other legend required or advisable under applicable law;

(vi) it acknowledges that the Registrar will register the transfer of any Security resold or otherwise transferred by such purchaser pursuant to sub-paragraph (iv)(e) above only upon receipt of an opinion of counsel satisfactory to Commerzbank.

(vii) that the Securities, if issued in certificated form, will bear a legend to the following effect unless otherwise agreed to by the Issuer:

"THIS SECURITY HAS NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE U.S. SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE "**SECURITIES ACT**"), OR ANY OTHER APPLICABLE U.S. STATE SECURITIES LAWS AND, ACCORDINGLY, MAY NOT BE OFFERED OR SOLD WITHIN THE UNITED STATES OR TO, OR FOR THE ACCOUNT OR BENEFIT OF, U.S. PERSONS EXCEPT AS SET FORTH IN THE FOLLOWING SENTENCE. BY ITS ACQUISITION HEREOF, THE HOLDER REPRESENTS THAT IT IS (A) A "**QUALIFIED INSTITUTIONAL BUYER**" (AS DEFINED IN RULE 144A UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT) PURCHASING THE SECURITIES FOR ITS OWN ACCOUNT OR FOR THE ACCOUNT OF ONE OR MORE QUALIFIED INSTITUTIONAL BUYERS IN RELIANCE ON THE EXEMPTION FROM REGISTRATION PROVIDED BY ONE OR MORE OF RULE 144A, REGULATION D AND/OR SECTION 4(2) UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OR (B) NOT A U.S. PERSON AS DEFINED IN THE SECURITIES ACT. PROSPECTIVE PURCHASERS OF SECURITIES ARE HEREBY NOTIFIED THAT THE SELLER OF THE SECURITIES MAY BE RELYING ON AN EXEMPTION FROM THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 5 OF THE SECURITIES ACT PROVIDED BY RULE 144A. BY ITS ACQUISITION HEREOF, THE HOLDER ALSO AGREES THAT IT WILL NOT RESELL OR OTHERWISE TRANSFER THE SECURITIES OTHER THAN (1) INSIDE THE UNITED STATES TO A PERSON WHOM THE SELLER REASONABLY BELIEVES IS A QUALIFIED INSTITUTIONAL BUYER WITHIN THE MEANING OF RULE 144A UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT PURCHASING FOR ITS OWN ACCOUNT OR FOR THE ACCOUNT OF A QUALIFIED INSTITUTIONAL BUYER IN A TRANSACTION MEETING THE REQUIREMENTS OF RULE 144A, (2) OUTSIDE THE UNITED STATES IN COMPLIANCE WITH RULE 903 OR RULE 904 UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT, (3) PURSUANT TO THE EXEMPTION FROM REGISTRATION PROVIDED BY RULE 144 UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT (IF AVAILABLE), (4) PURSUANT TO AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT, IN EACH CASE IN ACCORDANCE WITH ALL APPLICABLE SECURITIES LAWS OF THE STATES OF THE UNITED STATES AND ANY OTHER JURISDICTION OR (5) PURSUANT TO AN EXEMPTION FROM THE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF THE SECURITIES ACT (IN THE CASE OF THIS CLAUSE (E), UPON THE CONFIRMATION OF AN OPINION OF COUNSEL SATISFACTORY TO THE ISSUER); AND (C) IT AGREES THAT IT WILL DELIVER TO EACH PERSON TO WHOM THIS SECURITY IS TRANSFERRED A NOTICE SUBSTANTIALLY TO THE EFFECT OF THIS LEGEND.

(viii) if it is outside the United States and is not a U.S. person, that if it should resell or otherwise transfer the Securities prior to the expiration of the distribution compliance period (defined as 40 days after the completion of the distribution of the Securities, it will do so only (a)(i) outside the United States in compliance with Rule 903 or 904 under the Securities Act or (ii) to a QIB in compliance with Rule 144A and (b) in accordance with all applicable U.S. State securities laws; and

(ix) that the Issuer and others will rely upon the truth and accuracy of the foregoing acknowledgements, representations and agreements and agrees that if any of such acknowledgements, representations or agreements made by it are no longer accurate, it shall promptly notify the Issuer; and if it is acquiring any Securities as a fiduciary or agent for one or more accounts it represents that it has sole investment discretion with respect to each such account and that it has full power to make the foregoing acknowledgements, representations and agreements on behalf of each such account; and

(x) that either

(A) it is not an employee benefit plan subject to the U.S. Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended ("**ERISA**") or a plan subject to Section 4975 of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended ("**CODE**"), it is not purchasing the Securities on behalf of or with "plan assets" of any such plan, and it is not a governmental or church or other plan ("**non-ERISA arrangement**") subject to provisions under applicable federal, state, local or foreign law that are similar to the requirements of ERISA or Section 4975 of the Code ("**similar law**"); or

(B) its purchase and holding of such Securities is eligible for exemptive relief under U.S. Department of Labor Prohibited Transaction Class Exemptions 96-23, 95-60, 91-38, 84-14, Section 408(b)(17) of ERISA or Section 4975(d)(20) of the Code, or in the case of a non-ERISA arrangement, its purchase and holding of such Securities will not constitute or result in a non-exempt violation of the provisions of any similar law; and

(xi) such person understands that there may be certain consequences under, without limitation, the United States federal, state and local income tax laws and foreign tax laws generally and ERISA, the U.S. Investment Company Act of 1940 and the Securities Act and such person has consulted such tax and other advisors with respect thereto as it deems appropriate or has otherwise satisfied itself with respect to such matters.

In addition, each person receiving this Base Prospectus and any supplement or Final Terms acknowledges that:

(i) such person has received a copy of the Base Prospectus and such other information as it deems necessary in order to make its investment decision and that such person has had access to the publicly available financial and other information regarding Commerzbank as it has requested. Such person acknowledges that neither the Company, any of its affiliates nor any other person has made

any representation, express or implied, to such person with respect to the company or the Securities, or the accuracy, completeness or adequacy of any financial or other information concerning the Company or the Securities. Such person understands that the Base Prospectus has been prepared in accordance with German format, style and content, which differs from US format, style and content. In particular, but without limitation, the financial information contained in the Base Prospectus have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and thus may not be comparable to financial statement of U.S. companies prepared in accordance with US generally accepted accounting principles;

(ii) such person understands that any subsequent transfer of the Securities is subject to certain restrictions and conditions set forth in the Base Prospectus (including those set out above) and that it agrees to be bound by, and not to resell, pledge or otherwise transfer the Securities except in compliance with, such restrictions and conditions and the Securities Act;

(iii) in the normal course of its business, such person invests in or purchases securities similar to the Securities;

(iv) such person has such knowledge and experience in financial and business matters as to be capable of evaluating the merits and risks of its investment in the Securities, and it and any accounts for which it is acting are each able to bear the economic risk of its or any such accounts' investment for an indefinite period of time;

(v) such person is acquiring the Securities purchased by it for its own account or for one or more accounts (each of which is a QIB) as to each of which it exercises sole investment discretion and not with a view to any distribution of the Securities; and

(vi) such person has not relied on any dealer or any person affiliated with any dealer in connection with its investigation of the accuracy and completeness of such information or its investment decision.

Selling Restrictions

The Securities have not been and will not be registered under the Securities Act and may not be offered or sold within the United States or to, or for the account or benefit of, U.S. persons except in certain transactions exempt from, or in transactions not subject to, the registration requirements of the Securities Act. Terms used in this paragraph have the meanings given to them by Regulation S under the Securities Act.

Securities in bearer form are subject to U.S. tax law requirements and may not be offered, sold or delivered within the United States or its possessions or to a United States person, except in certain transactions permitted by U.S. tax regulations. Terms used in this paragraph have the meanings given to them by the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and regulations thereunder.

Until 40 days after the commencement of the offering of the Securities, an offer or sale of such Security within the United States by any dealer (whether or not participating in the offering) may violate the registration requirements of the Securities Act if such offer or sale is made otherwise than in accordance with an available exemption from registration under the Securities Act.

DESCRIPTION OF THE ISSUER

History and Development

Commerzbank Aktiengesellschaft is a stock corporation under German law and was established as Commerz- und Disconto-Bank in Hamburg in 1870. The Bank owes its present form to the re-merger of the post-war successor institutions of 1952 on July 1, 1958. The Bank's registered office is located in Frankfurt am Main and its head office is at Kaiserplatz, 60261 Frankfurt am Main, Federal Republic of Germany (telephone: +49 (0)69 136-20). The Bank is registered in the commercial register of the district court (*Amtsgericht*) of Frankfurt am Main under the number HRB 32 000.

Business Overview

Principal Activities

Commerzbank is a universal bank. Its products and services for retail and corporate customers extend to all aspects of banking. The Bank is also active in specialised fields – partly covered by its subsidiaries – such as mortgage banking and real-estate business, leasing and asset management. Its services are concentrated on managing customers' accounts and handling payments transactions, loan, savings and investments plans, and also on securities transactions. Additional financial services are offered within the framework of the Bank's bancassurance strategy of cooperating with leading companies in finance-related sectors, including home loan savings schemes and insurance products.

The Commerzbank Group is divided into three areas: customer bank, asset-based finance and the run-off portfolio (Portfolio Restructuring Unit (PRU)). The customter bank comprises the customeroriented core business activities of Commerzbank. Specifically, this includes the four segments Private Customers, *Mittelstandsbank*, Corporates & Markets as well as Central & Eastern Europe. The asset based finance area essentially includes Commercial Real Estate, Public Finance and ship financing. The run-off portfolio (Portfolio Restructuring Unit (PRU)) contains all the portfolios that the Bank no longer wants and has transferred to a single separate unit.

Private Customers

This segment encompasses all of the Bank's activities related to private and business customers. It therefore comprises Private and Business Customers, Credit, Wealth Management as well as Direct Banking.

Private and Business Customers

The product range for private customers covers the complete palette of retail business, including payments, investment and securities business, home and consumer loans as well as private provision for old age products.

The product range for business customers which include professionals, the self-employed and businessmen as well as the proprietors of small companies with an annual turnover of up to \in 2.5 million, has been entirely adapted to their needs and results in a combination of solutions for business financial issues and all-inclusive, individual advice in private financial matters.

Around one-third of the Commerzbank branches have been converted to the branch of the future model. Branches of this type are customer-oriented and focus on consulting and distribution. Apart from the use of modern self-service machines, administrative functions are being standardised, streamlined and centralised.

On the internet, a virtual branch is available, offering practically the entire range of a traditional branch office, including the handling of payments and securities transactions.

Credit

In the Credit division distribution and processing have been completely reorganized with the aim to concentrate on the processing of loans and to optimize the quality of credit decisions as well as the time it takes to reach these decisions. Another focus is on the more intensive and active portfolio management.

Wealth Management

In this business division, customers with liquid assets of at least €500,000 or customers, for which special solutions (for instance due to the complexity of their asset structure) are required, are served. Support is provided in all aspects of wealth management whereas services range from individual portfolio and securities management via financial investment and property management to the management of foundations and legacies.

Direct Banking

This business division mainly comprises the activities of the subsidiary comdirect bank AG which offers private customers reasonably priced services in banking and above all in securities business. Its subsidiary comdirect private finance AG provides additional financial advisory services on more complex topics such as provision for old age and wealth formation.

Mittelstandsbank

This segment comprises Corporate Banking, Small and Medium Enterprises Regions 1 and 2, Large Corporates Regions 1 and 2, Corporates International and Financial Institutions. Corporate Banking with the Center of Competence Renewable Energies focuses on small to medium-sized companies with a turnover between €2.5 million and €250 million or €500 million subject to the capital market affinity of the relevant companies. In the division Large Corporates the activities with large corporate customers which are close to the capital markets are bundled. Financial Institutions is responsible for the relationship to banks and financial institutions in Germany and abroad as well as to central banks and sovereigns and therefore supports Corporate Banking in respect of the trading activities or investments in the respective regions. Corporates International comprises the branches abroad in all important financial centers in Asia and in the Western European capitals. The focus there is on accompanying German corporate customers abroad as well as on Asian and Western European large corporate customers having relations to the German market and to other core regions of the Bank.

Central and Eastern Europe

Since the first quarter of 2008 the operations of all subsidiaries and regional branches in Central and Eastern Europe, previously included in the *Mittelstandsbank* segment, are bundled in a separate holding.

Corporates & Markets

The Corporates & Markets segment includes the client-oriented activities as well as business relations with multinational companies and selected major clients. It also serves London and America. Corporates & Markets consists of the main business areas: Fixed Income Sales, Fixed Income Trading, Corporate Finance, Equity Markets & Commodities, Client Relationship Management and Research.

Asset Based Finance

Asset Based Finance comprises Commercial Real Estate Germany, Commercial Real Estate International, Public Finance as well as Shipping.

Commercial Real Estate Germany/Commercial Real Estate International

n Commercial Real Estate the commercial real estate activities are bundled. These mainly consist of the real estate activities of Eurohypo and the activities of Commerz Real AG.

Eurohypo provides a large number of different services. In the area of financing commercial real estate, the range of products extends from traditional fixed-interest loans and structured financing all the way to real estate investment banking and capital market products.

The buy-and –manage concept is at the core of the business model. This is where Eurohypo, besides being a straightforward lender for real-estate customers, also serves as an intermediary between customers and capital markets.

The range of services provided by Commerz Real AG encompasses investment products with openended and closed-end funds, structured investments with a broad range of individually structured forms of financing, and equipment leasing.

Public Finance

Public Finance offers a wide range of financing instruments for domestic and international public sector clients and tailor-made financing solutions to meet their medium and long-term financing requirements. This includes the funding of infrastructure and public private partnership projects.

Shipping

This business division includes all shipping activities of Commerzbank, especially the range of services of the Deutsche Schiffsbank AG, Bremen / Hamburg.

Principal Markets

Commerzbank's business activities are mainly concentrated on the German market, where as an integrated provider of financial services, it maintains a nationwide branch network for offering advice and selling products to all its groups of customers. In Wealth Management, considered core markets are furthermore Austria, Luxembourg, Singapore and Switzerland and in corporate business Europe (the United Kingdom, France, Spain, Italy, the Netherlands, Belgium, Luxembourg, Hungary, the Czech Republic, Poland and Russia) as well as the USA and Asia (China, Dubai, Japan and Singapore).

Organisational Structure

Structure of the Commerzbank Group

Board of Managing Directors

Customer Bank				Asset Based Finance
Private Customers	Mittelstandsbank	Central and Eastern Europe	Corporates & Markets	Asset Based Finance
Private and Business	Corporate Banking	Eastern Europe	Client Relationship	Commercial Real
Customers	Small and Medium	Central Europe	Management	Estate Germany
Wealth Management	Enterprises Region 1		Corporate Finance	Commercial Real Estate International
Direct Banking	Small and Medium Enterprises Region 2		Equity Markets & Commodities	Public Finance
Credit	Large Corporates Region 1		Fixed Income Trading	Shipping
	Large Corporates Region 2		Research	
	Corparates International		Fixed Income Sales	
	Financial Institutions		London	
			America	

*) The third area comprises the run-off portfolio (Portfolio Restructuring Unit (PRU)) which contains all the portfolios that the Bank no longer wants. This includes troubled assets as well as positions that no longer match the Bank's business model since they lack a focus on customer relationships.

All staff and management functions are bundled into the Group Management division. Information Technology, Transaction Banking and Organization are provided by the Services division.

Major group companies and holdings

In Germany

Atlas Vermögensverwaltungs-Gesellschaft mbH, Bad Homburg v.d.H. comdirect bank AG, Quickborn Commerz Real AG, Eschborn Deutsche Schiffsbank AG, Bremen/Hamburg Eurohypo AG, Eschborn Süddeutsche Industrie-Beteiligungs-GmbH, Frankfurt am Main

Abroad

BRE Bank SA, Warsaw Commerzbank Capital Markets Corporation, New York Commerzbank (Eurasija) SAO, Moscow Commerzbank Europe (Ireland), Dublin Commerzbank International S.A., Luxembourg Dresdner Bank Luxembourg S.A., Luxembourg Commerzbank (South East Asia) Ltd., Singapore Commerzbank Zrt., Budapest Dresdner Investments (UK) Limited, London Erste Europäische Pfandbrief- und Kommunalkreditbank AG, Luxembourg Joint Stock Commercial Bank "Forum", Kiev Futher information on the holdings in affiliates and other companies is contained in the management report and Group financial statements 2008 of Commerzbank which is incorporated by reference into this Prospectus (please see pages 309 - 333 of the Supplement A dated April 27, 2009 to the Base Prospectus dated February 12, 2009 for Inline Warrants relating to Shares, Indices and Currency Exchange Rates of Commerzbank Aktiengesellschaft (see page 80 of this Prospectus)).

Administrative, Management and Supervisory Bodies

Board of Managing Directors

The Board of Managing Directors currently consists of the following members:

Martin Blessing, Frankfurt am Main, Chairman Strategy and Controlling, Group Communications, Brand Management, Legal Services, Treasury

Frank Annuscheit, Frankfurt am Main Information Technology, Organization, Transaction Banking, Security, Support

Markus Beumer, Frankfurt am Main

Coporate Banking, Small and Medium Enterprises Region 1, Small and Medium Enterprises Region 2, Large Corporates Region 1, Large Corporates Region 2, Corporates International, Financial Institutions

Dr. Achim Kassow, Frankfurt am Main Private and Business Customers, Wealth Management, Direct Banking, Credit, Eastern Europe, Central Europe

Jochen Klösges, Frankfurt am Main Commercial Real Estate Germany, Commercial Real Estate International, Public Finance, Shipping

Michael Reuther, Frankfurt am Main Client Relationship Management, Corporate Finance, Equity Markets & Commodities, Fixed Income Trading, Research, Fixed Income Sales, London, America

Dr. Stefan Schmittmann, Frankfurt am Main Group Credit and Capital Risk Management, Group Market and Operational Risk Management, Global Intensive Care, Group Risk Operations

Ulrich Sieber, Frankfurt am Main Human Resources, Integration

Dr. Eric Strutz, Frankfurt am Main Group Compliance, Group Finance, Group Finance Architecture, Internal Auditing, Portfolio Restructuring Unit

Supervisory Board

The Supervisory Board currently consists of the following members:

Klaus-Peter Müller, Chairman, Frankfurt am Main Uwe Tschäge, Deputy Chairman, Commerzbank AG, Düsseldorf Hans-Hermann Altenschmidt, Commerzbank AG, Essen Dott. Sergio Balbinot, Managing Director of Assicurazioni Generali S.p.A., Trieste Dr.-Ing. Burckhard Bergmann, Former member of the Board of Managing Directors of E.ON AG, Consultant, Essen Herbert Bludau-Hoffmann, Dipl.-Volkswirt, ver.di Trade Union, Sector Financial Services, Essen Dr. Nikolaus von Bomhard, Chairman of the Board of Managing Directors of Münchener

Rückversicherungs-Gesellschaft Aktiengesellschaft, Munich

Karin van Brummelen, Commerzbank AG, Düsseldorf

Astrid Evers, Commerzbank AG, Hamburg

Uwe Foullong, Member of the ver.di National Executive Committee, Berlin

Daniel Hampel, Commerzbank AG, Berlin

Dr.-Ing. Otto Happel, Entrepreneur, Lucerne

Sonja Kasischke, Commerzbank AG, Brunswick

Prof. Dr.-Ing. Dr.-Ing. E.h. Hans-Peter Keitel, Member of the Supervisory Board of HOCHTIEF AG, Essen

Alexandra Krieger, Hans-Böckler-Stifung, Düsseldorf

- Dr. h.c. Edgar Meister, Lawyer, former Member of the Executive Board of Deutsche Bundesbank, Kronberg im Taunus
- Prof. h.c. (CHN) Dr. rer. oec. Ulrich Middelmann, Deputy Chairman of the Board of Managing Directors of ThyssenKrupp AG, Düsseldorf
- Dr. Helmut Perlet, Member of the Board of Managing Directorsof Allianz SE, Munich

Barbara Priester, Commerzbank AG, Frankfurt am Main

Dr. Marcus Schenck, Member of the Board of Managing Directors of E.ON AG, Düsseldorf

The members of the Board of Managing Directors and of the Supervisory Board can be reached at the business address of the Issuer.

Potential Conflicts of Interest

In the 2008 financial year and until the date of this Prospectus, the members of the Board of Managing Directors and the members of the Supervisory Board were involved in no conflicts of interest as defined in sections 4.3 and 5.5, respectively, of the German Corporate Governance Code.

Potential conflicts of interest could occur with the following members of the Board of Managing Directors due to their additional membership in supervisory boards of Commerzbank AG's subsidiaries:

Mr Annuscheit (comdirect bank AG), Dr. Kassow (comdirect bank AG, BRE Bank SA), Mr Reuther (Erste Europäische Pfandbrief- und Kommunalkreditbank AG), Dr. Strutz (comdirect bank AG, Erste Europäische Pfandbrief- und Kommunalkreditbank AG).

Currently, there are no signs of such conflicts of interest.

Historical Financial Information

The audited non-consolidated annual financial statements of Commerzbank for the financial year ended December 31, 2008 and the audited consolidated annual financial statements of Commerzbank for the financial years ended December 31, 2007 and 2008 are incorporated by reference into, and form part of, this Base Prospectus.

Auditors

The auditors of the Bank for the 2007 and 2008 financial years were PricewaterhouseCoopers Aktiengesellschaft Wirtschaftsprüfungsgesellschaft, Olof-Palme-Straße 35, 60439 Frankfurt am Main, Federal Republic of Germany, who audited the annual and consolidated financial statements of Commerzbank Aktiengesellschaft for the financial years ended December 31, 2007 and 2008, giving each of them their unqualified auditor's report.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Aktiengesellschaft Wirtschaftsprüfungsgesellschaft is a member of the Chamber of Chartered Accountants (*Wirtschaftsprüferkammer*).

Interim Financial Information / Trend Information

The Commerzbank Group's interim report as of September 30, 2009 (reviewed English version) is incorporated by reference into, and forms part of, this Base Prospectus.

Since the audited consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2008 and the interim report as of September 30, 2009 (reviewed English version) were published no material adverse changes in the prospects nor significant changes in the financial position have occurred except for those described below under "Recent Developments".

Legal and Arbitration Proceedings

During the previous twelve months, there were no governmental, legal or arbitration proceedings, nor is the Bank aware of any such proceedings pending or threatened, which may have, or have had in the recent past significant effects on the Bank's and/or Group's financial position or profitability.

Recent Developments

Acquisition of Dresdner Bank from Allianz

On January 12, 2009, Commerzbank acquired the 92.9% of the shares in Dresdner Bank held by Allianz (which equated to 100% of the voting rights, given the treasury shares held by Dresdner Bank of 7.1% of its share capital) for a total purchase price of €4.7bn ("the Transaction"). €3.2bn was paid in cash. In addition, Allianz received 163,461,537 non-par-value shares in the Company through a capital increase against non-cash contributions. Based on the XETRA closing price on January 12, 2009, the value of these shares was €0.8bn. Allianz also received from the Issuer cominvest Asset Management GmbH, cominvest Asset Management S.A., Münchener Kapitalanlage Aktiengesellschaft and MK LUXINVEST S.A. (together "the cominvest Group"), with a total value of €0.7bn. The conclusion of long-term distribution agreements between Allianz and the Company and their respective subsidiaries was also agreed upon in the Transaction Agreement as part of the concept of comprehensive sales cooperation in Germany. On completion of the transaction, Allianz strengthened the Company's equity by buying from it asset-backed securities with a nominal value of €2.0bn for €1.1bn. Furthermore, Allianz granted the Company a silent participation of €750m on June 8, 2009. The profit participation for the silent participation consists of fixed interest of 9% p.a. on the nominal value of the contribution plus additional dividend-linked remuneration of 0.01% p.a. on the nominal contribution amount for each full €5,906,764 cash dividend paid.

The merger between Dresdner Bank, as transferring legal entity, and Commerzbank, as acquiring legal entity, was registered in the commercial register at the district court of Frankfurt am Main on May 11, 2009.

The financial market crisis and SoFFin equity injection

The global financial market crisis had a significant impact on the Group's result in 2008, and it should be assumed that this crisis will produce further negative consequences for the Group in future. In response to the crisis and the gradual deterioration in the economic environment, the Issuer applied to SoFFin on November 2, 2008 for stabilization measures. On December 19, 2008, SoFFin granted the Issuer a silent participation of €8.2bn. Further injections of equity capital were subsequently needed in order to meet much-increased expectations of banks' capital adequacy in light of the intensifying financial market crisis. SoFFin received 295,338,233 non-par-value shares in the Issuer through a capital increase against cash contributions, as approved by the Annual General Meeting on May 15, 2009. As a result of this capital increase, SoFFin holds 25% plus one share of the Issuer. SoFFin also granted the Issuer a further silent participation of €8.2bn on June 4, 2009. In connection with the various equity injections, the Issuer has undertaken not to pay a dividend to its shareholders for financial years 2008 and 2009. The profit participation for the silent participations consists of fixed interest of 9% p.a. on the nominal contribution amount for each full €5,906,764 cash dividend paid.

On May 7, 2009, the European Commission declared that the stabilization measures which the Issuer has taken up are, in principle, compatible with the aid provisions set out in the EU Treaty. However, for competitive reasons, a series of conditions were imposed on the Group. The key conditions included:

- the divestment of activities,
- the sale of Eurohypo Aktiengesellschaft ("Eurohypo") by 2014 and of Kleinwort Benson Private Bank, Dresdner Van Moer Courtens S.A., Dresdner VPV NV, Privatinvest Bank AG, Reuschel & Co. KG* and Allianz Dresdner Bauspar AG by 2011,
- time-limited restrictions on acquisitions of further companies and
- restrictions on the terms and conditions that can be offered to customers.
- * Commerzbank is transferring Reuschel & Co. KG to Conrad Hinrich Donner Bank AG. The relevant contracts have been signed on July 31, 2009. The sale is still subject to the usual approval from the anti-trust and supervisory authorities.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

The following document was published in the Supplement B dated April 8, 2008 to the Base Prospectus dated May 29, 2007 relating to the Notes/Certificates Programme Sweden of Commerzbank Aktiengesellschaft and shall be deemed to be incorporated in, and to form part of, this Base Prospectus:

Financial Statements of the Commerzbank

p. 3–80
p. 85
p. 86
p. 87 – 88
p. 89 – 90
p. 91 – 187
p. 188

The following documents were published in the Supplement A dated April 27, 2009 to the Base Prospectus dated February 12, 2009 for Inline Warrants relating to Shares, Indices and Currency Exchange Rates of Commerzbank Aktiengesellschaft and shall be deemed to be incorporated in, and to form part of, this Base Prospectus:

Financial Statements and Management Report 2008 of the Commerzbank AG

Management rep Profit and Loss A	•	Repo	rt)	p. 2–46 p.47
Balance sheet Notes				p. 48 - 49
Auditors' report				p. 50 - 78 p. 79
Management F	Penort and	Group	Financial	

management Report and Group Financial	
Statements 2008	
Management report	p. 81 – 200
Income statement	p. 205
Balance sheet	p. 206
Statement of changes in equity	p. 207 – 208
Cash flow statement	p. 209 – 210
Notes	p. 211 – 307
Group auditors' report	p. 308
Holdings in affiliated and other companies	p. 309 - 333

The following document was published in the Supplement A dated November 5, 2009 to the Base Prospectus dated September 24, 2009 for TURBO Warrants and Unlimited TURBO Warrants of Commerzbank Aktiengesellschaft and shall be deemed to be incorporated in, and to form part of, this Base Prospectus:

Interim Report of the Commerzbank Group as of September 30, 2009 (reviewed)

Letter from the Chairman of the Board of Managing Directors Our Share Business and economy	р. 1 р. 3 р. 4
Earnings performance, assets and financial position Forecast	р. 5 р. 12
Report on post-balance sheet date events	p. 15
Risk report	p. 16
Statement of compliance with the IFRS	p. 38
Statement of comprehensive income	р. 43
Consolidated balance sheet	р. 46
Statement of changes in equity	p. 47
Statement cash flows	p. 49
Notes	p. 50
Boards of Commerzbank Aktiengesellschaft Report of the audit review Major Group companies and major holdings Disclaimer	p. 71 p. 72 p. 73 p. 73

Documents incorporated by reference have been published on the website of the Issuer (<u>www.commerzbank.com</u>).

Frankfurt am Main, December 2, 2009

COMMERZBANK AKTIENGESELLSCHAFT

by: Borinski

by: Jung